
 

Camberwell Community Council 
 

Agenda 
Wednesday 22 June 2011 

7.00 pm 
Southwark Town Hall, Peckham Road, London SE5 8UB 

 
Membership 
 

 

Councillor Norma Gibbes (Chair) 
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Kevin Ahern 
Councillor Stephen Govier 
Councillor Peter John 
Councillor the Right Revd Emmanuel 
Oyewole 
Councillor Veronica Ward 
Councillor Mark Williams 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
 

 

 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Annie Shepperd 
Chief Executive 
Date: Tuesday 14 June 2011 
 

 
 

 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item 
No. 

Title  

 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Open Agenda



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interest or dispensation and the nature 
of that interest or dispensation which they may have in any of the items 
under consideration at this meeting. 
 
 

 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

 

 The chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda. 
 
 

 

5. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 4 - 9) 
 

 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 20 April 
2011.  
 

 

 MAIN BUSINESS 
 

 

6. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY)  
 

7.10pm 

 The chair to advise on any deputations or petitions. 
 

 

7. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS AND EVENTS  
 
 

7.15pm 

 • Library service review, information for community councils: The 
Council conducting a review of library services. 

 
• Southwark Community Games and youth related initiatives.  
 
• The second phase of the Democracy Commission, which started in 

May 2011, involves a review of the eight community councils this will 
include: 

 
1. Looking at ways to make savings. 

 
2. Discussing what community councils currently do and how this 

could be improved.  
 

3. Identifying what residents particularly value about community 
councils. 

 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

 The Democracy Commission is seeking the views of local people as part 
of this review of community councils.  Residents are encouraged to: 
Fill in the questionnaires provided and hand them to officers at the 
meeting or email your views directly to the Democracy Commission at 
democracy@southwark.gov.uk  by Monday, 29 August 2011.   
 
• The next themed debate at council assembly on Wednesday 6 July 

2011 is sport and young people. This will provide an opportunity for 
residents to voice their opinions.  Please refer to the website: 
www.southwark.gov.uk for details.  

 
• Local Implementation plan - Transport Improvements for 2012 – 2013 

in the Camberwell Community Council area. 
 
 

 

8. UPDATE REPORT FROM THE SAFER NEIGHBOURHOOD TEAMS  
 

7.25pm 

 Presentation from the Safer Neighbourhoods teams. 
 

 

9. PRESENTATION FROM THE CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN'S 
SERVICES  

 

7.35pm 

  
To hear from the Cabinet member for children’s services, Cllr Catherine 
McDonald about helping families when they need it the most  with Free 
Healthy School meals.  
 
There will also be a representative from Brunswick Park School – who will 
talk about free Healthy School meals.  
 

 

 BREAK (7.55PM) 
 

 

 Opportunity for residents to talk to Councillors and Officers 
 

 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (Page 10) 
 

8.05pm 

 This is an opportunity for public questions addressed to the chair. 
 
Residents or persons working in the borough may ask questions on any 
matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties. 
 
Response may be supplied in writing following the meeting. 
 

 

11. LUCAS GARDENS AND SOUTHAMPTON WAY - CONSULTATION 
REPORT AND APPENDICES (Pages 11 - 111) 

 

8.20pm 

 To note the first and second stage parking consultation results. 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

12. CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL FUND - 2011 (Pages 112 - 118) 
 

8.35pm 

 Executive function  
 
Members to agree funding for 2011 from the community council fund. 
 

 

13. CLEANER GREENER SAFER - REPORT (Pages 119 - 123) 
 

8.45pm 

 Executive function 
 
Members to agree the reallocation of Cleaner Greener Safer funding 
(change control report). 
 

 

 
Date:  Tuesday 14 June 2011 
 



  
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
CONTACT: Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer, Tel: 020 7525 
7234 or email: beverley.olamijulo@southwark.gov.uk  
Website: www.southwark.gov.uk 

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION 

On request, agendas and reports will be supplied to members of the 
public, except if they contain confidential or exempted information. 

 

ACCESSIBLE MEETINGS  

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  For 
further details on building access, translation and interpreting services, 
the provision of signers and other access requirements, please contact 
the Constitutional Officer. 

Disabled members of the public, who wish to attend community council 
meetings and require transport assistance in order to attend, are 
requested to contact the Constitutional Officer. The Constitutional 
Officer will try to arrange transport to and from the meeting. There will 
be no charge to the person requiring transport. Please note that it is 
necessary to contact us as far in advance as possible, and at least 
three working days before the meeting.  

 

BABYSITTING/CARERS’ ALLOWANCES 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look 
after your children or an elderly or disabled dependant, so that you can 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  
Please collect a claim form from the Constitutional Officer at the 
meeting.  

 
DEPUTATIONS 
Deputations provide the opportunity for a group of people who are 
resident or working in the borough to make a formal representation of 
their views at the meeting. Deputations have to be regarding an issue 
within the direct responsibility of the Council. For further information on 
deputations, please contact the Constitutional Officer.  
 
 

For a large print copy of this pack, 
please telephone 020 7525 7385.  
 
 

 

Agenda Annex
1



Camberwell Community Council

Language Needs
If you would like information on the Community Councils translated into your
language please telephone 020 7525 7385 or visit the officers at 160 Tooley
Street, London SE1 2TZ

Spanish:

Necesidades de Idioma
Si usted desea información sobre los Municipios de la Comunidad traducida a
su idioma por favor llame al 020 7525 7385 o visite a los oficiales de 160 Tooley
Street, Londres SE1 2TZ

French:

Besoins de Langue
Si vous désirez obtenir des renseignements sur les Community Councils traduits
dans votre langue, veuillez appeler le 020 7525 7385 ou allez voir nos agents à
160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Bengali :

fvlvi cÖ‡qvRb

Avcwb hw` wb‡Ri fvlvq KwgDwbwU KvDwÝj m¤ú‡K© Z_¨ †c‡Z Pvb Zvn‡j 020 7525 7385 b¤̂‡i
†dvb Ki“b A_ev 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ wVKvbvq wM‡q Awdmvi‡`i mv‡_ †`Lv

Ki“b|

Yoruba:

Awon Kosemani Fun Ede
Bi o ba nfe àlàyé kíkún l’ori awon Ìgbìmò Àwùjo ti a se ayipada si ede abínibí re,

ojúlé 160 Tooley Street , London SE1 2TZ .

Turkish:

2



Igbo:

Asusu
I choo imata gwasara Council na asusu gi ikpoo ha n’okara igwe 020 7525 7385
ma obu igaa hu ndi oru ha na 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Krio:

Na oose language you want
If you lek for sabi all tin but Community Council na you yone language, do ya
telephone 020 7525 7385 or you kin go talk to dee officers dem na 160 Tooley
Treet, London SE1 2TZ.

Twi:

Kasaa ohohia,
se wopese wo hu nsem fa Community Councils ho a, sesa saakasa yie ko wo
kuro kasa mu. wo be tumi afre saa ahoma torofo yie 020 7525 7385 anase ko sra
inpanyinfo wo 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2Tz.

3



1 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 20 April 2011 
 

 
 
 
 

CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES of the Camberwell Community Council held on Wednesday 20 April 2011 at 
6.00 pm at Clubland, 54-56 Camberwell Road, London, SE5 0EN  
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Norma Gibbes (Chair) 

Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Kevin Ahern 
Councillor Stephen Govier 
Councillor the Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole 
Councillor Veronica Ward 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
 

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

Michael Cleer, Community Cohesion Co-Ordinator 
Nicky Costin, Business Unit Manager 
Alistair Huggett, Framework & Implementation Manager 
Alison Squires, Planning Policy Team Leader 
Grace Semakula, Community Council Development Officer 
Alexa Coates, Principal Constitutional Officer 
 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME 
 

 

 Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle opened the meeting and took the chair as Cllr Gibbes had 
given apologies for lateness. Cllr Dixon-Fyle welcomed members of the public, councillors 
and officers to the meeting. 
 

2. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Peter John and apologies for 
lateness from Councillors Gibbes and Wingfield.   
 
Reverend Eric Mustapha, Walworth Methodist Church and Reverend David Wade from 
Heartbeat International who were going to be taking part in the panel discussion at item 10 
also gave their apologies. Leon Wright attended in place of Reverend Wade. 

 
 

Agenda Item 5
4



2 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 20 April 2011 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 There were none. 
 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 
 

 

 There were none. 
 

5. MINUTES 
 

 

 RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 2 February 2011 be agreed as a correct record 
and signed by the chair. 
 

6. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY) 
 

 

 There were none. 
 

7. PUBLIC QUESTION RESPONSES 
 

 

 Members noted the responses to public questions submitted at the meeting held on 2 
February 2011. The chair requested that a response to question relating to bus stop and 
Denmark Hill be provided by officers. 
 

8. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 

 Council Assembly Themed Debates 

The chair, explained that the next themed debate at council assembly would be held in July 
on Sport and Young people. The July meeting will also be the first time a council assembly 
meeting has been held outside of the town hall. The chair encouraged people to keep an 
eye on the website to find out more information. 

 

Olympic Capital Legacy Fund 

The chair explained that the council are inviting project bids for the Olympic Capital Legacy 
Fund. £2million is available which residents and organisations can bid for; the money is 
available for projects like building an outdoor gym or refurbishing a sports facility. 
Applications must be submitted by 29 April and more information is available at 
www.southwark.gov.uk/olympics 

 

Ronald McDonald Charities 

Janice O’Neil explained to residents about the work of Ronald McDonald Charity who have 
a house on Caldecot Road in Camberwell. The house in Camberwell was temporary whilst 

5



3 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 20 April 2011 
 

new accommodation was being completed. Janice explained that some families were 
struggling to find parking close to the hospital and asked councillors if they could help. 
 

Community Council Fund Launch 

The chair explained that the Camberwell Community Council Fund is open for applications 
until 16 May 2011.  Groups can apply for funding from £100-£1000.   

 

Mayor’s Trust 

Vicky Naish explained about the Mayor’s Trust which provided support ‘from the cradle to 
the grave’ for people who lived in Southwark. Some of the work of the trust involved 
providing 30 sleeping bags for the homeless over Christmas and contributing to the costs of 
funerals for those who could not afford them.  Vicky explained the trust was not funded by 
the council and they were looking for support. Vicky encouraged residents to become a 
trustee of the trust as there were currently three vacancies. 

 
 

9. REGENERATION - CROSS BORDER ISSUES AND LIBRARY 
CONSULTATION 

 

 

 Alistair Huggett from the regeneration department updated the meeting on the cross 
border issues which had been reported at the meeting in November. 
 
Alistair explained that there was currently a consultation on the new library. The 
consultation was asking what people wanted to see in the library and what was important 
to people in terms of planning options. The council was also interested in people’s views 
on proposals to build a new facility in front of the magistrates court.  
 
Alistair also updated the meeting on some of the cross border issued raised in November. 
 
Transport Improvement  
Work was taking place at Denmark Hill station to improve disabled access and 
improvements were planned for Southampton Way. The council was working with TfL to 
look at ways to improve the town centre in terms of crossings, street clutter and bus 
operations. 
 
Purple Flag 
This was being led by the Licensing department who were exploring opportunities for 
achieving purple flag accreditation and would report back to the community council. 
 
Development team 
A cross departmental team had been established in order to improve co-ordination and 
communication. Lambeth officers were also involved on specific cross-border issues. 
 
Street Cleaning 
Southwark and Lambeth were attempting to co-ordinate street cleaning better and the 
opportunities for shared services in this area were being explored. 
 

6



4 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 20 April 2011 
 

Planning Policy 
It was hoped the Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) would contain a joint 
statement with Lambeth. 
 
Enforcement 
A joint approach was planned between the respective safer neighbourhoods teams which 
would include a zero-tolerance approach on targeted border streets. 
 
Quality of life 
The council had initiated discussions with service providers for drug offenders. One 
suggestion had been to make ways of moving through Camberwell easier. 
 
Regeneration Officers 
Each of the authorities had a named officer for cross border issues. These were Karen 
O’Keefe at Southwark and Stephanie Butcher at Lambeth. 
 
Other opportunities 
Alistair also explained that the council were looking at other opportunities for cross border 
working such as a annual forum and public realm signage. 
 
Councillor Govier raised issues around funding of the initiatives mentioned. In response 
Councillor Dixon-Fyle explained that the council would move slowly due to the current 
financial restrictions. 
 
Residents asked about community involvement from groups such as the SE5 forum and 
Camberwell Society. Councillor Dixon-Fyle responded that residents and the community 
council will continue to be consulted with. 
 

10. FAITH COMMUNITY - THEIR CONTRIBUTION TO COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 

 

 

 Michael Cleer, Community Cohesion Co-ordinator, introduced the faith community 
discussion by giving an overview of faith Southwark wide. Michael explained that 
Southwark was a diverse community with 360 faith groups. In that last census most 
respondents were Christian, some of the other religions followed included: Muslims, Jews 
and Sikhs. 28% of those who responded to the last census had no religion or did not state 
a religion.  
 
Michael spoke about the role of faith groups in terms of community cohesion and 
engagement and how groups can strengthen a sense of belonging and play a role in a 
vision for how life in Southwark should be. Michael identified that although faith groups can 
have very different views there is often a commonality in groups in terms of a belief in a 
higher power and concern for the common good. 
 
The chair then invited each of the faith group representatives to explain about their 
organisation and their role in the community.  
 

• Rev'd Nicholas Elder, St George Church and Trinity College Centre 

• Eileen Conn, Deputy Chair of Southwark Multi-faith Forum 

7



5 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 20 April 2011 
 

• Pastor Tony Okon, The Redeemed Christian Church Of God, Friends Parish 

• Leon Wright, Education Officer Heartbeat International Christian Centre 

 
The chair then asked for questions and comments from the floor. Residents discussed the 
effect the spending cuts would have on the work of faith groups in the community and 
whether they were in a position to assist in meeting the needs of local people. For 
example could churches provide community opportunities for isolated people? 
 
Residents and councillors spoke about the work of faith groups in terms of engaging and 
empowering people, particularly young people. It was also pointed out that it is not just 
faith groups which take on this role in the community. The opportunities for developing 
community information systems were discussed. Eileen Conn reiterated Michael’s points 
about the number of different groups who are connected by the common aim of wanting to 
improve life in Southwark, she felt this needed to be tapped into and encouraged groups to 
get involved in the multi faith forum.  
 
Residents also questioned the ability of faith groups to engage with people of non-faith 
and asked how they could make services more attractive to people who they were in a 
position to help. 
 
 

11. CHARGES FOR RESIDENTIAL PARKING BASED ON CO2 EMISSIONS 
 

 

 Nicky Costin gave residents some information on proposals to base residential car parking 
charges on Co2 emissions outlining the potential costs for different models of car. 
 
Residents questioned whether the proposals would have a disproportionate effect on 
people on lower incomes they pointed out that Richmond Upon Thames had abandoned 
the scheme as it had no effect on changing vehicle use. The charges were seen by some 
as a form of raising tax and income for the council. 
 
Councillors asked officers what they would do to ensure that the proposals did not impact 
disproportionally on those on lower incomes who could not easily change their cars. 
Councillors were also concerned about the consultation and advised officers to consult 
more widely than the community councils and requested that the consultation be made 
available online.  
 
Nicky explained that this was a consultation which would inform the cabinet member on 
whether to consider introducing charges based on Co2 emissions and that no decision 
had been made and that he would feed comments on the level of consultation back to the 
cabinet member. 
 

12. RESIDENTIAL DESIGN STANDARDS SPD 
 

 

 Alison Squires explained that an update to the residential design standards supplementary 
planning document was out for consultation. The amendments including additional 
guidance on minimum dwelling sizes. The proposed amendments would mean that the 
minimum space for dwelling would increase, so larger units for new houses built. 

8



6 
 
 

Camberwell Community Council - Wednesday 20 April 2011 
 

 
The consultation was open until Thursday 2 June, consultation forms were available in the 
agenda, at the meeting and could also be completed online. 
 

13. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
 

 

 No public questions were submitted. 
 

14. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

 

 Resolved 
 
That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1 and 2, Access to Information Procedure rules of the Constitution. 
 
 
 

15. SCHOOL GOVERNOR NOMINATIONS 
 

 

 Executive Function 
 
Resolved 
 
That the following school governor appointments be agreed: 
 

1. Mr Oliver Haydon to Crawford School 
 

2. Mrs Marie-Josee Ollivierre to Bessemer Grange Primary School 
 

3. Mr Zacrid Anderson to St Joseph’s Catholic Junior School 
 

4. Dr Catrin Carter St George’s Church of England Primary School 
 
 

 The meeting ended at 8.30 pm. 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

  
 

9



 
Camberwell Community Council 

 Wednesday 22 June 2011  
 

Public Question form 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Please give this to Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer, or Grace 
Semakula, Community Council Development Officer 
 

 
Your name: 
 
 
Your mailing address: 
 
 
What is your question? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 10
10



 
 
 

  

  
Item No.  
11 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
22 June 
2011 

Committee 
Camberwell Community Council 

Report title: 
 

Lucas Gardens and Southampton Way Controlled Parking 
Zone 1st and 2nd Stage Report 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 

Brunswick Park Ward, Camberwell Green Ward and 
Faraday Ward 

From: 
 

Head of Public Realm 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS (for Camberwell Community Council) 

That the community council: 
 
1. Notes that this report is presented to the community council for consultation 

purposes only and that the final decision is delegated to the cabinet member. 
 
2. Notes the draft recommendations to the cabinet member, below, and gives 

comments to those recommendations (as required). Any comments made will be 
included within the final report to the cabinet member. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS (for cabinet member for environment, transport and 
recycling) 

That the cabinet member for environment, transport and recycling: 
 
1. Notes the results of the combined 1st and 2nd stage study on two proposed 

Controlled Parking Zones (CPZ) in the Lucas Gardens and Southampton Way 
areas. 

 
2. Notes Camberwell and Walworth community council’s comments and any final 

representations made in relation to the draft of this report (to be inserted). 
 
3. Approves the implementation of a CPZ in the Lucas Gardens area subject to 

statutory consultation. 
 
4. Approves the extension of East Camberwell (EC) CPZ to include northern section 

of Southampton Way (Wells Way to New Church Street), Parkhouse Street, 
Cottage Green and Wells Way (Parkhouse Street to St George’s Way) subject to 
statutory consultation. 

 
5. Does not approve the implementation of a CPZ in Coleman Road, Rainbow Street, 

Dowlas Road, Bonsor Street or the southern section of Southampton Way (south 
of Wells Way) but does make minor adjustments to those streets to prevent 
parking on junctions and install a new car club bay in Rainbow Street. 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

1. This report draws upon the detailed analysis of the consultation report (see 
background documents), government legislation, parking enforcement experience, 
good parking practice, financial considerations and upholds the Council’s overall 
policies on parking contained in the Parking and Enforcement Plan (PEP). 

2. The PEP sets out the council’s policy in the management of parking on its public 

Agenda Item 11
11



 
 
 

  

highway. The PEP acknowledges that ”car parking issues provoke the strongest 
reactions” but that parking restrictions, in many areas of the borough, provide a 
critical tool in prioritising space in favour of certain groups (e.g. blue badge 
holders, residents or loading) as well as assisting in keeping the traffic flowing and 
improving road safety. 

3. The Local Implementation Plan (LIP) notes that congestion can be tackled through 
a combination of strategies – one of which is managing demand for travel through 
parking regulation. Parking is the end result of a trip. The availability of parking at 
a destination has a clear effect on whether the trip is made by car or not. Existing 
parking controls all across Southwark already assist in improving traffic and 
congestion levels. The controls provide another significant tool that can be used to 
help control the use of the private car. This, in turn, provides benefits in terms of 
vehicular emissions, traffic congestion, social inclusion and maintenance costs. 

4. In accordance with Part 3H of the council’s constitution, Camberwell Community 
Council approved the methods and boundary for the study on September 22 2010 
and Faraday ward members were notified by email on October 1 2010. 

5. During December 2010 and January 2011, residents and businesses were 
consulted on parking in Lucas Gardens and Southampton Way areas, primarily if 
they supported the introduction of a CPZ.  

6. An information pack about CPZs with a Freepost questionnaire was hand 
delivered to every property within the consultation area and also posted, with a 
covering letter, to key stakeholders. The total distribution of the document was 
1,224. 

7. Consultation commenced on December 3 2010. The last date for responses was 
detailed as January 14 2011. Officers accepted and inputted late responses up to 
January 31 2011. 

8. Consultation methods followed corporate communications guidance. Full detail of 
the strategy can be found in the consultation report. 

9. A detailed parking survey to quantify parking occupancy, duration and type of 
parking activity was carried out in thirteen roads across the study area. 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

10. A total of 146 questionnaires from Lucas Gardens were returned representing a 
24.5% response rate. This is a very good response rate for this type of 
consultation when compared to similar consultations in Southwark and other 
London authorities. 

11. A total of 95 questionnaires from the Southampton Way area were returned 
representing a 15.2% response rate. This is a good response rate, however it 
does fall below the council’s threshold for consultation recognition.  

12. The council gives significant weighting to the consultation return when the 
response rate exceeds a threshold of 20%.   

13. Figure 1 shows that 56.2% of Lucas Gardens respondents answered yes to the 
question “do you agree with the introduction of a controlled parking zone in your 
street” compared to 34.9% who responded by saying no, leaving 8.9% of 
respondents undecided. 

12



 
 
 

  

Figure 1 Lucas Gardens - Do you agree with the proposed introduction of 
a CPZ in your street?

Yes

No

Undecided

 

14. It is recommended that Lucas Gardens (LG) CPZ is introduced as there is broad 
support across the consultation area. Detailed design shown in Appendix A. 

 

13



 
 
 

  

15. Figure 2 shows  that 39.4% of Southampton Way area respondents answered yes 
to the question “do you agree with the introduction of a controlled parking zone in 
your street” compared to 54.3% who responded by saying no, leaving 6.4% of 
respondents undecided. 

 

16. It is not recommended that controls are introduced into all of the Southampton 
Way consultation area. 

17. It is, however, noted that there was support for controls in the northern section of 
Southampton Way (Wells Way to New Church Street and including Chiswell 
Street), Cottage Green, Wells Way and Parkhouse Street.  This area shows a 
clear “cluster” of support (Figure 3) and provides for a practical CPZ boundary. 

 

18. It is therefore recommended that East Camberwell (EC) CPZ be extended to 
include these streets.  It is further recommended that minor amendments are 
made across the whole SW study area to prevent junction parking and to 
introduce a car club bay.  Detailed design shown in Appendix B. 

Figure 2 Southampton Way - Do you agree with the proposed 
introduction of a CPZ in your street?

Yes

No

Undecided

FIGURE 3 REVISED BOUNDARY (WEST OF WELLS WAY) 
DO YOU SUPPORT THE INTRODUCTION OF A CPZ?

Yes

No

Undecided

14



 
 
 

  

19. It is important to note that whilst inference can be made about the view expressed 
in an email, for example, the council has not added these figures directly into the 
questionnaire results. This is to encourage people to read the information 
contained within the consultation pack, respond to specific questions, to avoid risk 
of duplication from those persons who respond by more than one method (by 
email and questionnaire, for example) and to avoid misinterpretation by the officer 
inputting the data. 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS  

20. The recommendations contained within this report are consistent with the polices 
of the PEP and the council’s overall transport strategy, the Local Implementation 
Plan (LIP) and emerging Transport Plan 2011. 

 

COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT 

21. The implementation and operation of the CPZ contributes to an improved 
environment through the elimination of on-street commuter parking and the 
associated reduction of local and borough-wide traffic levels. 

22. The consultation leaflet met communication guidance with a languages page with 
advice of how to access the council’s translation services.  Large format leaflets 
were available for those with visual impairment. 

23. The policies within the Parking and Enforcement Plan are upheld within this report 
have been subject to an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA). 

 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

24. The total cost of implementation for both areas will be approximately £85,000 and 
will be funded through capital provisions already established for this purpose. 

25. Cost code for CPZ Reviews is L-5110-0042. Out of the original provision of £X , 
£Y remains (details to be completed post- community council draft, prior to 
decision making). 

 

CONSULTATION  

26. Informal consultation is summarised in Background Information. 

27. A draft of this report was presented to Camberwell Community Council on June 22  
2011 and Walworth Community Council on July 4 2011.  The community council 
made the following comments:  (details to be completed post- community council 
draft, prior to decision making). 

28. Those areas that are approved for CPZ implementation will be subject statutory 
consultation required in the making of the Traffic Management Orders.  Should 
statutory objections be received these are delegated to the cabinet member for 
determination. 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS  

Strategic Director of Communities, Law & Governance  

29. The Council has powers under Part I of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to 

15



 
 
 

  

make traffic management orders to bring about or amend a Controlled Parking 
Zone, including experimental orders, subject to compliance with the relevant 
procedural requirements under the Local Authorities Traffic Orders (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 .   

30. In exercising its powers, Section 122 of the Act imposes a duty on the Council to 
have regard (so far as practicable) to securing the ‘expeditious, convenient and 
safe movement of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the 
provision of suitable and adequate parking facilities on and off the highway’. The 
Council must also have regard to such matters as the desirability of securing and 
maintaining reasonable access to the premises and the effect on the amenities of 
any locality affected. 

31. The traffic management orders cannot be implemented without first completing 
the appropriate consultation, publication / notification of intent to introduce Traffic 
Management Orders and in the case of experimental orders providing an 
opportunity for evaluation by the Police.  The public are also ordinarily notified by 
way of street and press notices.  Although in the case of some orders these 
procedures are simplified. 

32. The council has the power to overrule objections, but must first consider all the 
representations received, and satisfy itself that its actions are reasonable in all the 
circumstances.  In some instances unresolved objections may result in a public 
inquiry to consider whether the order should be made. 

 

Finance Director 

33. To be completed post- community council draft, prior to decision making. 

  

FOR DELEGATED APPROVAL 

Under the powers delegated to me in accordance with the Council’s Financial 
Regulations, I authorise action in accordance with the recommendation contained in 
the above report. 

 

 

Signature …………………………………………………  
                 Cabinet member for environment, transport and recycling 

 

Date   ……………….. 

 

16



 
 
 

  

APPENDICES 
 
No.  Title  
Appendix  A Final detailed design (Lucas Gardens area) 
Appendix  B Final detailed design (Southampton Way area) 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background Papers Held At Contact 
Lucas Gardens and Southampton 
Way consultation report  
(1032 Consultation Report) 

160 Tooley Street Tim Walker (020 7525 2021) 

Parking and Enforcement Plan 160 Tooley Street Tim Walker (020 7525 2021) 
Correspondence of final 
representations 

160 Tooley Street Tim Walker (020 7525 2021) 

 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Des Waters, Head of Public Realm 

Report Author Tim Walker, Senior Engineer 

Version Final 

Dated 9 June  2011 

Key Decision Yes If yes, date appeared 
on forward plan April 2011 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 

Road network and parking business 
unit manager Yes No 

Strategic Director of Communities, 
Law & Governance Yes Yes 

Finance Director Yes  No 

Date final report sent to Community Council Team 14 June 2011 

 

17



LG/SW parking consultation
Appendix 1
Southwark and London CPZs March 2011

Produced on behalf of London Borough of Southwark.
<L>MapScale

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009

by: <L>UserTextUsername

LEGEND

LG and SW consultaiton 
boundaries

Existing London borough C
(excluding Southwark)

Existing Southwark CPZ

Borough boundaries

18



Lu
ca

s 
G

ar
de

ns
 (L

G
)

C
on

tr
ol

le
d 

Pa
rk

in
g 

Zo
ne

P

P

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
0

w
w

w
.s

o
u

th
w

ar
k.

g
o

v.
u

k

1s
t 

an
d

 2
n

d
 s

ta
g

e 
p

ar
ki

n
g

 c
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n

Re
sid

en
ts

’ p
er

m
it

Lo
ad

in
g 

ba
y

D
isa

bl
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

Pa
y 

an
d 

di
sp

la
y

Ca
sh

le
ss

 p
ar

ki
ng

Ca
r c

lu
b 

ba
y

Ci
vi

l e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
of

fi
ce

r

H
o

w
 c

a
n

 I
 h

a
v
e
 m

y
 s

a
y
? 

Y
o

u
r 

v
ie

w
s 

co
u

n
t

W
e 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
th

at
 p

ar
ki

ng
 d

iffi
cu

lty
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
in

 y
ou

r 
ar

ea
 d

ue
 t

o 
di

sp
la

ce
m

en
t 

fr
om

 n
ea

rb
y 

EC
 C

PZ
 

an
d 

al
so

 f
ro

m
 o

th
er

 n
ea

rb
y 

C
PZ

s 

W
e 

ha
ve

 s
en

t 
th

is
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pa

ck
 t

o 
al

l r
es

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
as

 e
ve

ry
bo

dy
’s 

op
in

io
n 

co
un

ts
. 

W
e 

w
an

t 
to

 h
ea

r 
fr

om
 y

ou
 e

ve
n 

if 
yo

u 
do

 n
ot

 d
riv

e;
 

pa
rk

in
g 

w
ill

 a
ff

ec
t 

yo
u 

as
 a

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

or
 c

yc
lis

t 
an

d 
an

y 
vi

si
to

rs
 y

ou
 re

ce
iv

e.

Th
is

 is
 y

ou
r 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 t

o 
de

ci
de

 if
 y

ou
 w

ou
ld

 n
ow

 li
ke

 
yo

ur
 s

tr
ee

t 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

a 
C

PZ
. T

he
 in

cl
us

io
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

ro
ad

 
w

ill
 b

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 s

ev
er

al
 f

ac
to

rs
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

su
pp

or
t 

fr
om

 
lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 b
us

in
es

se
s,

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
ur

ve
y 

re
su

lts
 a

nd
 

th
e 

ne
ed

 t
o 

cr
ea

te
 a

 c
le

ar
 a

nd
 lo

gi
ca

l C
PZ

 b
ou

nd
ar

y.

H
o

w
 c

a
n

 I
 l

e
t 

y
o

u
 k

n
o

w
 m

y
 v

ie
w

s?
Th

e 
be

st
 w

ay
 t

o 
gi

ve
 f

ee
db

ac
k 

is
 b

y 
co

m
pl

et
in

g 
th

e 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
 o

nl
in

e 
or

 b
y 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
it 

to
 u

s 
by

 f
re

ep
os

t.
 

Pl
ea

se
 n

ot
e 

th
at

 y
ou

 s
ho

ul
d 

on
ly

 re
sp

on
d 

vi
a 

on
e 

m
et

ho
d,

 d
up

lic
at

e 
re

sp
on

se
s 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 t

he
 

fin
al

 a
na

ly
si

s.
 

W
e 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 h
ol

di
ng

 t
hr

ee
 p

ar
ki

ng
 e

xh
ib

iti
on

s 
w

he
re

 
yo

u 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 t

o 
di

sc
us

s 
th

e 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 y
ou

r 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 t

he
 n

et
w

or
k 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

te
am

.

• 
 Th

u
rs

d
ay

 1
6 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
0,

 4
p

m
 –

 8
p

m
So

ut
hw

ar
k 

To
w

n 
H

al
l, 

Ro
om

 A
2,

 P
ec

kh
am

 R
oa

d,
  

SE
5 

8U
B

• 
 Sa

tu
rd

ay
 8

 J
an

u
ar

y 
20

11
, 1

0a
m

 –
 2

p
m

El
m

in
gt

on
 T

RA
 ro

om
s,

 2
 O

w
ga

n 
C

lo
se

  
(o

ff
 B

en
hi

ll 
Ro

ad
), 

SE
5 

7S
H

• 
 Th

u
rs

d
ay

 1
3 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
20

11
, 4

.3
0p

m
 –

 8
p

m
So

ut
hw

ar
k 

To
w

n 
H

al
l, 

Ro
om

 B
, P

ec
kh

am
 R

oa
d,

  
SE

5 
8U

B

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 a
bo

ut
 t

he
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n,
 t

he
 

ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
, t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 o
r 

C
PZ

s 
pl

ea
se

 c
om

e 
an

d 
se

e 
us

 a
t 

th
e 

ex
hi

bi
tio

ns
 o

r 
vi

si
t 

ou
r 

w
eb

si
te

  
w

w
w

.s
o

u
th

w
ar

k.
g

o
v.

u
k/

p
ar

ki
n

g
Yo

u 
ca

n 
al

so
 p

ho
ne

: 0
20

 7
52

5 
20

21
/2

13
1 

or
em

ai
l p

ar
ki

n
g

re
vi

ew
@

so
u

th
w

ar
k.

g
o

v.
u

k

W
h

a
t 

h
a
p

p
e
n

s 
a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 
cl

o
se

s?
W

e 
w

ill
 a

na
ly

se
 a

ll 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
s 

on
 a

 s
tr

ee
t 

by
 

st
re

et
 b

as
is

 a
nd

 re
po

rt
 t

he
 d

ra
ft

 fi
nd

in
gs

 a
nd

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
ou

nc
il,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
  

ar
e 

w
el

co
m

e 
to

 a
tt

en
d.

Th
e 

fin
al

 re
po

rt
 a

nd
 a

ny
 fi

na
l d

es
ig

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

by
 t

he
 d

ire
ct

or
 f

or
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
in

 e
ar

ly
 

sp
rin

g.

Yo
u 

w
ill

 re
ce

iv
e 

a 
su

m
m

ar
y 

le
tt

er
 e

xp
la

in
in

g 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
re

su
lts

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ad
e.

 T
he

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

at
  

w
w

w
.s

o
u

th
w

ar
k.

g
o

v.
u

k/
p

ar
ki

n
g

 

Th
e 

co
n

su
lt

at
io

n
 c

lo
se

s 
o

n
 1

4 
Ja

n
u

ar
y 

20
11

.

P

Tr
an

sl
at

io
n

s

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t 
co

nt
ai

ns
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

pa
rk

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k.
 If

 y
ou

 re
qu

ire
 h

el
p 

w
ith

 
tr

an
sl

at
io

n 
or

 o
th

er
 f

or
m

at
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

au
di

o 
or

 la
rg

e 
pr

in
t,

 p
le

as
e 

vi
si

t 
th

e 
ad

dr
es

s 
be

lo
w

.

� �
��

��
�	

�

��

�
��

�
�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�	

���
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�!

��
"

�
#

��
��

$
�%

&'
��*

+�
�,

-�
��

��	
�.

��
�/

��
0

1
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

�2
��

3�
�

	
4�

��
��

��
"

��
0

5
���

��
��

4�
��

��
6

��
&�

��
��

�0
��

7�
��

��
��

��
�8

��
��

2
�

&�
9�


5
�:

�!
��

��
;�

��
��

��
��

��
�<

��
3�

��
�-

��
���

��"
��

=�
��

0
5

�'�

>
��

��

��

�
��
��
��
��	
�
�

����
�
�

���
�
�
��
���

���
��
��

���
��

��

�
�

��
��
��
��

���
���

���
 !"

��
�

"�
��
 �
�#
$�

���
��
%�

���

&
��
"�
�"
'�
�
(
�$
��

�
�	
��
��
$�

"
)�
��
��
��
%�
��	

��
�

��
��
�
 !*
+��
�
�$
� 
,�-

���
��

��

.�

� 
��
�%
��"

 �
�

#
�	

�

��

F
�&

�	
��

���
��

��
$

�!
��

�&
��

,�
%�

��
	

��

�

�	
��

��
&�

�

��

�

��

�
��

��
��

��
��

	
��


�
��

��
��

��
%�

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�#

��
��

$
�%

&'
��H

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

���
%I�

	
��

��
	

��
��

��
��

�
,�

��
�&

�

��

&�
��

��
��

�

��

�

��

��
	

�,
�


��
��

��
��

	
��

��
��

��
��

�,
�


�
��



�
�%

��
�&

��
��

��
��

��
:�?

��

�

��
��

�,
��

��
�$

��
�&

��
��

�

�&

��
!�


�
�'

�
� J

%�
��

��
�

K
��

��
��

	
��

���
��

���
��

��
�


���
?�

%	
��

��
�


��
��


�
I�

���
�


�

�%

��
��


�
��

�

�

��
��

��
�	

��
���

�#
��

��
$

�%
&'

�#
���

��

�

��
�M

��
�


��
��

�O
��

��
�%

��
��

���
��

��
��

O�
��

��
�%

��
?�

%	
��

���

�,

��
�@

�%
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

%�

�

��
%�

��
Q%

�

:��

��
�



�M
��



�
%�

��

O�

�%
�



�
��

�R�
�



�
�


'�

#
@�

��

�

�
T


�
��

��
��

	
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

?�
%	

��
�/

��

�

�%
��


�

�


�
%�

��
��


�
��

�
�@

�%
��

	
��

��
��

��
�#

��
��

$
�%

&'
�#

���

�

��
�%

�,
��

�%
��

��
��

��
��

��
�%

��
��

��
/�

��
��

�%
�


�?�
%	

��
�


���

�


�
��

	
��

�%
��

��
�/

��
��


�
�%

��
�%

��
��

:�@
�%

�?�
��

%�
��


�
��

�
�
��

�%�
��

�/
��

��
�I

��
	

��
��

��
��

�'
� �

�
�%

&�

�

>
��

��

�

��
#

��
��

$
�%

&O
��

&�
�@

�%
&�

��
	

��

�

%�
�



�
%��

��
&&

U�
��

��
�
�

��
�V

�%
�%'

�T
X�

%�
��

%�
Y	

��

�

��

��


��
��

%�
U	

��
��

���
��

U�
UM

��

�

%

��

��
��

��
��

�

�




���

��
��

�%�
��

�%
?
�

��
�M

U
	
U[

��

�

%�
&�

��
��

�?�
%&


U�
��

V�
	


�
%�

��
��

��
	

�&
�

�

��

%

��

�M
:�


Y�
?�

��
�[

�X
U�

�&
���

�%
�


��M
��

�%
��

��
��

��
M'

�
�

\
%�

��
��

�]
^_`

fj
m�p

qv
�y

fz
{|

�}
f~

��
�

��
��

��
f�

��
��

f�
��

��
��

�
��

f�
�]

���
���

���
m�

�_�
jm

�'
��

��
��

��
�m

��
_�

jm�
��

�]
��

�z
jm�

��
���

��
��

��
�z{

|� 
¡¢

�m�
£

p�¤
¥��

¦m
f¡

�j
m��

��
�§

~f
�j

m��
��

�¨
��

��
��©

���
_ª¢

��}
��

«��
��

��
f�

jm�
]�

�ª¬
'

��

�K
��

��

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	



A
pp

en
di

x
2

19



P
a
rk

in
g

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 lo

ok
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

ou
r 

pa
rk

in
g 

su
rv

ey
s 

an
d 

ha
ve

 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

 p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

de
si

gn
 f

or
 y

ou
r 

ar
ea

 t
ha

t 
w

e 
be

lie
ve

 w
ou

ld
 im

pr
ov

e 
pa

rk
in

g,
 lo

ad
in

g 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
. 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
tw

o 
pa

rt
s 

to
 o

ur
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
.

Pr
im

ar
ily

, w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 k
no

w
:

• 
if 

yo
u 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

• 
w

he
n 

yo
ur

 p
ar

ki
ng

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
oc

cu
r

• 
w

he
th

er
 y

ou
 s

up
po

rt
 t

he
 in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 C

PZ

A
dd

iti
on

al
ly,

 if
 a

 C
PZ

 w
as

 t
o 

be
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

, w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 k
no

w
:

• 
w

ha
t 

da
ys

 a
nd

 t
im

es
 t

he
 C

PZ
 s

ho
ul

d 
op

er
at

e
• 

 w
he

th
er

 o
ur

 p
ro

po
se

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
la

yo
ut

 (t
yp

e 
an

d 
po

si
tio

n 
of

 p
ar

ki
ng

 b
ay

s)
  

is
 s

ui
ta

bl
e

• 
 w

ha
t 

ch
an

ge
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

la
yo

ut
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 l
a
y
o

u
t

Pa
rk

in
g 

ba
ys

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
vi

si
on

al
ly

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
he

re
 

th
e 

ro
ad

 is
 s

af
e 

an
d 

w
id

e 
en

ou
gh

 t
o 

do
 s

o.
 In

 a
ll 

ot
he

r 
ar

ea
s 

w
e 

w
ill

 in
st

al
l d

ou
bl

e 
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

s 
(n

o 
w

ai
tin

g 
at

 
an

y 
tim

e)
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
ro

ad
 s

af
et

y 
by

 d
et

er
rin

g 
un

sa
fe

 
pa

rk
in

g 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

tr
af

fic
 fl

ow
. D

ou
bl

e 
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

s 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 in

st
al

le
d 

ov
er

 a
ll 

pr
iv

at
e 

dr
iv

ew
ay

s 
in

 t
he

 
ar

ea
 s

o 
th

at
 w

e 
ca

n 
en

fo
rc

e 
ac

ce
ss

 p
oi

nt
s 

24
 h

ou
rs

.

Pl
ea

se
 fi

nd
 e

nc
lo

se
d 

a 
m

ap
 w

hi
ch

 d
et

ai
ls

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
de

si
gn

 o
f 

th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

ba
ys

 in
 y

ou
r 

st
re

et
.

W
e 

w
el

co
m

e 
yo

ur
 s

ug
ge

st
io

ns
 a

bo
ut

 h
ow

 t
hi

s 
pr

op
os

al
 c

an
 b

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
. 

Th
e 

fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 a

sk
ed

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 s

ec
tio

n 
gi

ve
s 

yo
u 

m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 t
he

 t
yp

e 
of

 p
ar

ki
ng

 b
ay

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
ca

n 
in

st
al

l a
nd

 w
ha

t 
ty

pe
 o

f 
pe

rm
its

 t
ha

t 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 y
ou

.
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

h
o

u
rs

It 
is

 im
po

rt
an

t 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

if,
 a

nd
 w

he
n,

 y
ou

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

s.
 W

e 
w

ill
 lo

ok
 a

t 
yo

ur
 re

sp
on

se
s 

al
on

gs
id

e 
ou

r 
pa

rk
in

g 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y 

an
d 

du
ra

tio
n 

su
rv

ey
s 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
in

 t
he

 fi
na

l 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
. 

If 
th

e 
C

PZ
 is

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 a

nd
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

 w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 
kn

ow
 w

hi
ch

 o
pt

io
n 

yo
u 

w
ou

ld
 p

re
fe

r. 

O
p

ti
o

n
 A

: M
o

n
 –

 F
ri

 f
ro

m
 8

.3
0a

m
 –

 6
.3

0p
m

A
ll 

da
y 

co
nt

ro
ls

 w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 re
si

de
nt

s,
 t

he
ir 

vi
si

to
rs

 
an

d 
lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
ha

ve
 p

rio
rit

y 
w

he
n 

pa
rk

in
g 

an
d 

pr
ev

en
t 

da
yt

im
e 

co
m

m
ut

er
 p

ar
ki

ng
. I

t 
w

ill
 in

vo
lv

e 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 

th
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

, b
ut

 w
ill

 
le

av
e 

ev
en

in
gs

 a
nd

 w
ee

ke
nd

s 
fr

ee
 f

ro
m

 c
on

tr
ol

s.
 T

he
 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 S

at
ur

da
y 

co
nt

ro
ls

 m
ay

 m
ea

n 
dr

iv
er

s 
pa

rk
 in

 
yo

ur
 ro

ad
s 

on
 S

at
ur

da
ys

.

O
p

ti
o

n
 B

: M
o

n
 –

 F
ri

 p
ar

t 
d

ay
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
  

10
.0

0a
m

 –
 2

.0
0p

m
A

lth
ou

gh
 th

is 
op

tio
n 

m
ay

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 d
ay

tim
e 

co
m

m
ut

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

, i
t w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

ag
ai

ns
t s

hi
ft

 w
or

ke
rs

 a
nd

 v
isi

to
rs

 p
ar

ki
ng

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 

an
d 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 th

ei
r j

ou
rn

ey
 b

y 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

sp
or

t.

W
e 

ha
ve

 s
tu

di
ed

 t
he

 p
at

te
rn

 o
f 

pa
rk

in
g 

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

fo
un

d 
th

at
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 n

on
-r

es
id

en
ts

 
(f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 s
hi

ft
 w

or
ke

rs
 a

nd
 s

ho
pp

er
s)

 p
ar

k 
th

er
e,

 
bu

t 
no

t 
fo

r 
a 

co
nv

en
tio

na
l w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
n 

op
tio

n 
fo

r 
fo

ur
 h

ou
r 

co
nt

ro
ls

, 
bu

t 
w

e 
re

ga
rd

 t
hi

s 
as

 t
he

 a
bs

ol
ut

e 
m

in
im

um
, a

nd
 

be
lie

ve
 t

he
re

 w
ill

 s
til

l b
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 if

 t
hi

s 
is

 c
ho

se
n.

If 
yo

u 
w

an
t 

pa
rk

in
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

 b
ut

 f
or

 h
ou

rs
 o

th
er

 t
ha

n 
th

e 
op

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
, y

ou
 s

ho
ul

d 
w

rit
e 

th
e 

ho
ur

s 
th

at
 

yo
u 

th
in

k 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 s

ho
ul

d 
op

er
at

e 
in

 t
he

 c
om

m
en

t 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 y
ou

r 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
.a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 y

ou
.

W
h

a
t 

is
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
? 

W
h

at
 i
s 

a 
C

PZ
? 

H
o

w
 c

an
 i
t 

h
el

p
?

A
 C

PZ
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

m
an

y 
be

ne
fit

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

, w
he

th
er

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

, c
yc

lis
ts

, 
m

ot
or

is
ts

 o
r 

th
os

e 
on

 b
us

es
.

• 
 G

re
at

er
 e

as
e 

in
 fi

nd
in

g 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

 c
lo

se
 t

o 
ho

m
e 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

vi
si

to
rs

.

• 
 Ea

si
er

 p
ar

ki
ng

 n
ea

r 
sh

op
s,

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

am
en

iti
es

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

w
ith

 n
ea

rb
y 

pa
y 

an
d 

di
sp

la
y 

ba
ys

, l
oa

di
ng

 a
nd

 d
is

ab
le

d 
ba

ys
.

• 
 Re

du
ce

d 
tr

af
fic

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

du
e 

to
 le

ss
 in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

pa
rk

in
g 

as
 a

ll 
ke

rb
 le

ng
th

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

ei
th

er
 

th
ro

ug
h 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 p

ar
ki

ng
 b

ay
s 

or
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s.

 
C

PZ
s 

al
re

ad
y 

re
du

ce
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
dr

iv
in

g 
in

to
 o

r 
th

ro
ug

h 
So

ut
hw

ar
k.

 

• 
 A

 s
af

er
 ro

ad
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
fo

r 
al

l m
ot

or
is

ts
, c

yc
lis

ts
 

an
d 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 d

ue
 t

o 
le

ss
 d

an
ge

ro
us

 p
ar

ki
ng

.

• 
 Ye

llo
w

 li
ni

ng
 a

t 
ju

nc
tio

ns
 w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
be

tt
er

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 

an
d 

pa
ve

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
cl

ea
r 

of
 p

ar
ke

d 
ca

rs
.

• 
 G

re
at

er
 a

cc
es

s 
fo

r 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

ve
hi

cl
es

, a
s 

w
e 

w
ill

 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

sa
fe

 w
id

th
 o

n 
na

rr
ow

 o
r 

bu
sy

 
ro

ad
s 

an
d 

po
w

er
s 

to
 a

ct
 o

n 
ve

hi
cl

es
 b

lo
ck

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 

to
 p

riv
at

e 
pr

op
er

ty
.

• 
 Im

pr
ov

in
g 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 b

y 
de

te
rr

in
g 

no
n 

es
se

nt
ia

l c
ar

 
jo

ur
ne

ys
 a

nd
 e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 m

ot
or

is
ts

 t
o 

th
in

k 
ab

ou
t 

us
in

g 
a 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

to
 t

he
 c

ar
 w

he
n 

w
al

ki
ng

, c
yc

lin
g 

or
 p

ub
lic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

qu
ic

ke
r 

an
d 

m
or

e 
co

nv
en

ie
nt

.

• 
 A

ss
is

tin
g 

co
nt

ro
l o

n 
fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
 

O
cc

up
ie

rs
 o

f 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 c
an

 b
e 

ex
cl

ud
ed

 
fr

om
 p

ur
ch

as
in

g 
a 

pe
rm

it 
if 

a 
C

PZ
 s

ur
ro

un
ds

 t
he

 
si

te
, t

he
re

fo
re

 re
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.

• 
 Im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ub
lic

 re
al

m
 d

ue
 t

o 
th

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 

pa
rk

ed
 c

ar
s.

Ea
st

 C
am

be
rw

el
l (

EC
) C

on
tr

ol
le

d 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Zo

ne
 (C

PZ
)  

w
as

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
 c

lo
se

 t
o 

yo
ur

 s
tr

ee
t 

in
 2

00
9 

as
 r

es
id

en
ts

  
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 w
er

e 
ex

pe
ri

en
ci

ng
 p

ar
ki

ng
 d

if
fi

cu
lt

ie
s.

W
e 

ha
ve

 n
ow

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 in

di
ca

ti
ng

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
pa

rk
in

g
 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
ha

ve
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
 n

ea
rb

y 
un

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
st

re
et

s.

W
e 

ar
e 

co
ns

ul
ti

ng
 y

ou
r 

ar
ea

 o
n 

th
e 

op
ti

on
s 

of
 in

tr
od

uc
in

g
 

a 
CP

Z.
 W

e 
w

an
t 

to
 k

no
w

 if
 y

ou
 s

up
po

rt
 t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
l t

o
 

in
tr

od
uc

e 
a 

CP
Z 

an
d,

 if
 s

o,
 w

he
th

er
 y

ou
 a

gr
ee

 w
it

h 
th

e 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
pa

rk
in

g 
la

yo
ut

.

Th
is

 le
afl

et
 e

xp
la

in
s:

• 
H

ow
 y

ou
 c

an
 h

av
e 

yo
ur

 s
ay

 a
nd

 w
ha

t 
ha

pp
en

s 
ne

xt
• 

W
ha

t 
is

 b
ei

ng
 p

ro
po

se
d,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

m
ap

• 
 W

ha
t 

is
 a

 C
PZ

? 
H

ow
 c

an
 it

 h
el

p?
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
re

qu
en

tl
y 

as
ke

d 
qu

es
ti

on
s

Th
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 in

te
nd

ed
 t

o 
he

lp
 y

ou
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

be
in

g 
m

ad
e 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
in

 y
ou

r 
ar

ea
 a

nd
  

so
 t

ha
t 

yo
u 

ca
n 

m
ak

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 w
he

n 
co

m
pl

et
in

g
 

th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
qu

es
ti

on
na

ir
e.

Yo
ur

 o
pi

ni
on

 is
 v

er
y 

im
po

rt
an

t 
to

 u
s,

 s
o 

pl
ea

se
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 
yo

u 
co

m
pl

et
e 

th
e 

qu
es

ti
on

na
ir

e 
on

lin
e 

or
 b

y 
po

st
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
ti

on
 c

lo
se

s 
on

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
4 

20
11

.

W
h

y
 h

a
v
e
 I

 r
e
ce

iv
e
d

  
th

is
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 p
a
ck

?

A
pp

en
di

x
2

20



P
ro

p
o

se
d

 L
u

ca
s 

G
a
rd

e
n

s 
(L

G
) 

C
o

n
tr

o
ll

e
d

 P
a
rk

in
g

 Z
o

n
e

A
pp

en
di

x
2

21



W
h

y
 a

re
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 u

p
o

n
 a

 C
P
Z
?

Th
e 

st
re

et
s 

in
 y

ou
r 

ar
ea

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tifi

ed
 b

y 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

an
d 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

pl
an

 (P
EP

) a
s 

su
ff

er
in

g 
fr

om
 a

 h
ig

h 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r 
pa

rk
in

g.
 

In
 2

00
6/

7 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t 

a 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
in

 y
ou

r 
ar

ea
. A

t 
th

at
 s

ta
ge

 t
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

er
e 

no
t 

in
 

fa
vo

ur
 o

f 
a 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
zo

ne
 (C

PZ
).

Th
e 

re
as

on
 t

o 
re

-c
on

su
lt 

is
 t

ha
t 

w
e 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
th

at
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

in
 y

ou
r 

st
re

et
 is

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
ha

ve
 b

ec
om

e 
m

or
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

si
nc

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 n

ea
rb

y 
st

re
et

s 
ag

re
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 

Ea
st

 C
am

be
rw

el
l (

EC
) C

PZ
 in

 2
00

9.

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
ls

o 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

to
 re

ce
iv

e 
co

rr
es

po
nd

en
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

su
bj

ec
t,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

la
rg

e 
pe

tit
io

n,
 re

qu
es

tin
g 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

re
-c

on
su

lt 
on

 t
he

 o
pt

io
n 

of
 a

 C
PZ

. 

W
h

a
t 

is
 a

 c
o

n
tr

o
ll

e
d

 p
a
rk

in
g

 z
o

n
e
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 d

o
e
s 

it
 o

p
e
ra

te
?

A
 C

PZ
 is

 a
n 

ar
ea

 in
 w

hi
ch

 a
ll 

on
-s

tr
ee

t 
pa

rk
in

g 
is

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d.

 
Pa

rk
in

g 
ba

ys
 a

re
 p

ai
nt

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ro

ad
 t

o 
sh

ow
 w

he
re

 it
 is

 
sa

fe
 t

o 
pa

rk
 a

nd
 a

ll 
ot

he
r 

ke
rb

 le
ng

th
s 

ar
e 

m
ar

ke
d 

w
ith

 
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

s.
 T

hi
s 

he
lp

s 
ke

ep
 t

he
 s

tr
ee

t 
sa

fe
 f

or
 a

ll 
ro

ad
 

us
er

s 
an

d 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 a
nd

 p
rio

rit
is

es
 p

ar
ki

ng
 t

o 
di

sa
bl

ed
 

pe
op

le
, r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 t
he

ir 
vi

si
to

rs
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
by

 
pr

ev
en

tin
g 

co
m

m
ut

er
 p

ar
ki

ng
.

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

C
PZ

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l h

ou
rs

, v
eh

ic
le

s 
ne

ed
 to

 d
isp

la
y 

a 
va

lid
 p

er
m

it,
 v

isi
to

r v
ou

ch
er

 o
r p

ay
 a

nd
 d

isp
la

y 
tic

ke
t a

cc
or

di
ng

 
to

 th
e 

ty
pe

 o
f b

ay
 th

ey
 a

re
 p

ar
ke

d 
in

. T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
w

er
 to

 is
su

e 
a 

pe
na

lty
 c

ha
rg

e 
no

tic
e 

to
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 p

ar
k 

in
 

C
PZ

 b
ay

s 
w

ith
ou

t t
he

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 p
er

m
it 

or
 ti

ck
et

.

W
h

a
t 

if
 w

e
 d

o
n

’t
 h

a
v
e
 a

 p
a
rk

in
g

 p
ro

b
le

m
  

in
 o

u
r 

st
re

e
t?

If 
th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
in

 y
ou

r 
st

re
et

 d
on

’t 
su

pp
or

t 
th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 C

PZ
 t

he
n 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l  

w
ill

 n
ot

 im
pl

em
en

t 
it 

in
 y

ou
r 

st
re

et
.

H
ow

ev
er

, i
n 

ou
r e

xp
er

ie
nc

e,
 th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
co

nt
ro

ls 
in

 o
ne

 s
tr

ee
t o

ft
en

 re
su

lts
 in

 d
isp

la
ce

m
en

t p
ar

ki
ng

 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

in
 a

dj
ac

en
t s

tr
ee

ts
, a

s 
co

m
m

ut
er

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

m
ot

or
ist

s 
m

ay
 m

ov
e 

th
ei

r c
ar

s 
to

 th
e 

ne
ar

es
t r

oa
d 

w
he

re
 

pa
rk

in
g 

is 
un

re
st

ric
te

d.
 C

on
se

qu
en

tly
, w

e 
ar

e 
no

t o
nl

y 
as

ki
ng

 
if 

yo
u 

ar
e 

in
 fa

vo
ur

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
ls 

no
w

, b
ut

 a
lso

, i
f y

ou
 a

re
 

no
t i

n 
fa

vo
ur

 a
t t

he
 m

om
en

t, 
w

he
th

er
 y

ou
 w

ou
ld

 c
ha

ng
e 

yo
ur

 
m

in
d 

if 
th

e 
ro

ad
 n

ex
t t

o 
yo

ur
s 

be
ca

m
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

d.
 

H
o

w
 d

o
 y

o
u

 b
a
la

n
ce

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

p
a
rk

in
g

 n
e
e
d

s?
W

ith
 n

ot
 e

no
ug

h 
pl

ac
es

 f
or

 e
ve

ry
on

e 
to

 p
ar

k,
 s

om
et

hi
ng

 
ha

s 
to

 b
e 

do
ne

 t
o 

m
an

ag
e 

th
is

. O
ve

r 
50

%
 o

f 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ha
ve

 c
ho

se
n 

to
 in

tr
od

uc
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
zo

ne
s 

(C
PZ

s)
 w

he
re

 t
he

y 
liv

e.
 

So
ut

hw
ar

k 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
a 

pa
rk

in
g 

pr
io

rit
y 

th
at

 
is

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 o
ur

 2
00

6 
pa

rk
in

g 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
pl

an
. 

It 
is

 o
ur

 p
ol

ic
y 

to
 g

iv
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

to
 d

is
ab

le
d 

bl
ue

 b
ad

ge
 

an
d 

co
m

pa
ni

on
 b

ad
ge

 h
ol

de
rs

, l
oc

al
 re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

th
en

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 v

is
ito

rs
. C

PZ
s 

ar
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 t
o 

de
te

r 
co

m
m

ut
er

s 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

pu
bl

ic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 u
se

.

W
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 t

o 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
ou

r 
lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
an

d 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 g

ro
w

th
 

in
 jo

bs
 a

nd
 t

he
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

s.
 A

s 
th

er
e 

is
 

a 
lim

ite
d 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
ke

rb
 s

pa
ce

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
pa

rk
in

g,
 w

e 
ai

m
 t

o 
ba

la
nc

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ith

 t
ho

se
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

nd
 t

he
ir 

cu
st

om
er

s.

W
h

a
t 

p
e
rm

it
s 

w
o

u
ld

 I
 b

e
 e

n
ti

tl
e
d

 t
o

?
R

es
id

en
t 

p
er

m
it

If 
yo

u 
liv

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 C
PZ

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
an

d 
yo

ur
 v

eh
ic

le
 is

 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 t
o 

th
at

 a
dd

re
ss

, y
ou

 w
ill

 b
e 

en
tit

le
d 

to
 a

 re
si

de
nt

 
pa

rk
in

g 
pe

rm
it.

 T
he

 o
nl

y 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

m
ay

 b
e 

if 
yo

ur
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

is
 a

 re
ce

nt
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

ha
s 

a 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

on
di

tio
n 

at
ta

ch
ed

 t
ha

t 
pr

ev
en

ts
 p

er
m

its
 b

ei
ng

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
.

Pe
rm

its
 a

re
 is

su
ed

 f
or

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 v
eh

ic
le

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
th

e 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
nu

m
be

r 
an

d 
a 

zo
ne

 id
en

tifi
ca

tio
n 

le
tt

er
 p

rin
te

d 
on

 it
. T

he
 p

er
m

it 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 a

 d
iff

er
en

t 
ve

hi
cl

e 
an

d 
it 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
us

ed
 t

o 
pa

rk
 in

 a
 p

er
m

it 
ba

y 
in

 a
 

di
ff

er
en

t 
C

PZ
. 

Pe
rm

its
 a

re
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 o
ne

 p
er

 p
er

so
n 

an
d 

to
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f 

th
re

e 
pe

r 
ho

us
eh

ol
d.

V
is

it
o

r 
p

er
m

it
s

Ea
ch

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 t

o 
bu

y 
vi

si
to

r 
pe

rm
its

 f
or

 u
se

 
by

 t
he

ir 
fr

ie
nd

s,
 f

am
ily

 o
r 

tr
ad

es
m

en
. R

es
id

en
ts

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 
pu

rc
ha

se
 v

is
ito

rs
’ p

er
m

its
 re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f 

w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t 

th
ey

 
ha

ve
 a

 re
si

de
nt

 p
er

m
it 

or
 a

 c
ar

. 1
00

 o
ne

-d
ay

 p
er

m
its

 c
an

 b
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
in

 a
ny

 c
al

en
da

r 
ye

ar
.

B
u

si
n

es
s 

p
er

m
it

s
Bu

si
ne

ss
es

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
fr

om
 a

n 
ad

dr
es

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 C
PZ

 w
ill

 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 b
uy

 p
er

m
its

 f
or

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
th

at
 a

re
 e

ss
en

tia
l t

o 
th

ei
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

 f
or

 t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 g
oo

ds
. T

he
y 

w
ill

 n
ot

 
be

 is
su

ed
 f

or
 t

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f 
co

m
m

ut
in

g 
to

 w
or

k.

W
il

l 
I 

h
a
v
e
 t

o
 b

u
y
 a

 p
a
rk

in
g

 p
e
rm

it
 i

f 
m

y
 s

tr
e
e
t 

b
e
co

m
e
s 

a
 C

P
Z
?

Ye
s,

 a
s 

a 
re

si
de

nt
 o

r 
bu

si
ne

ss
 in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
yo

u 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 

pu
rc

ha
se

 e
ith

er
 a

 re
si

de
nt

 o
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
er

m
it 

to
 p

ar
k 

in
 t

he
 

C
PZ

. P
er

m
its

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
to

 b
e 

di
sp

la
ye

d 
at

 a
ll 

tim
es

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

C
PZ

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l h

ou
rs

.

A
re

n
’t

 C
P
Z
s 

ju
st

 a
 m

o
n

e
y
 m

a
k
in

g
 s

ch
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

co
u

n
ci

l?
N

o,
 b

y 
la

w
, r

ev
en

ue
 g

en
er

at
ed

 f
ro

m
 C

PZ
s 

m
us

t 
be

 in
ve

st
ed

 
ba

ck
 in

to
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 re
la

te
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 s
uc

h 
as

 h
ig

hw
ay

s,
 

pa
rk

in
g 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t,

 s
ch

oo
l c

ro
ss

in
g 

pa
tr

ol
s,

 p
ub

lic
 re

al
m

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

af
er

 c
ar

 p
ar

ks
.

W
h

e
re

 w
il

l 
m

y
 v

is
it

o
rs

 p
a
rk

?
A

ll 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ar
e 

el
ig

ib
le

 t
o 

pu
rc

ha
se

 v
is

ito
r 

vo
uc

he
rs

 w
hi

ch
 

al
lo

w
 t

he
ir 

vi
si

to
rs

 t
o 

pa
rk

 in
 a

ny
 p

er
m

it 
or

 s
ha

re
d-

us
e 

ba
y 

in
 t

he
 C

PZ
. Y

ou
 o

nl
y 

ne
ed

 t
o 

us
e 

a 
vi

si
to

r 
pe

rm
it 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l h
ou

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
zo

ne
. E

ac
h 

vo
uc

he
r 

al
lo

w
s 

a 
w

ho
le

 
da

y’
s 

pa
rk

in
g.

  A
lte

rn
at

iv
el

y 
th

ey
 c

ou
ld

 p
ar

k 
in

 a
 p

ay
 a

nd
 

di
sp

la
y 

(o
r 

pa
y 

by
 p

ho
ne

) b
ay

.

Fr
e
q

u
e
n

tl
y
 a

sk
e
d

 q
u

e
st

io
n

s
W

h
a
t 

if
 I

 a
m

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 a
n

d
 h

a
v
e
 a

 b
lu

e
 b

a
d

g
e
?

Bl
ue

 b
ad

ge
 h

ol
de

rs
 c

an
 p

ar
k 

fr
ee

 a
nd

 w
ith

ou
t 

tim
e 

lim
it 

in
 

al
l s

ha
re

d 
us

e 
ba

ys
, p

ay
 a

nd
 d

is
pl

ay
 b

ay
s,

 y
el

lo
w

 li
ne

s 
(f

or
 a

 
m

ax
im

um
 o

f 
th

re
e 

ho
ur

s)
 a

nd
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 b
lu

e 
ba

dg
e 

ba
ys

. 
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l o
ff

er
s 

an
 ‘o

rig
in

’ d
is

ab
le

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 
bl

ue
 b

ad
ge

 h
ol

de
rs

. T
hi

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
an

y 
ne

w
 C

PZ
. I

f 
yo

u 
do

n’
t 

ha
ve

 a
 b

lu
e 

ba
dg

e 
yo

u 
w

ou
ld

 n
ee

d 
to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
a 

re
si

de
nt

’s 
pa

rk
in

g 
pe

rm
it.

W
e 

ca
n 

al
so

 in
st

al
l ‘

de
st

in
at

io
n’

 d
is

ab
le

d 
ba

ys
 c

lo
se

 t
o 

sh
op

s 
or

 lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s;

 t
he

se
 a

re
 u

su
al

ly
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 a
 

m
ax

im
um

 s
ta

y 
of

 f
ou

r 
ho

ur
s.

W
il

l 
a
 C

P
Z
 c

re
a
te

 s
tr

e
e
t 

cl
u

tt
e
r?

U
nf

or
tu

na
te

ly
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

s 
us

 t
o 

si
gn

 a
nd

 li
ne

 a
ll 

pa
rk

in
g 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
. T

he
re

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
 n

ee
d 

to
 in

st
al

l p
ay

 
an

d 
di

sp
la

y 
m

ac
hi

ne
s.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

a 
de

si
gn

 
gu

id
e 

to
 k

ee
p 

th
is

 t
o 

an
 a

bs
ol

ut
e 

m
in

im
um

.

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 y
e
ll

o
w

 l
in

e
s 

m
e
a
n

?
Si

ng
le

 y
el

lo
w

 li
ne

s 
– 

ar
e 

‘n
o 

w
ai

tin
g’

 re
st

ric
tio

ns
. T

he
y 

pr
ov

id
e 

pa
ss

in
g 

sp
ac

e 
fo

r o
nc

om
in

g 
tr

af
fic

 in
 n

ar
ro

w
 ro

ad
s 

an
d 

ar
e 

on
ly

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

ho
ur

s 
w

he
n 

tr
af

fic
 is

 
bu

sie
st

. T
he

y 
ca

n 
be

 u
se

d 
fo

r p
ar

ki
ng

 in
 th

e 
ev

en
in

g.

D
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s 

– 
ar

e 
‘n

o 
w

ai
tin

g’
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

 t
ha

t 
op

er
at

e 
at

 a
ny

 t
im

e 
(2

4/
7)

. T
he

y 
ar

e 
us

ua
lly

 in
st

al
le

d 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
an

d 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

sa
fe

ty
 a

t 
ju

nc
tio

ns
 a

nd
 t

o 
en

su
re

 a
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 re

fu
se

 v
eh

ic
le

s.

Lo
ad

in
g 

an
d 

un
lo

ad
in

g 
is

 a
llo

w
ed

 f
or

 u
p 

to
 4

0 
m

in
ut

es
 o

n 
an

y 
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

s 
w

he
re

 s
ig

ns
 d

o 
no

t 
in

di
ca

te
 o

th
er

w
is

e.

Ty
pe

 o
f 

pa
rk

in
g 

ba
y

Pe
rm

it 
ba

y

Sh
ar

ed
 u

se
 b

ay

Pa
y 

an
d 

di
sp

la
y 

ba
y

D
is

ab
le

d 
ba

y

Re
sid

en
t p

er
m

it 
ho

ld
er

 B
us

in
es

s p
er

m
it 

ho
ld

er
Vi

sit
or

 v
ou

ch
er

 h
ol

de
r 

Pa
y 

an
d 

di
sp

la
y 

or
 

pa
y 

by
 p

ho
ne

 v
is

it
or

 Bl
ue

 b
ad

ge
 h

ol
de

r

H
o

w
 m

u
ch

 w
il

l 
th

e
 p

e
rm

it
 c

o
st

?

W
h

e
re

 w
o

u
ld

 m
y
 p

e
rm

it
 a

ll
o

w
 m

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

?

M
on

 –
 F

ri
8

.3
0

am
 –

 6
.3

0
pm

  P
er

m
it

 h
ol

de
rs

or
P

ay
 a

t 
m

ac
hi

ne
ac

ro
ss

 r
oa

d
D

is
pl

ay
 t

ic
ke

t
M

ax
 s

ta
y 

4
 h

ou
rs

E
C

P
er

m
it

ho
ld

er
s

on
ly

M
on

 –
 F

ri
8

.3
0

am
 –

 6
.3

0
pmE

C

M
on

 –
 F

ri
8

.3
0

am
 –

 6
.3

0
pm

 
P

ay
 a

t 
m

ac
hi

ne
ac

ro
ss

 r
oa

d

D
is

pl
ay

 t
ic

ke
t

M
ax

 s
ta

y 
4

 h
ou

rs

D
is

ab
le

d 
ba

dg
e

ho
ld

er
s

on
ly

FR
EE

FR
EE

Ty
p

e 
o

f 
p

er
m

it
Re

si
de

nt

Bu
si

ne
ss

 

Re
si

de
nt

s’
 v

is
ito

rs

A
ve

ra
ge

 p
ay

 a
nd

 d
is

pl
ay

 c
ha

rg
e

D
is

co
u

n
t

75
%

 d
is

co
un

t 
fo

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
 

fu
el

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
or

 m
ot

or
cy

cl
es

 
 

 
 

 
   

n/
a

C
o

st
 o

f 
p

er
m

it
 

1m
on

th
   

3m
on

th
s 

 6
m

on
th

s 
 1

2m
on

th
s

£1
3.

60
   

   
 £

33
.4

5 
   

   
£5

2.
25

   
   

  £
99

.3
0

1m
on

th
   

   
  6

m
on

th
s 

   
  1

2m
on

th
s

£8
9.

90
   

   
   

£1
72

.4
0 

   
   

 £
33

4.
40

£1
2 

fo
r 

te
n,

 o
ne

-d
ay

 p
er

m
its

.  
(1

st
 b

oo
k)

£3
0 

fo
r 

te
n,

 o
ne

-d
ay

 p
er

m
its

  
(2

nd
  +

 b
oo

k 
pe

r 
ye

ar
)

£2
.7

0 
pe

r 
ho

ur

A
pp

en
di

x
2

22



Section A – Your parking experience

This section aims to understand if you think a CPZ is  
appropriate for your street

1. Do you have off-street parking?

   Yes     No

2. How many vehicles do you park on the street?

   None 

   1 

   2 or more 

   I don’t have a vehicle

3.  Please rate the ability to find an on-street parking space 
near this address? (Please circle) 

 a) Yourself  Easy 1 2 3 4 5  Difficult

 b) Your visitors Easy 1 2 3 4 5  Difficult

4.  What time of day do you or your visitors have difficulty 
parking? (Tick all that apply)

 Mon – Fri daytime   You    Your visitors 

 Mon – Fri evening   You    Your visitors

 Saturday     You    Your visitors

 Sunday     You    Your visitors 

 Never     You    Your visitors

5.  Do you agree with the proposed introduction of a 
controlled parking zone in your street?

   Yes     No    Undecided
 (go to Section B)  (go to question 6) (go to question 6)

 

6.  Would you change your mind if a CPZ was introduced in 
street next to yours?  
 
This is an important question if you don’t want a CPZ at 
the moment but consider parking to be quite difficult. 
A CPZ in the road next to yours is likely to increase the 
demand for space in your street.

   Yes     No    Undecided

Do you have any comments on your parking experience?

Have your say about parking

The following questions should only take you a 
few minutes to complete and will ask you:

A) whether or not you support a CPZ in your street
B) for your views on the proposed design
C)  for your views on the proposed days and  

hours of operation
D) for a few details about you

You can complete this survey online at 
www.surveymonkey.com/s/lgcpz

Please refer to the background document and 
proposed CPZ layout whilst completing the 
questionnaire.

Appendix 2
23



Section B – The proposed parking design

This section aims to understand your view on the type and 
position of parking that is proposed for your street.

It is important to answer these questions even if you don’t 
support the introduction of a CPZ because the council will
proceed based upon the majority view.

7.  Do you agree with the proposed position of the parking 
bays?

   Yes     No    Undecided

8.  Do you agree with the proposed type of parking bays?  
(eg. permit holders, loading, shared-use)

   Yes     No    Undecided

9.  If you answered ‘no’ or ‘undecided’, please suggest what 
type of bay you think there should be more of?  
(Tick all that apply)

   Permit holders   Destination disabled

   Shared-use   Pay and display

    Loading    On-street bicycle parking

   Short-stay    Car club bay
 
Do you have any additional comments regarding the 
proposed parking design?

Section C – Days and hours of the controlled parking 
zone

This section aims to understand your view on when the  
CPZ should operate. An explanation of the options can be 
found in the consultation pack.

11.  If parking controls were introduced, which of the 
following options would you prefer? 

   Option A - Monday – Friday from 8.30am – 6.30pm

   Option B - Monday – Friday from 10.00am – 2.00pm

Do you have an alternative suggestion?

Section D – About you

It’s important to know some details about you so that we 
can carefully analyse the results.

You dont need to supply your name but we do need to 
know your address so that your comments can be matched 
to your street.      

12. Are you a resident or business?

   Resident    Business   Both

Name: 

House / flat number: 

Street name: 

Postcode: 

P

P

Appendix 224



So
ut

ha
m

pt
on

 W
ay

 (S
W

)
C

on
tr

ol
le

d 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Zo

ne

P

P

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
0

w
w

w
.s

o
u

th
w

ar
k.

g
o

v.
u

k

1s
t 

an
d

 2
n

d
 s

ta
g

e 
p

ar
ki

n
g

 c
o

n
su

lt
at

io
n

Re
sid

en
ts

’ p
er

m
it

Lo
ad

in
g 

ba
y

D
isa

bl
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

Pa
y 

an
d 

di
sp

la
y

Ca
sh

le
ss

 p
ar

ki
ng

Ca
r c

lu
b 

ba
y

Ci
vi

l e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
of

fi
ce

r

H
o

w
 c

a
n

 I
 h

a
v
e
 m

y
 s

a
y
? 

Y
o

u
r 

v
ie

w
s 

co
u

n
t

W
e 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
th

at
 p

ar
ki

ng
 d

iffi
cu

lty
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
in

 y
ou

r 
ar

ea
 d

ue
 t

o 
di

sp
la

ce
m

en
t 

fr
om

 n
ea

rb
y 

EC
 C

PZ
 

an
d 

al
so

 f
ro

m
 o

th
er

 n
ea

rb
y 

C
PZ

s 

W
e 

ha
ve

 s
en

t 
th

is
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pa

ck
 t

o 
al

l r
es

id
en

ts
 a

nd
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
as

 e
ve

ry
bo

dy
’s 

op
in

io
n 

co
un

ts
. 

W
e 

w
an

t 
to

 h
ea

r 
fr

om
 y

ou
 e

ve
n 

if 
yo

u 
do

 n
ot

 d
riv

e;
 

pa
rk

in
g 

w
ill

 a
ff

ec
t 

yo
u 

as
 a

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

or
 c

yc
lis

t 
an

d 
an

y 
vi

si
to

rs
 y

ou
 re

ce
iv

e.

Th
is

 is
 y

ou
r 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 t

o 
de

ci
de

 if
 y

ou
 w

ou
ld

 n
ow

 li
ke

 
yo

ur
 s

tr
ee

t 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

a 
C

PZ
. T

he
 in

cl
us

io
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

ro
ad

 
w

ill
 b

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 s

ev
er

al
 f

ac
to

rs
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

su
pp

or
t 

fr
om

 
lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 b
us

in
es

se
s,

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
ur

ve
y 

re
su

lts
 a

nd
 

th
e 

ne
ed

 t
o 

cr
ea

te
 a

 c
le

ar
 a

nd
 lo

gi
ca

l C
PZ

 b
ou

nd
ar

y.

H
o

w
 c

a
n

 I
 l

e
t 

y
o

u
 k

n
o

w
 m

y
 v

ie
w

s?
Th

e 
be

st
 w

ay
 t

o 
gi

ve
 f

ee
db

ac
k 

is
 b

y 
co

m
pl

et
in

g 
th

e 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
 o

nl
in

e 
or

 b
y 

re
tu

rn
in

g 
it 

to
 u

s 
by

 f
re

ep
os

t.
 

Pl
ea

se
 n

ot
e 

th
at

 y
ou

 s
ho

ul
d 

on
ly

 re
sp

on
d 

vi
a 

on
e 

m
et

ho
d,

 d
up

lic
at

e 
re

sp
on

se
s 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 t

he
 

fin
al

 a
na

ly
si

s.
 

W
e 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 h
ol

di
ng

 t
hr

ee
 p

ar
ki

ng
 e

xh
ib

iti
on

s 
w

he
re

 
yo

u 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

th
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 t

o 
di

sc
us

s 
th

e 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 y
ou

r 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 t

he
 n

et
w

or
k 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

te
am

.

• 
 Th

u
rs

d
ay

 1
6 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
0,

 4
p

m
 –

 8
p

m
So

ut
hw

ar
k 

To
w

n 
H

al
l, 

Ro
om

 A
2,

 P
ec

kh
am

 R
oa

d,
  

SE
5 

8U
B

• 
 Sa

tu
rd

ay
 8

 J
an

u
ar

y 
20

11
, 1

0a
m

 –
 2

p
m

El
m

in
gt

on
 T

RA
 ro

om
s,

 2
 O

w
ga

n 
C

lo
se

  
(o

ff
 B

en
hi

ll 
Ro

ad
), 

SE
5 

7S
H

• 
 Th

u
rs

d
ay

 1
3 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
20

11
, 4

.3
0p

m
 –

 8
p

m
So

ut
hw

ar
k 

To
w

n 
H

al
l, 

Ro
om

 B
, P

ec
kh

am
 R

oa
d,

  
SE

5 
8U

B

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 a
bo

ut
 t

he
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n,
 t

he
 

ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
, t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 o
r 

C
PZ

s 
pl

ea
se

 c
om

e 
an

d 
se

e 
us

 a
t 

th
e 

ex
hi

bi
tio

ns
 o

r 
vi

si
t 

ou
r 

w
eb

si
te

  
w

w
w

.s
o

u
th

w
ar

k.
g

o
v.

u
k/

p
ar

ki
n

g
Yo

u 
ca

n 
al

so
 p

ho
ne

: 0
20

 7
52

5 
20

21
/2

13
1 

or
em

ai
l p

ar
ki

n
g

re
vi

ew
@

so
u

th
w

ar
k.

g
o

v.
u

k

W
h

a
t 

h
a
p

p
e
n

s 
a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 
cl

o
se

s?
W

e 
w

ill
 a

na
ly

se
 a

ll 
th

e 
re

sp
on

se
s 

on
 a

 s
tr

ee
t 

by
 

st
re

et
 b

as
is

 a
nd

 re
po

rt
 t

he
 d

ra
ft

 fi
nd

in
gs

 a
nd

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 t

o 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
ou

nc
il,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
  

ar
e 

w
el

co
m

e 
to

 a
tt

en
d.

Th
e 

fin
al

 re
po

rt
 a

nd
 a

ny
 fi

na
l d

es
ig

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

by
 t

he
 d

ire
ct

or
 f

or
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
in

 e
ar

ly
 

sp
rin

g.

Yo
u 

w
ill

 re
ce

iv
e 

a 
su

m
m

ar
y 

le
tt

er
 e

xp
la

in
in

g 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
re

su
lts

 a
nd

 t
he

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ad
e.

 T
he

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

at
  

w
w

w
.s

o
u

th
w

ar
k.

g
o

v.
u

k/
p

ar
ki

n
g

 

Th
e 

co
n

su
lt

at
io

n
 c

lo
se

s 
o

n
 1

4 
Ja

n
u

ar
y 

20
11

.

P

Tr
an

sl
at

io
n

s

Th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t 
co

nt
ai

ns
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t 

pa
rk

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k.
 If

 y
ou

 re
qu

ire
 h

el
p 

w
ith

 
tr

an
sl

at
io

n 
or

 o
th

er
 f

or
m

at
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

au
di

o 
or

 la
rg

e 
pr

in
t,

 p
le

as
e 

vi
si

t 
th

e 
ad

dr
es

s 
be

lo
w

.

� �
��

��
�	

�

��

�
��

�
�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�	

���
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�!

��
"

�
#

��
��

$
�%

&'
��*

+�
�,

-�
��

��	
�.

��
�/

��
0

1
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

�2
��

3�
�

	
4�

��
��

��
"

��
0

5
���

��
��

4�
��

��
6

��
&�

��
��

�0
��

7�
��

��
��

��
�8

��
��

2
�

&�
9�


5
�:

�!
��

��
;�

��
��

��
��

��
�<

��
3�

��
�-

��
���

��"
��

=�
��

0
5

�'�

>
��

��

��

�
��
��
��
��	
�
�

����
�
�

���
�
�
��
���

���
��
��

���
��

��

�
�

��
��
��
��

���
���

���
 !"

��
�

"�
��
 �
�#
$�

���
��
%�

���

&
��
"�
�"
'�
�
(
�$
��

�
�	
��
��
$�

"
)�
��
��
��
%�
��	

��
�

��
��
�
 !*
+��
�
�$
� 
,�-

���
��

��

.�

� 
��
�%
��"

 �
�

#
�	

�

��

F
�&

�	
��

���
��

��
$

�!
��

�&
��

,�
%�

��
	

��

�

�	
��

��
&�

�

��

�

��

�
��

��
��

��
��

	
��


�
��

��
��

��
%�

��

�

��
��

��
��

��
�#

��
��

$
�%

&'
��H

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
��

���
%I�

	
��

��
	

��
��

��
��

�
,�

��
�&

�

��

&�
��

��
��

�

��

�

��

��
	

�,
�


��
��

��
��

	
��

��
��

��
��

�,
�


�
��



�
�%

��
�&

��
��

��
��

��
:�?

��

�

��
��

�,
��

��
�$

��
�&

��
��

�

�&

��
!�


�
�'

�
� J

%�
��

��
�

K
��

��
��

	
��

���
��

���
��

��
�


���
?�

%	
��

��
�


��
��


�
I�

���
�


�

�%

��
��


�
��

�

�

��
��

��
�	

��
���

�#
��

��
$

�%
&'

�#
���

��

�

��
�M

��
�


��
��

�O
��

��
�%

��
��

���
��

��
��

O�
��

��
�%

��
?�

%	
��

���

�,

��
�@

�%
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

%�

�

��
%�

��
Q%

�

:��

��
�



�M
��



�
%�

��

O�

�%
�



�
��

�R�
�



�
�


'�

#
@�

��

�

�
T


�
��

��
��

	
��

��
��

��
���

��
���

?�
%	

��
�/

��

�

�%
��


�

�


�
%�

��
��


�
��

�
�@

�%
��

	
��

��
��

��
�#

��
��

$
�%

&'
�#

���

�

��
�%

�,
��

�%
��

��
��

��
��

��
�%

��
��

��
/�

��
��

�%
�


�?�
%	

��
�


���

�


�
��

	
��

�%
��

��
�/

��
��


�
�%

��
�%

��
��

:�@
�%

�?�
��

%�
��


�
��

�
�
��

�%�
��

�/
��

��
�I

��
	

��
��

��
��

�'
� �

�
�%

&�

�

>
��

��

�

��
#

��
��

$
�%

&O
��

&�
�@

�%
&�

��
	

��

�

%�
�



�
%��

��
&&

U�
��

��
�
�

��
�V

�%
�%'

�T
X�

%�
��

%�
Y	

��

�

��

��


��
��

%�
U	

��
��

���
��

U�
UM

��

�

%

��

��
��

��
��

�

�




���

��
��

�%�
��

�%
?
�

��
�M

U
	
U[

��

�

%�
&�

��
��

�?�
%&


U�
��

V�
	


�
%�

��
��

��
	

�&
�

�

��

%

��

�M
:�


Y�
?�

��
�[

�X
U�

�&
���

�%
�


��M
��

�%
��

��
��

��
M'

�
�

\
%�

��
��

�]
^_`

fj
m�p

qv
�y

fz
{|

�}
f~

��
�

��
��

��
f�

��
��

f�
��

��
��

�
��

f�
�]

���
���

���
m�

�_�
jm

�'
��

��
��

��
�m

��
_�

jm�
��

�]
��

�z
jm�

��
���

��
��

��
�z{

|� 
¡¢

�m�
£

p�¤
¥��

¦m
f¡

�j
m��

��
�§

~f
�j

m��
��

�¨
��

��
��©

���
_ª¢

��}
��

«��
��

��
f�

jm�
]�

�ª¬
'

��

�K
��

��

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
	



A
pp

en
di

x
3

25



P
a
rk

in
g

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 lo

ok
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

ou
r 

pa
rk

in
g 

su
rv

ey
s 

an
d 

ha
ve

 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

 p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

de
si

gn
 f

or
 y

ou
r 

ar
ea

 t
ha

t 
w

e 
be

lie
ve

 w
ou

ld
 im

pr
ov

e 
pa

rk
in

g,
 lo

ad
in

g 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
. 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
tw

o 
pa

rt
s 

to
 o

ur
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
.

Pr
im

ar
ily

, w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 k
no

w
:

• 
if 

yo
u 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

• 
w

he
n 

yo
ur

 p
ar

ki
ng

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
oc

cu
r

• 
w

he
th

er
 y

ou
 s

up
po

rt
 t

he
 in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 C

PZ

A
dd

iti
on

al
ly,

 if
 a

 C
PZ

 w
as

 t
o 

be
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

, w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 k
no

w
:

• 
w

ha
t 

da
ys

 a
nd

 t
im

es
 t

he
 C

PZ
 s

ho
ul

d 
op

er
at

e
• 

 w
he

th
er

 o
ur

 p
ro

po
se

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
la

yo
ut

 (t
yp

e 
an

d 
po

si
tio

n 
of

 p
ar

ki
ng

 b
ay

s)
  

is
 s

ui
ta

bl
e

• 
 w

ha
t 

ch
an

ge
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

la
yo

ut
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 l
a
y
o

u
t

Pa
rk

in
g 

ba
ys

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
vi

si
on

al
ly

 lo
ca

te
d 

w
he

re
 

th
e 

ro
ad

 is
 s

af
e 

an
d 

w
id

e 
en

ou
gh

 t
o 

do
 s

o.
 In

 a
ll 

ot
he

r 
ar

ea
s 

w
e 

w
ill

 in
st

al
l d

ou
bl

e 
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

s 
(n

o 
w

ai
tin

g 
at

 
an

y 
tim

e)
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
ro

ad
 s

af
et

y 
by

 d
et

er
rin

g 
un

sa
fe

 
pa

rk
in

g 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

tr
af

fic
 fl

ow
. D

ou
bl

e 
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

s 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 in

st
al

le
d 

ov
er

 a
ll 

pr
iv

at
e 

dr
iv

ew
ay

s 
in

 t
he

 
ar

ea
 s

o 
th

at
 w

e 
ca

n 
en

fo
rc

e 
ac

ce
ss

 p
oi

nt
s 

24
 h

ou
rs

.

Pl
ea

se
 fi

nd
 e

nc
lo

se
d 

a 
m

ap
 w

hi
ch

 d
et

ai
ls

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
de

si
gn

 o
f 

th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

ba
ys

 in
 y

ou
r 

st
re

et
.

W
e 

w
el

co
m

e 
yo

ur
 s

ug
ge

st
io

ns
 a

bo
ut

 h
ow

 t
hi

s 
pr

op
os

al
 c

an
 b

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
. 

Th
e 

fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 a

sk
ed

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 s

ec
tio

n 
gi

ve
s 

yo
u 

m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 t
he

 t
yp

e 
of

 p
ar

ki
ng

 b
ay

s 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l 
ca

n 
in

st
al

l a
nd

 w
ha

t 
ty

pe
 o

f 
pe

rm
its

 t
ha

t 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 y
ou

.
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

h
o

u
rs

It 
is

 im
po

rt
an

t 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

if,
 a

nd
 w

he
n,

 y
ou

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

s.
 W

e 
w

ill
 lo

ok
 a

t 
yo

ur
 re

sp
on

se
s 

al
on

gs
id

e 
ou

r 
pa

rk
in

g 
oc

cu
pa

nc
y 

an
d 

du
ra

tio
n 

su
rv

ey
s 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
in

 t
he

 fi
na

l 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
. 

If 
th

e 
C

PZ
 is

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 a

nd
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

 w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 
kn

ow
 w

hi
ch

 o
pt

io
n 

yo
u 

w
ou

ld
 p

re
fe

r. 

O
p

ti
o

n
 A

: M
o

n
 –

 F
ri

 f
ro

m
 8

.3
0a

m
 –

 6
.3

0p
m

A
ll 

da
y 

co
nt

ro
ls

 w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 re
si

de
nt

s,
 t

he
ir 

vi
si

to
rs

 
an

d 
lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
ha

ve
 p

rio
rit

y 
w

he
n 

pa
rk

in
g 

an
d 

pr
ev

en
t 

da
yt

im
e 

co
m

m
ut

er
 p

ar
ki

ng
. I

t 
w

ill
 in

vo
lv

e 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 

th
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

, b
ut

 w
ill

 
le

av
e 

ev
en

in
gs

 a
nd

 w
ee

ke
nd

s 
fr

ee
 f

ro
m

 c
on

tr
ol

s.
 T

he
 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 S

at
ur

da
y 

co
nt

ro
ls

 m
ay

 m
ea

n 
dr

iv
er

s 
pa

rk
 in

 
yo

ur
 ro

ad
s 

on
 S

at
ur

da
ys

.

O
p

ti
o

n
 B

: M
o

n
 –

 F
ri

 p
ar

t 
d

ay
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
  

10
.0

0a
m

 –
 2

.0
0p

m
A

lth
ou

gh
 th

is 
op

tio
n 

m
ay

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

 d
ay

tim
e 

co
m

m
ut

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

, i
t w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

ag
ai

ns
t s

hi
ft

 w
or

ke
rs

 a
nd

 v
isi

to
rs

 p
ar

ki
ng

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 

an
d 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 th

ei
r j

ou
rn

ey
 b

y 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

sp
or

t.

W
e 

ha
ve

 s
tu

di
ed

 t
he

 p
at

te
rn

 o
f 

pa
rk

in
g 

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

an
d 

fo
un

d 
th

at
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 n

on
-r

es
id

en
ts

 
(f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 s
hi

ft
 w

or
ke

rs
 a

nd
 s

ho
pp

er
s)

 p
ar

k 
th

er
e,

 
bu

t 
no

t 
fo

r 
a 

co
nv

en
tio

na
l w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
n 

op
tio

n 
fo

r 
fo

ur
 h

ou
r 

co
nt

ro
ls

, 
bu

t 
w

e 
re

ga
rd

 t
hi

s 
as

 t
he

 a
bs

ol
ut

e 
m

in
im

um
, a

nd
 

be
lie

ve
 t

he
re

 w
ill

 s
til

l b
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 if

 t
hi

s 
is

 c
ho

se
n.

If 
yo

u 
w

an
t 

pa
rk

in
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

 b
ut

 f
or

 h
ou

rs
 o

th
er

 t
ha

n 
th

e 
op

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
, y

ou
 s

ho
ul

d 
w

rit
e 

th
e 

ho
ur

s 
th

at
 

yo
u 

th
in

k 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

ls
 s

ho
ul

d 
op

er
at

e 
in

 t
he

 c
om

m
en

t 
se

ct
io

n 
of

 y
ou

r 
qu

es
tio

nn
ai

re
.a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 y

ou
.

W
h

a
t 

is
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
? 

W
h

at
 i
s 

a 
C

PZ
? 

H
o

w
 c

an
 i
t 

h
el

p
?

A
 C

PZ
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

m
an

y 
be

ne
fit

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

, w
he

th
er

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

, c
yc

lis
ts

, 
m

ot
or

is
ts

 o
r 

th
os

e 
on

 b
us

es
.

• 
 G

re
at

er
 e

as
e 

in
 fi

nd
in

g 
pa

rk
in

g 
sp

ac
es

 c
lo

se
 t

o 
ho

m
e 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

vi
si

to
rs

.

• 
 Ea

si
er

 p
ar

ki
ng

 n
ea

r 
sh

op
s,

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

am
en

iti
es

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 a

re
a 

w
ith

 n
ea

rb
y 

pa
y 

an
d 

di
sp

la
y 

ba
ys

, l
oa

di
ng

 a
nd

 d
is

ab
le

d 
ba

ys
.

• 
 Re

du
ce

d 
tr

af
fic

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

du
e 

to
 le

ss
 in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

pa
rk

in
g 

as
 a

ll 
ke

rb
 le

ng
th

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

ei
th

er
 

th
ro

ug
h 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 p

ar
ki

ng
 b

ay
s 

or
 y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s.

 
C

PZ
s 

al
re

ad
y 

re
du

ce
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
dr

iv
in

g 
in

to
 o

r 
th

ro
ug

h 
So

ut
hw

ar
k.

 

• 
 A

 s
af

er
 ro

ad
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
fo

r 
al

l m
ot

or
is

ts
, c

yc
lis

ts
 

an
d 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 d

ue
 t

o 
le

ss
 d

an
ge

ro
us

 p
ar

ki
ng

.

• 
 Ye

llo
w

 li
ni

ng
 a

t 
ju

nc
tio

ns
 w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
be

tt
er

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 

an
d 

pa
ve

m
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
cl

ea
r 

of
 p

ar
ke

d 
ca

rs
.

• 
 G

re
at

er
 a

cc
es

s 
fo

r 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

ve
hi

cl
es

, a
s 

w
e 

w
ill

 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

sa
fe

 w
id

th
 o

n 
na

rr
ow

 o
r 

bu
sy

 
ro

ad
s 

an
d 

po
w

er
s 

to
 a

ct
 o

n 
ve

hi
cl

es
 b

lo
ck

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 

to
 p

riv
at

e 
pr

op
er

ty
.

• 
 Im

pr
ov

in
g 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 b

y 
de

te
rr

in
g 

no
n 

es
se

nt
ia

l c
ar

 
jo

ur
ne

ys
 a

nd
 e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 m

ot
or

is
ts

 t
o 

th
in

k 
ab

ou
t 

us
in

g 
a 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

to
 t

he
 c

ar
 w

he
n 

w
al

ki
ng

, c
yc

lin
g 

or
 p

ub
lic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 m

ig
ht

 b
e 

qu
ic

ke
r 

an
d 

m
or

e 
co

nv
en

ie
nt

.

• 
 A

ss
is

tin
g 

co
nt

ro
l o

n 
fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
 

O
cc

up
ie

rs
 o

f 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 c
an

 b
e 

ex
cl

ud
ed

 
fr

om
 p

ur
ch

as
in

g 
a 

pe
rm

it 
if 

a 
C

PZ
 s

ur
ro

un
ds

 t
he

 
si

te
, t

he
re

fo
re

 re
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.

• 
 Im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ub
lic

 re
al

m
 d

ue
 t

o 
th

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 

pa
rk

ed
 c

ar
s.

Ea
st

 C
am

be
rw

el
l (

EC
) C

on
tr

ol
le

d 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Zo

ne
 (C

PZ
)  

w
as

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
 c

lo
se

 t
o 

yo
ur

 s
tr

ee
t 

in
 2

00
9 

as
 r

es
id

en
ts

  
an

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 w
er

e 
ex

pe
ri

en
ci

ng
 p

ar
ki

ng
 d

if
fi

cu
lt

ie
s.

W
e 

ha
ve

 n
ow

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 in

di
ca

ti
ng

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
pa

rk
in

g
 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
ha

ve
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
 n

ea
rb

y 
un

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
st

re
et

s.

W
e 

ar
e 

co
ns

ul
ti

ng
 y

ou
r 

ar
ea

 o
n 

th
e 

op
ti

on
s 

of
 in

tr
od

uc
in

g
 

a 
CP

Z.
 W

e 
w

an
t 

to
 k

no
w

 if
 y

ou
 s

up
po

rt
 t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
l t

o
 

in
tr

od
uc

e 
a 

CP
Z 

an
d,

 if
 s

o,
 w

he
th

er
 y

ou
 a

gr
ee

 w
it

h 
th

e 
pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
pa

rk
in

g 
la

yo
ut

.

Th
is

 le
afl

et
 e

xp
la

in
s:

• 
H

ow
 y

ou
 c

an
 h

av
e 

yo
ur

 s
ay

 a
nd

 w
ha

t 
ha

pp
en

s 
ne

xt
• 

W
ha

t 
is

 b
ei

ng
 p

ro
po

se
d,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

m
ap

• 
 W

ha
t 

is
 a

 C
PZ

? 
H

ow
 c

an
 it

 h
el

p?
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 f
re

qu
en

tl
y 

as
ke

d 
qu

es
ti

on
s

Th
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 in

te
nd

ed
 t

o 
he

lp
 y

ou
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

be
in

g 
m

ad
e 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
in

 y
ou

r 
ar

ea
 a

nd
  

so
 t

ha
t 

yo
u 

ca
n 

m
ak

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 w
he

n 
co

m
pl

et
in

g
 

th
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
qu

es
ti

on
na

ir
e.

Yo
ur

 o
pi

ni
on

 is
 v

er
y 

im
po

rt
an

t 
to

 u
s,

 s
o 

pl
ea

se
 m

ak
e 

su
re

 
yo

u 
co

m
pl

et
e 

th
e 

qu
es

ti
on

na
ir

e 
on

lin
e 

or
 b

y 
po

st
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
ti

on
 c

lo
se

s 
on

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
4 

20
11

.

W
h

y
 h

a
v
e
 I

 r
e
ce

iv
e
d

  
th

is
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 p
a
ck

?

A
pp

en
di

x
3

26



P
ro

p
o

se
d

 S
o

u
th

a
m

p
to

n
 W

a
y
 (

S
W

) 
C

o
n

tr
o

ll
e
d

 P
a
rk

in
g

 Z
o

n
e

A
pp

en
di

x
3

27



W
h

y
 a

re
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 u

p
o

n
 a

 C
P
Z
?

Th
e 

st
re

et
s 

in
 y

ou
r 

ar
ea

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tifi

ed
 b

y 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

an
d 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

pl
an

 (P
EP

) a
s 

su
ff

er
in

g 
fr

om
 a

 h
ig

h 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r 
pa

rk
in

g.
 

In
 2

00
6/

7 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t 

a 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
in

 y
ou

r 
ar

ea
. A

t 
th

at
 s

ta
ge

 t
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

er
e 

no
t 

in
 

fa
vo

ur
 o

f 
a 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
zo

ne
 (C

PZ
).

Th
e 

re
as

on
 t

o 
re

-c
on

su
lt 

is
 t

ha
t 

w
e 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
th

at
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

in
 y

ou
r 

st
re

et
 is

 li
ke

ly
 t

o 
ha

ve
 b

ec
om

e 
m

or
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

si
nc

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 n

ea
rb

y 
st

re
et

s 
ag

re
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 

Ea
st

 C
am

be
rw

el
l (

EC
) C

PZ
 in

 2
00

9.

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
ls

o 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

to
 re

ce
iv

e 
co

rr
es

po
nd

en
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

su
bj

ec
t,

 re
qu

es
tin

g 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l r
e-

co
ns

ul
t 

on
 t

he
 o

pt
io

n 
of

 
a 

C
PZ

. 

W
h

a
t 

is
 a

 c
o

n
tr

o
ll

e
d

 p
a
rk

in
g

 z
o

n
e
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 d

o
e
s 

it
 o

p
e
ra

te
?

A
 C

PZ
 is

 a
n 

ar
ea

 in
 w

hi
ch

 a
ll 

on
-s

tr
ee

t 
pa

rk
in

g 
is

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d.

 
Pa

rk
in

g 
ba

ys
 a

re
 p

ai
nt

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ro

ad
 t

o 
sh

ow
 w

he
re

 it
 is

 
sa

fe
 t

o 
pa

rk
 a

nd
 a

ll 
ot

he
r 

ke
rb

 le
ng

th
s 

ar
e 

m
ar

ke
d 

w
ith

 
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

s.
 T

hi
s 

he
lp

s 
ke

ep
 t

he
 s

tr
ee

t 
sa

fe
 f

or
 a

ll 
ro

ad
 

us
er

s 
an

d 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 a
nd

 p
rio

rit
is

es
 p

ar
ki

ng
 t

o 
di

sa
bl

ed
 

pe
op

le
, r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 t
he

ir 
vi

si
to

rs
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
by

 
pr

ev
en

tin
g 

co
m

m
ut

er
 p

ar
ki

ng
.

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

C
PZ

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l h

ou
rs

, v
eh

ic
le

s 
ne

ed
 to

 d
isp

la
y 

a 
va

lid
 p

er
m

it,
 v

isi
to

r v
ou

ch
er

 o
r p

ay
 a

nd
 d

isp
la

y 
tic

ke
t a

cc
or

di
ng

 
to

 th
e 

ty
pe

 o
f b

ay
 th

ey
 a

re
 p

ar
ke

d 
in

. T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

th
e 

po
w

er
 to

 is
su

e 
a 

pe
na

lty
 c

ha
rg

e 
no

tic
e 

to
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 p

ar
k 

in
 

C
PZ

 b
ay

s 
w

ith
ou

t t
he

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 p
er

m
it 

or
 ti

ck
et

.

W
h

a
t 

if
 w

e
 d

o
n

’t
 h

a
v
e
 a

 p
a
rk

in
g

 p
ro

b
le

m
  

in
 o

u
r 

st
re

e
t?

If 
th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f 
re

sp
on

de
nt

s 
in

 y
ou

r 
st

re
et

 d
on

’t 
su

pp
or

t 
th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 C

PZ
 t

he
n 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l  

w
ill

 n
ot

 im
pl

em
en

t 
it 

in
 y

ou
r 

st
re

et
.

H
ow

ev
er

, i
n 

ou
r e

xp
er

ie
nc

e,
 th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
co

nt
ro

ls 
in

 o
ne

 s
tr

ee
t o

ft
en

 re
su

lts
 in

 d
isp

la
ce

m
en

t p
ar

ki
ng

 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

in
 a

dj
ac

en
t s

tr
ee

ts
, a

s 
co

m
m

ut
er

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

m
ot

or
ist

s 
m

ay
 m

ov
e 

th
ei

r c
ar

s 
to

 th
e 

ne
ar

es
t r

oa
d 

w
he

re
 

pa
rk

in
g 

is 
un

re
st

ric
te

d.
 C

on
se

qu
en

tly
, w

e 
ar

e 
no

t o
nl

y 
as

ki
ng

 
if 

yo
u 

ar
e 

in
 fa

vo
ur

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
ls 

no
w

, b
ut

 a
lso

, i
f y

ou
 a

re
 

no
t i

n 
fa

vo
ur

 a
t t

he
 m

om
en

t, 
w

he
th

er
 y

ou
 w

ou
ld

 c
ha

ng
e 

yo
ur

 
m

in
d 

if 
th

e 
ro

ad
 n

ex
t t

o 
yo

ur
s 

be
ca

m
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

d.
 

H
o

w
 d

o
 y

o
u

 b
a
la

n
ce

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

p
a
rk

in
g

 n
e
e
d

s?
W

ith
 n

ot
 e

no
ug

h 
pl

ac
es

 f
or

 e
ve

ry
on

e 
to

 p
ar

k,
 s

om
et

hi
ng

 
ha

s 
to

 b
e 

do
ne

 t
o 

m
an

ag
e 

th
is

. O
ve

r 
50

%
 o

f 
re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

ha
ve

 c
ho

se
n 

to
 in

tr
od

uc
e 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
zo

ne
s 

(C
PZ

s)
 w

he
re

 t
he

y 
liv

e.
 

So
ut

hw
ar

k 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
a 

pa
rk

in
g 

pr
io

rit
y 

th
at

 
is

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 o
ur

 2
00

6 
pa

rk
in

g 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
pl

an
. 

It 
is

 o
ur

 p
ol

ic
y 

to
 g

iv
e 

pr
io

rit
y 

to
 d

is
ab

le
d 

bl
ue

 b
ad

ge
 

an
d 

co
m

pa
ni

on
 b

ad
ge

 h
ol

de
rs

, l
oc

al
 re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

th
en

 
bu

si
ne

ss
 v

is
ito

rs
. C

PZ
s 

ar
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 t
o 

de
te

r 
co

m
m

ut
er

s 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

pu
bl

ic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 u
se

.

W
e 

ar
e 

al
so

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 t

o 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 
vi

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
ou

r 
lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
an

d 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 g

ro
w

th
 

in
 jo

bs
 a

nd
 t

he
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

s.
 A

s 
th

er
e 

is
 

a 
lim

ite
d 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
ke

rb
 s

pa
ce

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
pa

rk
in

g,
 w

e 
ai

m
 t

o 
ba

la
nc

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 re

si
de

nt
s 

w
ith

 t
ho

se
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

nd
 t

he
ir 

cu
st

om
er

s.

W
h

a
t 

p
e
rm

it
s 

w
o

u
ld

 I
 b

e
 e

n
ti

tl
e
d

 t
o

?
R

es
id

en
t 

p
er

m
it

If 
yo

u 
liv

e 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 C
PZ

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
an

d 
yo

ur
 v

eh
ic

le
 is

 
re

gi
st

er
ed

 t
o 

th
at

 a
dd

re
ss

, y
ou

 w
ill

 b
e 

en
tit

le
d 

to
 a

 re
si

de
nt

 
pa

rk
in

g 
pe

rm
it.

 T
he

 o
nl

y 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

m
ay

 b
e 

if 
yo

ur
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

is
 a

 re
ce

nt
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

ha
s 

a 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

on
di

tio
n 

at
ta

ch
ed

 t
ha

t 
pr

ev
en

ts
 p

er
m

its
 b

ei
ng

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
.

Pe
rm

its
 a

re
 is

su
ed

 f
or

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 v
eh

ic
le

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
th

e 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
nu

m
be

r 
an

d 
a 

zo
ne

 id
en

tifi
ca

tio
n 

le
tt

er
 p

rin
te

d 
on

 it
. T

he
 p

er
m

it 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 a

 d
iff

er
en

t 
ve

hi
cl

e 
an

d 
it 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
us

ed
 t

o 
pa

rk
 in

 a
 p

er
m

it 
ba

y 
in

 a
 

di
ff

er
en

t 
C

PZ
. 

Pe
rm

its
 a

re
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 o
ne

 p
er

 p
er

so
n 

an
d 

to
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f 

th
re

e 
pe

r 
ho

us
eh

ol
d.

V
is

it
o

r 
p

er
m

it
s

Ea
ch

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 t

o 
bu

y 
vi

si
to

r 
pe

rm
its

 f
or

 u
se

 
by

 t
he

ir 
fr

ie
nd

s,
 f

am
ily

 o
r 

tr
ad

es
m

en
. R

es
id

en
ts

 a
re

 a
bl

e 
to

 
pu

rc
ha

se
 v

is
ito

rs
’ p

er
m

its
 re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f 

w
he

th
er

 o
r 

no
t 

th
ey

 
ha

ve
 a

 re
si

de
nt

 p
er

m
it 

or
 a

 c
ar

. 1
00

 o
ne

-d
ay

 p
er

m
its

 c
an

 b
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
in

 a
ny

 c
al

en
da

r 
ye

ar
.

B
u

si
n

es
s 

p
er

m
it

s
Bu

si
ne

ss
es

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
fr

om
 a

n 
ad

dr
es

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 C
PZ

 w
ill

 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 b
uy

 p
er

m
its

 f
or

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
th

at
 a

re
 e

ss
en

tia
l t

o 
th

ei
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

 f
or

 t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 g
oo

ds
. T

he
y 

w
ill

 n
ot

 
be

 is
su

ed
 f

or
 t

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f 
co

m
m

ut
in

g 
to

 w
or

k.

W
il

l 
I 

h
a
v
e
 t

o
 b

u
y
 a

 p
a
rk

in
g

 p
e
rm

it
 i

f 
m

y
 s

tr
e
e
t 

b
e
co

m
e
s 

a
 C

P
Z
?

Ye
s,

 a
s 

a 
re

si
de

nt
 o

r 
bu

si
ne

ss
 in

 t
he

 a
re

a 
yo

u 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 

pu
rc

ha
se

 e
ith

er
 a

 re
si

de
nt

 o
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
er

m
it 

to
 p

ar
k 

in
 t

he
 

C
PZ

. P
er

m
its

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
to

 b
e 

di
sp

la
ye

d 
at

 a
ll 

tim
es

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

C
PZ

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l h

ou
rs

.

A
re

n
’t

 C
P
Z
s 

ju
st

 a
 m

o
n

e
y
 m

a
k
in

g
 s

ch
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

co
u

n
ci

l?
N

o,
 b

y 
la

w
, r

ev
en

ue
 g

en
er

at
ed

 f
ro

m
 C

PZ
s 

m
us

t 
be

 in
ve

st
ed

 
ba

ck
 in

to
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 re
la

te
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 s
uc

h 
as

 h
ig

hw
ay

s,
 

pa
rk

in
g 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t,

 s
ch

oo
l c

ro
ss

in
g 

pa
tr

ol
s,

 p
ub

lic
 re

al
m

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

af
er

 c
ar

 p
ar

ks
.

W
h

e
re

 w
il

l 
m

y
 v

is
it

o
rs

 p
a
rk

?
A

ll 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ar
e 

el
ig

ib
le

 t
o 

pu
rc

ha
se

 v
is

ito
r 

vo
uc

he
rs

 w
hi

ch
 

al
lo

w
 t

he
ir 

vi
si

to
rs

 t
o 

pa
rk

 in
 a

ny
 p

er
m

it 
or

 s
ha

re
d-

us
e 

ba
y 

in
 t

he
 C

PZ
. Y

ou
 o

nl
y 

ne
ed

 t
o 

us
e 

a 
vi

si
to

r 
pe

rm
it 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l h
ou

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
zo

ne
. E

ac
h 

vo
uc

he
r 

al
lo

w
s 

a 
w

ho
le

 
da

y’
s 

pa
rk

in
g.

  A
lte

rn
at

iv
el

y 
th

ey
 c

ou
ld

 p
ar

k 
in

 a
 p

ay
 a

nd
 

di
sp

la
y 

(o
r 

pa
y 

by
 p

ho
ne

) b
ay

.

Fr
e
q

u
e
n

tl
y
 a

sk
e
d

 q
u

e
st

io
n

s
W

h
a
t 

if
 I

 a
m

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 a
n

d
 h

a
v
e
 a

 b
lu

e
 b

a
d

g
e
?

Bl
ue

 b
ad

ge
 h

ol
de

rs
 c

an
 p

ar
k 

fr
ee

 a
nd

 w
ith

ou
t 

tim
e 

lim
it 

in
 

al
l s

ha
re

d 
us

e 
ba

ys
, p

ay
 a

nd
 d

is
pl

ay
 b

ay
s,

 y
el

lo
w

 li
ne

s 
(f

or
 a

 
m

ax
im

um
 o

f 
th

re
e 

ho
ur

s)
 a

nd
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 b
lu

e 
ba

dg
e 

ba
ys

. 
Th

e 
co

un
ci

l o
ff

er
s 

an
 ‘o

rig
in

’ d
is

ab
le

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 
bl

ue
 b

ad
ge

 h
ol

de
rs

. T
hi

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
an

y 
ne

w
 C

PZ
. I

f 
yo

u 
do

n’
t 

ha
ve

 a
 b

lu
e 

ba
dg

e 
yo

u 
w

ou
ld

 n
ee

d 
to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
a 

re
si

de
nt

’s 
pa

rk
in

g 
pe

rm
it.

W
e 

ca
n 

al
so

 in
st

al
l ‘

de
st

in
at

io
n’

 d
is

ab
le

d 
ba

ys
 c

lo
se

 t
o 

sh
op

s 
or

 lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s;

 t
he

se
 a

re
 u

su
al

ly
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 a
 

m
ax

im
um

 s
ta

y 
of

 f
ou

r 
ho

ur
s.

W
il

l 
a
 C

P
Z
 c

re
a
te

 s
tr

e
e
t 

cl
u

tt
e
r?

U
nf

or
tu

na
te

ly
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

s 
us

 t
o 

si
gn

 a
nd

 li
ne

 a
ll 

pa
rk

in
g 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
. T

he
re

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
 n

ee
d 

to
 in

st
al

l p
ay

 
an

d 
di

sp
la

y 
m

ac
hi

ne
s.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

a 
de

si
gn

 
gu

id
e 

to
 k

ee
p 

th
is

 t
o 

an
 a

bs
ol

ut
e 

m
in

im
um

.

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 y
e
ll

o
w

 l
in

e
s 

m
e
a
n

?
Si

ng
le

 y
el

lo
w

 li
ne

s 
– 

ar
e 

‘n
o 

w
ai

tin
g’

 re
st

ric
tio

ns
. T

he
y 

pr
ov

id
e 

pa
ss

in
g 

sp
ac

e 
fo

r o
nc

om
in

g 
tr

af
fic

 in
 n

ar
ro

w
 ro

ad
s 

an
d 

ar
e 

on
ly

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

ho
ur

s 
w

he
n 

tr
af

fic
 is

 
bu

sie
st

. T
he

y 
ca

n 
be

 u
se

d 
fo

r p
ar

ki
ng

 in
 th

e 
ev

en
in

g.

D
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
s 

– 
ar

e 
‘n

o 
w

ai
tin

g’
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

 t
ha

t 
op

er
at

e 
at

 a
ny

 t
im

e 
(2

4/
7)

. T
he

y 
ar

e 
us

ua
lly

 in
st

al
le

d 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
an

d 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

sa
fe

ty
 a

t 
ju

nc
tio

ns
 a

nd
 t

o 
en

su
re

 a
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 re

fu
se

 v
eh

ic
le

s.

Lo
ad

in
g 

an
d 

un
lo

ad
in

g 
is

 a
llo

w
ed

 f
or

 u
p 

to
 4

0 
m

in
ut

es
 o

n 
an

y 
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

s 
w

he
re

 s
ig

ns
 d

o 
no

t 
in

di
ca

te
 o

th
er

w
is

e.

Ty
pe

 o
f 

pa
rk

in
g 

ba
y

Pe
rm

it 
ba

y

Sh
ar

ed
 u

se
 b

ay

Pa
y 

an
d 

di
sp

la
y 

ba
y

D
is

ab
le

d 
ba

y

Re
sid

en
t p

er
m

it 
ho

ld
er

 B
us

in
es

s p
er

m
it 

ho
ld

er
Vi

sit
or

 v
ou

ch
er

 h
ol

de
r 

Pa
y 

an
d 

di
sp

la
y 

or
 

pa
y 

by
 p

ho
ne

 v
is

it
or

 Bl
ue

 b
ad

ge
 h

ol
de

r

H
o

w
 m

u
ch

 w
il

l 
th

e
 p

e
rm

it
 c

o
st

?

W
h

e
re

 w
o

u
ld

 m
y
 p

e
rm

it
 a

ll
o

w
 m

e
 t

o
 p

a
rk

?

M
on

 –
 F

ri
8

.3
0

am
 –

 6
.3

0
pm

  P
er

m
it

 h
ol

de
rs

or
P

ay
 a

t 
m

ac
hi

ne
ac

ro
ss

 r
oa

d
D

is
pl

ay
 t

ic
ke

t
M

ax
 s

ta
y 

4
 h

ou
rs

E
C

P
er

m
it

ho
ld

er
s

on
ly

M
on

 –
 F

ri
8

.3
0

am
 –

 6
.3

0
pmE

C

M
on

 –
 F

ri
8

.3
0

am
 –

 6
.3

0
pm

 
P

ay
 a

t 
m

ac
hi

ne
ac

ro
ss

 r
oa

d

D
is

pl
ay

 t
ic

ke
t

M
ax

 s
ta

y 
4

 h
ou

rs

D
is

ab
le

d 
ba

dg
e

ho
ld

er
s

on
ly

FR
EE

FR
EE

Ty
p

e 
o

f 
p

er
m

it
Re

si
de

nt

Bu
si

ne
ss

 

Re
si

de
nt

s’
 v

is
ito

rs

A
ve

ra
ge

 p
ay

 a
nd

 d
is

pl
ay

 c
ha

rg
e

D
is

co
u

n
t

75
%

 d
is

co
un

t 
fo

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
 

fu
el

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
or

 m
ot

or
cy

cl
es

 
 

 
 

 
   

n/
a

C
o

st
 o

f 
p

er
m

it
 

1m
on

th
   

3m
on

th
s 

 6
m

on
th

s 
 1

2m
on

th
s

£1
3.

60
   

   
 £

33
.4

5 
   

   
£5

2.
25

   
   

  £
99

.3
0

1m
on

th
   

   
  6

m
on

th
s 

   
  1

2m
on

th
s

£8
9.

90
   

   
   

£1
72

.4
0 

   
   

 £
33

4.
40

£1
2 

fo
r 

te
n,

 o
ne

-d
ay

 p
er

m
its

.  
(1

st
 b

oo
k)

£3
0 

fo
r 

te
n,

 o
ne

-d
ay

 p
er

m
its

  
(2

nd
  +

 b
oo

k 
pe

r 
ye

ar
)

£2
.7

0 
pe

r 
ho

ur

A
pp

en
di

x
3

28



Section A – Your parking experience

This section aims to understand if you think a CPZ is  
appropriate for your street

1. Do you have off-street parking?

   Yes     No

2. How many vehicles do you park on the street?

   None 

   1 

   2 or more 

   I don’t have a vehicle

3.  Please rate the ability to find an on-street parking space 
near this address? (Please circle) 

 a) Yourself  Easy 1 2 3 4 5  Difficult

 b) Your visitors Easy 1 2 3 4 5  Difficult

4.  What time of day do you or your visitors have difficulty 
parking? (Tick all that apply)

 Mon – Fri daytime   You    Your visitors 

 Mon – Fri evening   You    Your visitors

 Saturday     You    Your visitors

 Sunday     You    Your visitors 

 Never     You    Your visitors

5.  Do you agree with the proposed introduction of a 
controlled parking zone in your street?

   Yes     No    Undecided
 (go to Section B)  (go to question 6) (go to question 6)

 

6.  Would you change your mind if a CPZ was introduced in 
street next to yours?  
 
This is an important question if you don’t want a CPZ at 
the moment but consider parking to be quite difficult. 
A CPZ in the road next to yours is likely to increase the 
demand for space in your street.

   Yes     No    Undecided

Do you have any comments on your parking experience?

Have your say about parking

The following questions should only take you a 
few minutes to complete and will ask you:

A) whether or not you support a CPZ in your street
B) for your views on the proposed design
C)  for your views on the proposed days and  

hours of operation
D) for a few details about you

You can complete this survey online at 
www.surveymonkey.com/s/swcpz

Please refer to the background document and 
proposed CPZ layout whilst completing the 
questionnaire.

Appendix 329



P

P

Section B – The proposed parking design

This section aims to understand your view on the type and 
position of parking that is proposed for your street.

It is important to answer these questions even if you don’t 
support the introduction of a CPZ because the council will
proceed based upon the majority view.

7.  Do you agree with the proposed position of the parking 
bays?

   Yes     No    Undecided

8.  Do you agree with the proposed type of parking bays?  
(eg. permit holders, loading, shared-use)

   Yes     No    Undecided

9.  If you answered ‘no’ or ‘undecided’, please suggest what 
type of bay you think there should be more of?  
(Tick all that apply)

   Permit holders   Destination disabled

   Shared-use   Pay and display

    Loading    On-street bicycle parking

   Short-stay    Car club bay
 
Do you have any additional comments regarding the 
proposed parking design?

Section C – Days and hours of the controlled parking 
zone

This section aims to understand your view on when the  
CPZ should operate. An explanation of the options can be 
found in the consultation pack.

11.  If parking controls were introduced, which of the 
following options would you prefer? 

   Option A - Monday – Friday from 8.30am – 6.30pm

   Option B - Monday – Friday from 10.00am – 2.00pm

Do you have an alternative suggestion?

Section D – About you

It’s important to know some details about you so that we 
can carefully analyse the results.

You dont need to supply your name but we do need to 
know your address so that your comments can be matched 
to your street.      

12. Are you a resident or business?

   Resident    Business   Both

Name: 

House / flat number: 

Street name: 

Postcode: 

Appendix 330



DO YOU HAVE ANY COMMENTS ABOUT PARKING IN YOUR STREET? 

Southwark Council has recently sent out a consultation document to all addresses 
in this area in find out what you think about parking. 

We need the views of everyone:  
Residents and businesses in the area – whether you own a car or not.

Your views will help us develop our parking plans for the future.

HAVE YOUR SAY 

Your views are very important to us. 

Please return your questionnaire no later than
Friday 14 January 2011 

If you haven’t received your consultation pack please contact us: 
e: parkingreview@southwark.gov.uk    t: 020 7525 2021/2131 

December 2010 

www.southwark.gov.uk 

Parking consultation 

Lucas Gardens (LG)
1st and 2nd stage parking consultation

Appendix 431



REMINDER
The Lucas Gardens parking consultation closes 14 January 2011 

Southwark Council has recently sent out a consultation document to all addresses 
in this area in find out what you think about parking. 

We need the views of everyone:  
Residents and businesses in the area – whether you own a car or not.

Your views will help us develop our parking plans for the future.

HAVE YOUR SAY 

Please return your questionnaire no later than
Friday 14 January 2011 

Your views are very important to us. 

If you need a consultation pack please contact us: 
e: parkingreview@southwark.gov.uk    t: 020 7525 2021/2131 

January 2011 

www.southwark.gov.uk 

Parking consultation 

Lucas Gardens (LG)
1st and 2nd stage parking consultation

Appendix 4
32



DO YOU HAVE ANY COMMENTS ABOUT PARKING IN YOUR STREET? 

Southwark Council has recently sent out a consultation document to all addresses 
in this area in find out what you think about parking. 

We need the views of everyone:  
Residents and businesses in the area – whether you own a car or not.

Your views will help us develop our parking plans for the future.

HAVE YOUR SAY 

Your views are very important to us. 

Please return your questionnaire no later than
Friday 14 January 2011 

If you haven’t received your consultation pack please contact us: 
e: parkingreview@southwark.gov.uk    t: 020 7525 2021/2131 

December 2010 

www.southwark.gov.uk 

Parking consultation 

Southampton Way (SW)
1st and 2nd stage parking consultation

Appendix 433



The Southampton Way parking consultation closes 14 January 2011 

Southwark Council has recently sent out a consultation document to all addresses 
in this area in find out what you think about parking. 

We need the views of everyone:  
Residents and businesses in the area – whether you own a car or not.

Your views will help us develop our parking plans for the future.

HAVE YOUR SAY 

Please return your questionnaire no later than
Friday 14 January 2011 

Your views are very important to us. 

If you need a consultation pack please contact us: 
e: parkingreview@southwark.gov.uk    t: 020 7525 2021/2131 

REMINDER

January 2011 

www.southwark.gov.uk 

Parking consultation 

Southampton Way (SW)
1st and 2nd stage parking consultation

Appendix 434



Jo
b 

T
itl

e:
W

el
ls

 R
oa

d

Jo
b 

N
um

be
r:

39
91

1

C
lie

nt
:

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f S
ou

th
w

ar
k

S
ur

ve
y 

D
at

e:

S
ur

ve
y 

P
er

io
d:

07
:0

0 
- 

19
:0

0

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 5
.1

35



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

B
O

N
S

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

25
20

19
19

20
19

18
17

17
19

19
18

B
O

N
S

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

0
3

4
3

2
2

5
3

4
0

3
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

1
2

2
2

2
3

3
2

1
1

1
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
2

2
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
28

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

B
O

N
S

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 
89

%
82

%
93

%
96

%
96

%
89

%
89

%
96

%
86

%
93

%
79

%
86

%
N

O
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
10

0%
87

%
73

%
70

%
74

%
76

%
72

%
63

%
71

%
73

%
86

%
75

%
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
12

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0%
0%

12
%

15
%

11
%

8%
8%

19
%

13
%

15
%

0%
13

%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

9%
8%

7%
7%

8%
8%

7%
8%

8%
9%

8%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
28

23
22

25
26

26
24

24
26

23
25

21
23

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

4%
8%

7%
7%

8%
12

%
11

%
8%

4%
5%

4%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
4%

19
%

22
%

19
%

16
%

20
%

30
%

21
%

19
%

5%
17

%
T

ot
al

36
25

23
26

27
27

25
25

27
24

26
22

24
18

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
, N

O
N

 R
E

S
 O

R
 V

IS
IT

O
R

0%
13

%
27

%
30

%
26

%
24

%
28

%
37

%
29

%
27

%
14

%
25

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

1
2

2
2

2
3

3
2

1
1

1
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
25

20
19

19
20

19
18

17
17

19
19

18
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

3
4

3
2

2
5

3
4

0
3

25
T

ot
al

25
23

26
27

27
25

25
27

24
26

22
24

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

B
O

N
S

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

2
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

28
21

8
5

0
0

2
1

2
0

0
3

14
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
36

22
8

5
0

0
2

1
2

0
0

3
15

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

2
0

1
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
8

5
2

0
0

0
1

1
0

0
1

15
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

14
3

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

22
8

5
0

0
2

1
2

0
0

3
15

27

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

051015202530

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

0510152025

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

B
O

N
S

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

25

20

19
19

20
19

18

17

17
19

19

18

0

0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0

3
4

3
2

2

5

3

4

0

3

0

2
2

2
2

2

2
2

2

2
2

2

0
1

2
2

2
2

3
3

2
1

1
1

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

36



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

B
O

N
S

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

B
O

N
S

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

0
0

2
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
20

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
7

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

B
O

N
S

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 
0%

0%
0%

29
%

29
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
N

O
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
0%

0%
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
12

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 D
IS

A
B

LE
D

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

0%
0%

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

7
0

0
0

2
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 V
IS

IT
O

R
S

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

10
0%

10
0%

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

0%
0%

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

0%
0%

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

10
0%

10
0%

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

T
ot

al
27

0
0

0
2

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
10

0%
10

0%
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
2

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

25
T

ot
al

0
0

0
2

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 S

T
R

E
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

20
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

7
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
27

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0

0.
51

1.
52

2.
5

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

012345

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

L
L

 C
H

U
R

C
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

2
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0%10

%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

37



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

C
O

LE
M

A
N

 R
O

A
D

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

51
43

39
39

42
40

40
40

40
38

37
37

C
O

LE
M

A
N

 R
O

A
D

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

1
1

1
1

1
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

2
1

2
2

1
2

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

3
1

2
4

5
2

3
3

4
3

2
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

19
0

1
0

0
0

2
0

1
0

0
1

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
1

1
2

2
2

2
2

2
1

1
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
5

1
1

0
0

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

6
1

0
0

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
93

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

C
O

LE
M

A
N

 R
O

A
D

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
T

56
%

52
%

46
%

47
%

54
%

54
%

51
%

52
%

52
%

51
%

47
%

45
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

98
%

90
%

91
%

89
%

84
%

80
%

85
%

83
%

83
%

81
%

84
%

88
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
2%

2%
2%

2%
2%

4%
4%

4%
4%

4%
5%

5%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

6%
2%

5%
8%

10
%

4%
6%

6%
9%

7%
5%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
2%

2%
2%

2%
2%

2%
2%

2%
2%

2%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

91
49

45
42

43
47

45
43

44
44

43
40

38
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
0%

2%
2%

4%
4%

4%
4%

4%
4%

2%
2%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
6%

5%
7%

12
%

14
%

9%
10

%
10

%
13

%
9%

7%
T

ot
al

12
5

52
48

43
44

50
50

47
48

48
47

44
42

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

8%
7%

9%
14

%
16

%
11

%
13

%
13

%
15

%
11

%
7%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
1

1
2

2
2

2
2

2
1

1
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

1
1

1
1

1
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
51

43
39

39
42

40
40

40
40

38
37

37
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
3

1
2

4
5

2
3

3
4

3
2

25
T

ot
al

52
48

43
44

50
50

47
48

48
47

44
42

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

C
O

LE
M

A
N

 R
O

A
D

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

2
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

19
5

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

5
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

6
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

91
21

10
4

1
2

1
1

4
0

4
1

30
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
12

5
29

12
4

1
2

1
1

6
0

4
1

31
18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

0
0

0
0

22
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
1

1
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
1

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
24

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

12
12

7
2

1
2

0
1

4
0

3
1

30
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

39
16

5
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
26

T
ot

al
52

29
12

4
1

2
1

1
6

0
4

1
31

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0102030405060

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

05101520253035

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

C
O

L
E

M
A

N
 R

O
A

D
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
L

L
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
T

H
U

R
S

D
A

Y
)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

51

43
39

39
42

40
40

40
40

38
37

37

1

1
1

1

1
2

2
2

2
2

2

2

0

3
1

2

4
5

2
3

3
4

3

2

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
0

0
0

1
1

2
2

2
2

2
2

1
1

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

38



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
 G

R
E

E
N

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

2
2

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
 G

R
E

E
N

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
31

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
3

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
 G

R
E

E
N

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

10
0%

13
3%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

67
%

67
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

75
%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

2
2

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

25
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
25

%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
T

ot
al

34
3

4
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
2

2
18

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
, N

O
N

 R
E

S
 O

R
 V

IS
IT

O
R

0%
25

%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
2

2
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

25
T

ot
al

3
4

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

2
2

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
 G

R
E

E
N

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

31
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
2

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
34

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
2

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

2
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
2

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0

0.
51

1.
52

2.
53

3.
5

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

0

0.
51

1.
52

2.
5

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
 G

R
E

E
N

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

)

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

12
0%

14
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

3

3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

2
2

0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

39



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

D
A

G
M

A
R

 R
O

A
D

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

74
66

66
60

59
57

54
54

53
53

53
53

D
A

G
M

A
R

 R
O

A
D

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
2

2
1

2
1

3
1

0
4

5
8

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

3
4

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

1
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
10

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
4

4
9

11
12

14
16

18
14

9
6

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

10
5

5
5

4
6

5
5

5
5

6
5

5
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
74

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

D
A

G
M

A
R

 R
O

A
D

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
T

10
0%

10
1%

10
3%

10
1%

10
4%

10
1%

10
3%

10
3%

10
3%

10
3%

97
%

92
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

88
%

87
%

80
%

77
%

76
%

71
%

71
%

70
%

70
%

74
%

78
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

3%
3%

1%
3%

1%
4%

1%
0%

5%
7%

12
%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
4%

5%
7%

6%
7%

7%
7%

7%
7%

7%
1%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

73
67

68
69

69
69

68
69

69
69

68
65

61
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
5%

5%
12

%
14

%
16

%
18

%
21

%
24

%
18

%
13

%
9%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
8%

8%
13

%
17

%
17

%
22

%
22

%
24

%
24

%
19

%
21

%
T

ot
al

94
74

75
76

75
77

75
76

76
76

76
72

68
18

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
, N

O
N

 R
E

S
 O

R
 V

IS
IT

O
R

0%
12

%
13

%
20

%
23

%
24

%
29

%
29

%
30

%
30

%
26

%
22

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

4
4

9
11

12
14

16
18

14
9

6
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
3

4
5

5
5

5
5

5
5

5
1

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
74

66
66

60
59

57
54

54
53

53
53

53
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
2

2
1

2
1

3
1

0
4

5
8

25
T

ot
al

74
75

76
75

77
75

76
76

76
76

72
68

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

D
A

G
M

A
R

 R
O

A
D

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

10
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

10
0

1
4

0
3

0
0

1
0

0
0

2
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

73
19

7
8

6
7

5
7

5
4

4
4

38
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
94

19
8

12
6

10
5

7
6

4
4

4
42

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

5
5

2
4

4
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
3

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
13

4
7

1
5

3
3

2
2

1
4

42
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

6
4

5
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

19
8

12
6

10
5

7
6

4
4

4
42

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

01020304050607080

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

010203040

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

D
A

G
M

A
R

 R
O

A
D

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

11
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

74

66
66

60
59

57
54

54
53

53
53

53

0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0

2
2

1
2

1

3
1

0
4

5

8

0

3
4

5
5

5
5

5
5

5

5

1

0
4

4

9
11

12
14

16
18

14
9

6

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

40



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

D
O

W
LA

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

25
22

19
18

18
16

17
16

18
17

17
19

D
O

W
LA

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

1
3

3
3

4
2

3
0

1
0

1
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
1

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

1
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
1

1
1

2
3

3
3

3
2

2
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
4

2
2

2
1

2
2

2
2

0
1

0
1

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
59

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

D
O

W
LA

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T
  O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
LL

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 

42
%

41
%

42
%

41
%

41
%

41
%

41
%

41
%

39
%

39
%

34
%

37
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

92
%

76
%

75
%

75
%

67
%

71
%

67
%

78
%

74
%

85
%

86
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

4%
12

%
13

%
13

%
17

%
8%

13
%

0%
4%

0%
5%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
4%

8%
8%

8%
8%

8%
8%

9%
9%

5%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

57
23

22
23

23
22

22
22

22
23

22
20

20
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
0%

4%
4%

4%
8%

13
%

13
%

13
%

13
%

10
%

9%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
4%

16
%

17
%

17
%

25
%

21
%

25
%

13
%

17
%

10
%

14
%

T
ot

al
63

25
24

25
24

24
24

24
24

23
23

20
22

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

8%
24

%
25

%
25

%
33

%
29

%
33

%
22

%
26

%
15

%
14

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
1

1
1

2
3

3
3

3
2

2
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
1

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

1
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
25

22
19

18
18

16
17

16
18

17
17

19
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
1

3
3

3
4

2
3

0
1

0
1

25
T

ot
al

25
24

25
24

24
24

24
24

23
23

20
22

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

D
O

W
LA

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

4
3

0
3

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

57
13

7
1

4
0

1
1

0
3

1
0

14
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
63

17
7

4
4

1
1

1
0

3
1

0
14

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

2
0

1
1

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
7

6
1

2
1

0
0

0
1

1
0

14
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

10
1

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

17
7

4
4

1
1

1
0

3
1

0
14

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0510152025

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

051015

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

D
O

W
L

A
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

25

22

19
18

18

16
17

16

18
17

17
19

0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0

1

3
3

3

4
2

3

0
1

0

1

0
1

2
2

2

2

2
2

2
2

1

0

0
0

1
1

1
2

3
3

3
3

2
2

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

41



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 M
E

W
S

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

8
8

8
8

8
7

7
6

5
4

5
5

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 M
E

W
S

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
0

0
0

0
2

2
2

2
2

1
1

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

3
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
9

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 M
E

W
S

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
T

89
%

89
%

89
%

10
0%

89
%

10
0%

10
0%

89
%

78
%

67
%

78
%

78
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

89
%

10
0%

78
%

78
%

75
%

71
%

67
%

71
%

71
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

0%
0%

11
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

14
%

14
%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

9
6

6
6

7
6

7
7

6
5

4
5

5
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
22

%
22

%
25

%
29

%
33

%
14

%
14

%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
0%

0%
11

%
0%

22
%

22
%

25
%

29
%

33
%

29
%

29
%

T
ot

al
20

8
8

8
9

8
9

9
8

7
6

7
7

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

0%
0%

11
%

0%
22

%
22

%
25

%
29

%
33

%
29

%
29

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

2
2

2
2

2
1

1
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
8

8
8

8
8

7
7

6
5

4
5

5
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

25
T

ot
al

8
8

8
9

8
9

9
8

7
6

7
7

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 M
E

W
S

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

9
1

2
0

0
2

0
2

1
1

0
0

2
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
20

1
2

0
0

2
0

2
1

1
0

0
4

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
1

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

1
0

0
1

0
1

1
1

0
0

4
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

1
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

1
2

0
0

2
0

2
1

1
0

0
4

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

012345678

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

0

0.
51

1.
52

2.
5

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 M
E

W
S

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

8
8

8

8

8

7
7

6
5

4
5

5

0
0

0

0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0

1

0

0
0

0

0

0

1
1

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

2
2

2
2

2

1
1

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

42



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 R
O

A
D

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

67
57

57
54

54
51

51
49

48
47

47
51

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 R
O

A
D

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
1

2
3

2
2

1
3

7
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

8
8

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
9

6
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
11

0
0

0
0

1
1

1
2

1
1

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
7

8
10

10
13

13
10

10
5

5
4

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

5
1

1
1

2
3

3
3

2
1

1
2

2
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
81

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 R
O

A
D

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
T

83
%

89
%

90
%

93
%

95
%

96
%

95
%

89
%

86
%

81
%

84
%

83
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

79
%

78
%

72
%

70
%

65
%

66
%

68
%

69
%

71
%

69
%

76
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
1%

1%
1%

1%
1%

2%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

0%
0%

1%
3%

4%
3%

3%
1%

5%
10

%
9%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
11

%
11

%
13

%
13

%
13

%
13

%
14

%
14

%
15

%
13

%
9%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

80
65

70
71

72
72

73
73

68
68

64
66

65
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
10

%
11

%
13

%
13

%
17

%
17

%
14

%
14

%
8%

7%
6%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
10

%
11

%
15

%
16

%
21

%
19

%
17

%
16

%
12

%
18

%
15

%
T

ot
al

98
67

72
73

75
77

78
77

72
70

66
68

67
18

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
, N

O
N

 R
E

S
 O

R
 V

IS
IT

O
R

0%
21

%
22

%
28

%
29

%
33

%
32

%
31

%
30

%
27

%
31

%
24

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

7
8

10
10

13
13

10
10

5
5

4
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

1
1

1
1

1
1

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
8

8
10

10
10

10
10

10
10

9
6

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
67

57
57

54
54

51
51

49
48

47
47

51
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
1

2
3

2
2

1
3

7
6

25
T

ot
al

67
72

73
75

77
78

77
72

70
66

68
67

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 R
O

A
D

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
1

1
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

11
1

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

5
1

1
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

80
18

8
7

3
5

4
6

4
7

5
4

40
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
98

21
9

8
4

6
5

6
4

7
5

4
41

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

4
2

4
3

3
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
3

4
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
16

1
6

0
4

0
3

1
4

2
0

41
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

5
8

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

21
9

8
4

6
5

6
4

7
5

4
41

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

01020304050607080

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

01020304050

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 R
O

A
D

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

67

57
57

54
54

51
51

49
48

47
47

51

0

0
0

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
0

0

0

0
0

1
2

3
2

2
1

3
7

6

0

8
8

10
10

10
10

10
10

10
9

6

0

7
8

10
10

13
13

10
10

5
5

4

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

43



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

M
A

U
D

E
 R

O
A

D
 

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

51
39

39
38

37
34

34
35

36
36

41
39

M
A

U
D

E
 R

O
A

D
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

1
1

1
1

1
1

0
1

1
1

1
1

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

5
3

1
1

2
2

2
2

4
4

4
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
5

5
8

8
8

8
8

8
7

6
4

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

13
2

2
2

2
2

2
1

2
2

2
2

2
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

3
5

6
9

11
11

10
9

4
3

1
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
53

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

M
A

U
D

E
 R

O
A

D
  O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
LL

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

98
%

10
0%

10
0%

10
2%

10
6%

10
6%

10
4%

10
6%

10
6%

98
%

10
4%

92
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

98
%

74
%

74
%

70
%

66
%

61
%

62
%

63
%

64
%

69
%

75
%

80
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
2%

2%
2%

2%
2%

2%
0%

2%
2%

2%
2%

2%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

9%
6%

2%
2%

4%
4%

4%
4%

8%
7%

8%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

9%
9%

15
%

14
%

14
%

15
%

14
%

14
%

13
%

11
%

8%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
53

48
49

49
50

52
52

52
52

52
48

51
45

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

6%
9%

11
%

16
%

20
%

20
%

18
%

16
%

8%
5%

2%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
15

%
15

%
13

%
18

%
23

%
24

%
21

%
20

%
15

%
13

%
10

%
T

ot
al

69
52

53
53

54
56

56
55

56
56

52
55

49
18

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
, N

O
N

 R
E

S
 O

R
 V

IS
IT

O
R

0%
25

%
25

%
28

%
32

%
38

%
38

%
36

%
34

%
29

%
24

%
18

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

3
5

6
9

11
11

10
9

4
3

1
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

1
1

1
1

1
1

0
1

1
1

1
1

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
5

5
8

8
8

8
8

8
7

6
4

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
51

39
39

38
37

34
34

35
36

36
41

39
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
5

3
1

1
2

2
2

2
4

4
4

25
T

ot
al

52
53

53
54

56
56

55
56

56
52

55
49

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

M
A

U
D

E
 R

O
A

D
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

13
0

0
0

0
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

53
22

16
8

4
7

6
5

3
7

4
2

21
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

17

T
ot

al
69

22
16

8
4

8
7

5
3

7
4

2
24

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

1
1

3
3

3
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

1
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
2

1
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
17

8
5

3
6

3
2

0
2

2
1

24
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

5
8

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

22
16

8
4

8
7

5
3

7
4

2
24

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0102030405060

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

0510152025

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

M
A

U
D

E
 R

O
A

D
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
L

L
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
T

H
U

R
S

D
A

Y
)

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

51

39
39

38
37

34
34

35
36

36
41

39

1

1
1

1

1

1
0

1
1

1

1

1

0

5
3

1

1

2
2

2
2

4

4

4

0

5

5

8

8

8
8

8
8

7

6

4

0
3

5
6

9
11

11
10

9

4
3

1

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

44



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

N
E

W
E

N
T

 C
LO

S
E

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
4

3
2

N
E

W
E

N
T

 C
LO

S
E

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

1
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
12

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
E

W
E

N
T

 C
LO

S
E

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
25

%
33

%
25

%
25

%
25

%
25

%
25

%
33

%
25

%
33

%
25

%
17

%
N

O
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
10

0%
75

%
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
75

%
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
12

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0%
25

%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

25
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

12
3

4
3

3
3

3
3

4
3

3
2

1
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
25

%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

25
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

T
ot

al
18

3
4

3
3

3
3

3
4

3
4

3
2

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

25
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
25

%
0%

0%
0%

0%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

4
3

2
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

25
T

ot
al

3
4

3
3

3
3

3
4

3
4

3
2

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

N
E

W
E

N
T

 C
LO

S
E

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

4
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

12
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

1
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
18

2
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

1
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

2
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0

0.
51

1.
52

2.
53

3.
54

4.
5

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

0

0.
51

1.
52

2.
5

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

N
E

W
E

N
T

 C
L

O
S

E
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
L

L
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
T

H
U

R
S

D
A

Y
)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

3

3

3
3

3
3

3

3

3
4

3
2

0

0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0

1

0
0

0
0

0

1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

45



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

P
A

R
K

H
O

U
S

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

22
19

19
19

19
20

21
21

21
20

20
21

P
A

R
K

H
O

U
S

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

0
0

0
0

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
1

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

0
0

0
0

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

2
3

2
2

0
0

1
2

1
0

2
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

1
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

60
2

1
1

2
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

2
2

2
2

1
1

1
0

0
0

0
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
10

3
4

4
3

5
4

4
5

4
3

2
3

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
24

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

P
A

R
K

H
O

U
S

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
  O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
LL

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

92
%

10
4%

10
8%

10
4%

10
4%

10
0%

10
4%

10
8%

10
4%

96
%

88
%

96
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

76
%

73
%

76
%

76
%

83
%

84
%

81
%

84
%

87
%

95
%

91
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

4%
4%

4%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

8%
12

%
8%

8%
0%

0%
4%

8%
4%

0%
9%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
8%

8%
8%

8%
8%

8%
8%

8%
9%

5%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

23
17

20
21

20
19

18
19

19
20

19
18

19
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
8%

8%
8%

8%
4%

4%
4%

0%
0%

0%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
16

%
19

%
16

%
16

%
4%

4%
8%

8%
4%

0%
9%

T
ot

al
95

22
25

26
25

25
24

25
26

25
23

21
23

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

24
%

27
%

24
%

24
%

13
%

12
%

15
%

16
%

13
%

5%
9%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

2
2

2
2

1
1

1
0

0
0

0
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

1
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
22

19
19

19
19

20
21

21
21

20
20

21
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
2

3
2

2
0

0
1

2
1

0
2

25
T

ot
al

22
25

26
25

25
24

25
26

25
23

21
23

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

P
A

R
K

H
O

U
S

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

60
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

10
9

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
1

1
0

1
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

23
3

1
2

2
0

1
1

1
1

0
0

15
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
95

14
1

3
3

0
1

1
1

2
1

0
17

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
4

0
1

2
0

1
0

1
1

0
0

17
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

10
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

14
1

3
3

0
1

1
1

2
1

0
17

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0510152025

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

05101520

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

P
A

R
K

H
O

U
S

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
L

L
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
T

H
U

R
S

D
A

Y
)

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

22

19
19

19
19

20
21

21
21

20

20
21

0

0
0

0
0

1
1

1
0

0

0

0

0

2
3

2
2

0
0

1
2

1

0
2

0

2
2

2
2

2
2

2

2
2

1
0

0

2
2

2
2

1
1

1
0

0
0

0

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

46



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

R
A

IN
B

O
W

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

62
52

49
48

45
43

44
41

43
44

42
46

R
A

IN
B

O
W

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
2

2
2

2
2

1
1

1
1

1
2

2
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

2
2

2
2

2
2

1
1

1
1

1
2

2
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
4

2
2

3
2

2
4

2
4

6
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

3
5

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

3
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
1

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
4

5
6

6
6

8
8

8
5

1
1

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

4
4

3
3

2
2

3
3

2
2

3
3

3
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
64

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

3
1

2
2

3
3

0
3

2
2

2
2

2
10

R
A

IN
B

O
W

 S
T

R
E

E
T

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

10
0%

10
2%

98
%

10
0%

97
%

91
%

95
%

94
%

94
%

94
%

89
%

91
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

97
%

80
%

78
%

75
%

73
%

74
%

72
%

68
%

72
%

73
%

74
%

79
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
3%

3%
3%

3%
3%

2%
2%

2%
2%

2%
4%

3%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

6%
3%

3%
5%

3%
3%

7%
3%

7%
11

%
10

%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

5%
8%

9%
10

%
10

%
10

%
10

%
10

%
10

%
11

%
5%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

59
54

55
53

54
52

52
52

53
53

52
49

48
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
6%

8%
9%

10
%

10
%

13
%

13
%

13
%

8%
2%

2%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

2
3

3
3

3
3

2
2

2
2

1
1

2
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
12

%
11

%
13

%
15

%
14

%
16

%
20

%
17

%
15

%
12

%
12

%
T

ot
al

74
64

65
63

64
62

58
61

60
60

60
57

58
18

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
, N

O
N

 R
E

S
 O

R
 V

IS
IT

O
R

0%
17

%
19

%
22

%
24

%
24

%
26

%
30

%
27

%
25

%
23

%
17

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

4
5

6
6

6
8

8
8

5
1

1
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

2
2

2
2

2
1

1
1

1
1

2
2

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
3

5
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
3

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
62

52
49

48
45

43
44

41
43

44
42

46
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
4

2
2

3
2

2
4

2
4

6
6

25
T

ot
al

64
65

63
64

62
58

61
60

60
60

57
58

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

R
A

IN
B

O
W

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

4
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

4
7

3
0

2
1

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

3
4

2
0

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

59
20

6
5

4
1

0
3

4
4

3
4

33
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
2

2
2

0
0

1
1

0
0

0
1

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
74

35
14

5
10

4
1

4
4

4
4

4
34

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

5
0

0
2

3
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
1

2
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
20

5
3

5
3

1
2

1
1

3
2

33
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

15
8

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

35
14

5
10

4
1

4
4

4
4

4
34

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0102030405060

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

05101520253035

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

R
A

IN
B

O
W

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

)

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

62

52
49

48
45

43
44

41
43

44
42

46

2

2
2

2
2

1
1

1

1
1

2

2

0

4

2
2

3
2

2
4

2

4

6

6

0

3

5
6

6
6

6
6

6

6

6
3

0
4

5
6

6
6

8
8

8
5

1
1

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

47



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
E

D
G

M
O

O
R

 P
LA

C
E

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

3
3

3
3

3
2

2
2

2
2

2
3

S
E

D
G

M
O

O
R

 P
LA

C
E

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
0

1
1

1
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
1

1
1

1
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
4

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

S
E

D
G

M
O

O
R

 P
LA

C
E

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
75

%
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
75

%
50

%
75

%
75

%
75

%
75

%
N

O
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
10

0%
75

%
75

%
75

%
75

%
50

%
67

%
10

0%
67

%
67

%
67

%
10

0%
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 B

A
Y

4
3

4
4

4
4

4
3

2
3

3
3

3
12

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
25

%
33

%
0%

33
%

33
%

33
%

0%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

25
%

25
%

25
%

25
%

25
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
25

%
25

%
25

%
25

%
50

%
33

%
0%

33
%

33
%

33
%

0%
T

ot
al

7
3

4
4

4
4

4
3

2
3

3
3

3
18

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
, N

O
N

 R
E

S
 O

R
 V

IS
IT

O
R

0%
25

%
25

%
25

%
25

%
50

%
33

%
0%

33
%

33
%

33
%

0%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

1
1

1
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
3

3
3

3
3

2
2

2
2

2
2

3
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
0

1
1

1
0

25
T

ot
al

3
4

4
4

4
4

3
2

3
3

3
3

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

S
E

D
G

M
O

O
R

 P
LA

C
E

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
4

1
1

1
0

3
0

1
0

0
0

0
1

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
7

1
1

1
0

3
0

1
0

0
0

0
1

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
1

0
0

0
2

0
1

0
0

0
0

1
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

1
1

1
0

3
0

1
0

0
0

0
1

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0

0.
51

1.
52

2.
53

3.
54

4.
5

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

0
0.

51
1.

52
2.

53
3.

5

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

S
E

D
G

M
O

O
R

 P
L

A
C

E
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
L

L
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
T

H
U

R
S

D
A

Y
)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

3

3
3

3
3

2

2

2

2
2

2

3

0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1

1

0

1
1

1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

1
1

1
1

1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

48



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

59
49

43
42

41
41

40
39

34
36

35
37

S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
4

4
4

9
11

14
9

10
11

17
24

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
0

0
1

1
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

4
6

7
7

7
7

7
7

7
5

2
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
12

7
3

4
3

5
8

11
11

11
6

7
7

6
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

2
7

10
10

11
12

11
11

10
6

6
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
63

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

2
2

1
1

1
2

2
1

1
1

2
1

2
10

S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

94
%

94
%

95
%

10
0%

10
6%

11
1%

11
6%

10
5%

98
%

10
2%

10
0%

11
0%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

1
0

0
0

1
1

1
0

1
1

1
1

1
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

83
%

72
%

67
%

61
%

59
%

55
%

59
%

55
%

56
%

56
%

54
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
47

41
41

43
44

44
45

46
41

43
41

39
45

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
5

2
2

3
2

2
0

4
1

2
3

5
5

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

7%
7%

6%
13

%
16

%
19

%
14

%
16

%
17

%
27

%
35

%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

7%
10

%
11

%
10

%
10

%
10

%
11

%
11

%
11

%
8%

3%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
9

8
8

7
8

8
8

8
8

8
8

7
8

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

3%
12

%
16

%
15

%
16

%
16

%
17

%
18

%
16

%
10

%
9%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
7

2
2

2
1

1
2

2
2

1
2

2
1

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
10

%
18

%
22

%
28

%
31

%
36

%
30

%
34

%
33

%
37

%
43

%
T

ot
al

19
3

59
59

60
63

67
70

73
66

62
64

63
69

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

17
%

28
%

33
%

39
%

41
%

45
%

41
%

45
%

44
%

44
%

46
%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

2
7

10
10

11
12

11
11

10
6

6
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
4

6
7

7
7

7
7

7
7

5
2

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
59

49
43

42
41

41
40

39
34

36
35

37
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
4

4
4

9
11

14
9

10
11

17
24

25
T

ot
al

59
59

60
63

67
70

73
66

62
64

63
69

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

12
7

23
7

3
0

1
0

1
3

0
0

0
0

7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

2
7

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

1
1

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
47

38
9

1
5

5
5

4
4

5
5

4
15

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

5
23

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

9
3

2
1

0
0

0
1

1
0

1
1

4
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
7

0
1

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

17

T
ot

al
19

3
95

26
7

5
7

5
6

10
5

6
5

20
18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

3
4

2
4

3
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
3

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
22

10
3

2
3

3
2

7
1

3
5

20
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

73
16

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

95
26

7
5

7
5

6
10

5
6

5
20

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

05101520253035404550

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

010203040

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

)

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

12
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

59

49

43
42

41
41

40
39

34
36

35
37

0

0

0

0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0

4

4

4
9

11
14

9
10

11

17
24

0

4

6

7
7

7
7

7
7

7

5

2

0
2

7
10

10
11

12
11

11
10

6
6

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

49



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

T
IL

S
O

N
 C

LO
S

E
 

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

7
7

6
6

6
7

6
6

7
7

6
6

T
IL

S
O

N
 C

LO
S

E
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

1
1

1
0

0
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

11
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
17

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

T
IL

S
O

N
 C

LO
S

E
  O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
LL

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
41

%
41

%
35

%
35

%
41

%
41

%
35

%
41

%
47

%
47

%
35

%
35

%
N

O
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
86

%
10

0%
10

0%
86

%
88

%
88

%
10

0%
10

0%
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
12

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0%
0%

0%
0%

14
%

0%
0%

14
%

13
%

13
%

0%
0%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

17
7

7
6

6
7

7
6

7
8

8
6

6
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
0%

0%
0%

14
%

0%
0%

14
%

13
%

13
%

0%
0%

T
ot

al
28

7
7

6
6

7
7

6
7

8
8

6
6

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

0%
0%

0%
14

%
0%

0%
14

%
13

%
13

%
0%

0%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
7

7
6

6
6

7
6

6
7

7
6

6
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
1

1
1

0
0

25
T

ot
al

7
7

6
6

7
7

6
7

8
8

6
6

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

T
IL

S
O

N
 C

LO
S

E
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

11
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

17
4

1
0

1
0

1
1

0
0

1
0

4
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
28

4
1

0
1

0
1

1
0

0
1

0
4

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

1
0

1
0

1
1

0
0

1
0

4
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

4
1

0
1

0
1

1
0

0
1

0
4

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0123456789

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

012345

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

T
IL

S
O

N
 C

L
O

S
E

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

7
7

6
6

6

7
6

6
7

7

6
6

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1

0
0

1
1

1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

50



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

V
E

S
T

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

44
38

38
36

35
33

32
31

29
30

29
31

V
E

S
T

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
2

2
1

1
5

2
5

6
1

1
4

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

9
9

11
11

11
11

11
11

11
10

7
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
9

9
15

16
18

19
18

17
10

10
5

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

2
0

2
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
82

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

V
E

S
T

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
T

H
54

%
71

%
71

%
77

%
77

%
82

%
78

%
79

%
77

%
63

%
61

%
57

%
N

O
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
10

0%
66

%
66

%
57

%
56

%
49

%
50

%
48

%
46

%
58

%
58

%
66

%
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 B

A
Y

13
0

0
0

0
0

4
1

2
0

0
0

0
12

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0%
3%

3%
2%

2%
7%

3%
8%

10
%

2%
2%

9%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

16
%

16
%

17
%

17
%

16
%

17
%

17
%

17
%

21
%

20
%

15
%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

68
43

55
55

61
61

61
61

61
60

51
49

46
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
16

%
16

%
24

%
25

%
27

%
30

%
28

%
27

%
19

%
20

%
11

%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
19

%
19

%
25

%
27

%
34

%
33

%
35

%
37

%
21

%
22

%
19

%
T

ot
al

10
0

44
58

58
63

63
67

64
65

63
52

50
47

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

34
%

34
%

43
%

44
%

51
%

50
%

52
%

54
%

42
%

42
%

34
%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

9
9

15
16

18
19

18
17

10
10

5
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
9

9
11

11
11

11
11

11
11

10
7

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
44

38
38

36
35

33
32

31
29

30
29

31
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
2

2
1

1
5

2
5

6
1

1
4

25
T

ot
al

44
58

58
63

63
67

64
65

63
52

50
47

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

V
E

S
T

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

8
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

2
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
13

5
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

68
20

6
6

7
4

4
3

12
5

5
6

22
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
10

0
26

8
6

7
4

4
3

13
5

5
6

23
18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

4
2

3
2

11
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
3

5
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
13

1
5

3
2

1
1

2
2

2
1

23
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

13
7

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

26
8

6
7

4
4

3
13

5
5

6
23

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

010203040506070

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

0510152025

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

V
E

S
T

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

44

38
38

36
35

33
32

31
29

30
29

31

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

2
2

1
1

5
2

5
6

1
1

4

0

9
9

11
11

11

11
11

11

11
10

7

0

9
9

15
16

18
19

18
17

10
10

5

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

51



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

W
E

LL
S

 W
A

Y
 

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

21
21

17
17

17
18

17
17

16
16

17
15

W
E

LL
S

 W
A

Y
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
1

0
0

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

0
2

4
1

2
1

0
1

3
2

1
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

76
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

1
1

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
27

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

W
E

LL
S

 W
A

Y
  O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
LL

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

U
78

%
78

%
74

%
85

%
74

%
85

%
78

%
74

%
74

%
81

%
81

%
70

%
N

O
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
10

0%
10

0%
85

%
74

%
85

%
78

%
81

%
85

%
80

%
73

%
77

%
79

%
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
12

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0%
0%

10
%

17
%

5%
9%

5%
0%

5%
14

%
9%

5%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

5
0

0
0

1
0

1
0

0
0

0
1

1
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

0%
5%

4%
5%

4%
5%

5%
5%

5%
5%

5%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
21

21
21

19
20

19
21

20
19

19
21

20
17

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

0%
0%

4%
5%

9%
10

%
10

%
10

%
9%

9%
11

%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
0%

10
%

22
%

10
%

17
%

14
%

10
%

15
%

23
%

18
%

16
%

T
ot

al
10

7
21

21
20

23
20

23
21

20
20

22
22

19
18

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
, N

O
N

 R
E

S
 O

R
 V

IS
IT

O
R

0%
0%

15
%

26
%

15
%

22
%

19
%

15
%

20
%

27
%

23
%

21
%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

1
1

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
21

21
17

17
17

18
17

17
16

16
17

15
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

2
4

1
2

1
0

1
3

2
1

25
T

ot
al

21
21

20
23

20
23

21
20

20
22

22
19

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

W
E

LL
S

 W
A

Y
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

76
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
5

2
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

21
4

9
3

2
1

1
1

2
0

1
2

11
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
10

7
7

10
3

2
1

1
1

2
0

2
2

11
18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

1
1

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
2

7
1

1
0

1
0

2
0

1
2

11
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

5
3

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

7
10

3
2

1
1

1
2

0
2

2
11

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0510152025

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

024681012

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

W
E

L
L

S
 W

A
Y

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

U
R

S
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

21
21

17

17

17

18
17

17
16

16
17

15

0
0

0

0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0
0

0
0

2

4

1

2
1

0
1

3
2

1

0
0

1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1

0
0

0
1

1
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

52



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

W
IL

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

68
58

58
54

55
54

54
53

51
50

50
50

W
IL

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

2
2

4
3

1
1

5
6

9
11

12
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
9

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
4

4
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

4
4

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

3
4

5
5

6
6

6
6

3
2

2
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
6

3
2

3
4

4
3

3
3

2
2

2
2

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
80

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

W
IL

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
  O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
LL

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

T
H

85
%

84
%

85
%

86
%

86
%

84
%

84
%

88
%

86
%

86
%

85
%

86
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

87
%

85
%

78
%

80
%

81
%

81
%

76
%

74
%

72
%

74
%

72
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

1%
1%

1%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

3%
3%

6%
4%

1%
1%

7%
9%

13
%

16
%

17
%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
6%

6%
9%

9%
9%

9%
9%

9%
9%

6%
6%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

77
63

63
63

64
64

63
63

66
66

65
64

65
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
4%

6%
7%

7%
9%

9%
9%

9%
4%

3%
3%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
1

1
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
7%

9%
13

%
12

%
10

%
10

%
16

%
17

%
17

%
19

%
20

%
T

ot
al

10
2

68
67

68
69

69
67

67
70

69
69

68
69

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

13
%

15
%

22
%

20
%

19
%

19
%

24
%

26
%

26
%

25
%

26
%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

3
4

5
5

6
6

6
6

3
2

2
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
4

4
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

4
4

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
68

58
58

54
55

54
54

53
51

50
50

50
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
2

2
4

3
1

1
5

6
9

11
12

25
T

ot
al

68
67

68
69

69
67

67
70

69
69

68
69

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

W
IL

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

9
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

6
1

2
0

0
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

1
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

77
18

14
14

1
4

2
3

3
4

3
6

39
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
1

0
0

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
10

2
19

16
16

1
4

2
3

5
4

3
6

41
18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
1

2
1

3
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
0

2
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
16

3
6

1
3

0
2

2
0

3
4

41
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

3
13

9
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

19
16

16
1

4
2

3
5

4
3

6
41

27

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

T
hu

rs
da

y 
04

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

010203040506070

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

01020304050

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

W
IL

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
L

L
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
T

H
U

R
S

D
A

Y
)

75
%

80
%

85
%

90
%

95
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

68

58
58

54
55

54
54

53
51

50
50

50

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

1

0

2
2

4
3

1
1

5
6

9
11

12

0

4
4

6
6

6
6

6
6

6
4

4

0
3

4
5

5
6

6
6

6
3

2
2

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1
 (

W
E

E
K

D
A

Y
)

L
U

C
A

S
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

 A
N

D
 S

O
U

T
H

A
M

P
T

O
N

 W
A

Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.1

53



Jo
b 

T
itl

e:
W

el
ls

 R
oa

d

Jo
b 

N
um

be
r:

39
91

1

C
lie

nt
:

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f S
ou

th
w

ar
k

S
ur

ve
y 

D
at

e:

S
ur

ve
y 

P
er

io
d:

07
:0

0 
- 

19
:0

0

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

54



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

B
O

N
S

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

22
22

21
17

18
18

17
16

16
15

15
15

B
O

N
S

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

0
2

4
2

2
1

1
0

0
0

0
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

6
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

1
1

1
2

3
3

3
2

2
2

2
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
28

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

B
O

N
S

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 
79

%
82

%
86

%
79

%
79

%
82

%
75

%
71

%
64

%
61

%
61

%
61

%
N

O
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
10

0%
96

%
88

%
77

%
82

%
78

%
81

%
80

%
89

%
88

%
88

%
88

%
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
12

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0%
0%

8%
18

%
9%

9%
5%

5%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
28

21
22

23
20

21
22

20
19

17
16

16
16

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

4%
4%

5%
9%

13
%

14
%

15
%

11
%

12
%

12
%

12
%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
4%

13
%

23
%

18
%

22
%

19
%

20
%

11
%

12
%

12
%

12
%

T
ot

al
36

22
23

24
22

22
23

21
20

18
17

17
17

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

4%
13

%
23

%
18

%
22

%
19

%
20

%
11

%
12

%
12

%
12

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

1
1

1
2

3
3

3
2

2
2

2
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
22

22
21

17
18

18
17

16
16

15
15

15
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

2
4

2
2

1
1

0
0

0
0

25
T

ot
al

22
23

24
22

22
23

21
20

18
17

17
17

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

B
O

N
S

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

6
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

28
4

5
4

0
0

1
3

2
1

0
1

12
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
36

5
5

4
0

0
1

3
2

1
0

1
13

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

1
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
1

1
4

0
0

1
1

1
1

0
1

13
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

4
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

5
5

4
0

0
1

3
2

1
0

1
13

27

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0510152025

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

02468101214

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

B
O

N
S

O
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

22
22

21

17
18

18
17

16

16
15

15
15

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0

0

2

4
2

2
1

1

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

2
3

3
3

2
2

2
2

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

55



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 S

T
R

E
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

20
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
7

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
  O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
L

0%
0%

0%
14

%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
N

O
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
0%

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
0%

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

7
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 V
IS

IT
O

R
S

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

10
0%

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

0%
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
0%

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

10
0%

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

#D
IV

/0
!

T
ot

al
27

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
10

0%
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!
#D

IV
/0

!

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

25
T

ot
al

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 S

T
R

E
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

20
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
27

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0

0.
2

0.
4

0.
6

0.
81

1.
2

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

0

0.
2

0.
4

0.
6

0.
81

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

L
L

 C
H

U
R

C
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

56



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

C
O

LE
M

A
N

 R
O

A
D

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

45
43

38
34

35
35

32
32

30
29

30
31

C
O

LE
M

A
N

 R
O

A
D

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

2
2

2
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

2
2

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

2
2

2
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
2

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

1
2

5
2

0
2

1
1

2
1

2
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
1

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

19
1

1
1

2
1

1
1

0
0

0
0

1
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
3

3
3

3
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
5

0
0

0
0

1
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
93

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

C
O

LE
M

A
N

 R
O

A
D

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
S

51
%

51
%

47
%

46
%

43
%

41
%

40
%

41
%

40
%

40
%

41
%

43
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

96
%

91
%

86
%

79
%

88
%

92
%

86
%

84
%

81
%

78
%

79
%

78
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
4%

4%
5%

5%
3%

3%
3%

3%
3%

3%
5%

5%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

2%
5%

12
%

5%
0%

5%
3%

3%
5%

3%
5%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
2%

5%
5%

5%
5%

5%
5%

5%
5%

5%
5%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

91
44

43
41

39
37

35
34

37
36

36
37

37
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
5%

8%
8%

8%
8%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
2

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
2%

5%
12

%
5%

0%
5%

8%
11

%
14

%
11

%
13

%
T

ot
al

13
0

47
47

44
43

40
38

37
38

37
37

38
40

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

4%
9%

16
%

10
%

5%
11

%
13

%
16

%
19

%
16

%
18

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
3

3
3

3
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

2
2

2
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

2
2

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
1

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
45

43
38

34
35

35
32

32
30

29
30

31
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
1

2
5

2
0

2
1

1
2

1
2

25
T

ot
al

47
47

44
43

40
38

37
38

37
37

38
40

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

C
O

LE
M

A
N

 R
O

A
D

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

19
2

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

5
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

5
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

91
23

8
8

3
6

4
2

4
1

1
2

20
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
2

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
13

0
27

8
9

4
6

4
3

4
1

1
2

21
18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

1
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
1

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
10

6
9

2
4

4
3

4
1

0
1

20
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

17
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

27
8

9
4

6
4

3
4

1
1

2
21

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

05101520253035404550

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

0510152025

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

C
O

L
E

M
A

N
 R

O
A

D
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
L

L
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
S

A
T

U
R

D
A

Y
)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

45
43

38

34

35
35

32
32

30
29

30
31

2

2

2

2

1

1

1
1

1
1

2
2

0
1

2

5
2

0
2

1
1

2
1

2

0
1

2
2

2
2

2

2
2

2
2

2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

3
3

3
3

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

57



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
 G

R
E

E
N

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

2
2

2
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
 G

R
E

E
N

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
31

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
0

0
0

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
3

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
 G

R
E

E
N

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

67
%

67
%

67
%

67
%

10
0%

67
%

67
%

67
%

67
%

67
%

67
%

67
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

33
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
3

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

0%
0%

0%
33

%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
0%

0%
0%

33
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
0%

0%
0%

67
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

50
%

T
ot

al
34

2
2

2
2

3
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

0%
0%

0%
67

%
50

%
50

%
50

%
50

%
50

%
50

%
50

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
2

2
2

2
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

25
T

ot
al

2
2

2
2

3
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
 G

R
E

E
N

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

31
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
3

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
34

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0

0.
51

1.
52

2.
5

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

0
0.

2
0.

4
0.

6
0.

81
1.

2

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

C
O

T
T

A
G

E
 G

R
E

E
N

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

2
2

2
2

1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

58



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

D
A

G
M

A
R

 R
O

A
D

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

60
60

60
51

47
46

43
43

45
47

47
47

D
A

G
M

A
R

 R
O

A
D

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
1

3
2

2
2

3
3

4
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

1
1

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
10

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
1

1
1

3
3

2
3

5
5

4
4

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

10
4

5
5

5
3

3
4

4
4

6
5

5
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
74

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

D
A

G
M

A
R

 R
O

A
D

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
S

81
%

84
%

84
%

74
%

74
%

72
%

66
%

68
%

74
%

77
%

77
%

80
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

97
%

97
%

93
%

85
%

87
%

88
%

86
%

82
%

82
%

82
%

80
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

0%
0%

2%
5%

4%
4%

4%
5%

5%
7%

10
%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
2%

2%
4%

4%
4%

4%
4%

4%
4%

4%
3%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

73
55

56
56

49
51

49
44

45
50

50
51

53
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
2%

2%
2%

5%
6%

4%
6%

9%
9%

7%
7%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
2%

2%
4%

11
%

9%
8%

10
%

15
%

14
%

14
%

17
%

T
ot

al
94

60
62

62
55

55
53

49
50

55
57

57
59

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

3%
3%

7%
15

%
13

%
12

%
14

%
18

%
18

%
18

%
20

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

1
1

1
3

3
2

3
5

5
4

4
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
1

1
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
60

60
60

51
47

46
43

43
45

47
47

47
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
1

3
2

2
2

3
3

4
6

25
T

ot
al

60
62

62
55

55
53

49
50

55
57

57
59

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

D
A

G
M

A
R

 R
O

A
D

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

10
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

10
1

0
1

2
0

1
0

0
0

0
1

2
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

73
4

12
13

11
4

13
1

5
2

0
1

27
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
94

5
12

14
13

4
14

1
5

2
0

2
30

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

2
2

1
0

1
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

1
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
2

5
11

11
2

13
1

4
1

0
1

30
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

3
7

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

5
12

14
13

4
14

1
5

2
0

2
30

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0102030405060

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

051015202530

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

D
A

G
M

A
R

 R
O

A
D

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

60
60

60
51

47
46

43
43

45
47

47
47

0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

1

3
2

2
2

3
3

4
6

0
1

1
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

0
1

1
1

3
3

2
3

5
5

4
4

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

59



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

D
O

W
LA

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

22
21

21
20

18
15

15
14

15
13

17
16

D
O

W
LA

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

0
0

0
1

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

1
0

3
2

3
4

2
1

1
3

4
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
2

3
3

3
3

3
3

2
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
4

2
2

2
1

2
2

2
2

1
1

1
2

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
59

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

D
O

W
LA

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T
  O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
LL

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 

37
%

37
%

36
%

39
%

37
%

37
%

39
%

34
%

34
%

31
%

41
%

39
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

95
%

10
0%

87
%

82
%

68
%

65
%

70
%

75
%

72
%

71
%

70
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

5%
4%

5%
5%

6%
4%

4%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

5%
0%

13
%

9%
14

%
17

%
10

%
5%

6%
13

%
17

%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
57

20
20

19
21

20
19

20
17

18
16

22
20

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

0%
0%

0%
9%

14
%

13
%

15
%

15
%

17
%

13
%

9%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
5%

0%
13

%
18

%
27

%
30

%
25

%
20

%
22

%
25

%
26

%
T

ot
al

63
22

22
21

23
22

22
23

20
20

18
24

23
18

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
, N

O
N

 R
E

S
 O

R
 V

IS
IT

O
R

0%
5%

0%
13

%
18

%
27

%
30

%
25

%
20

%
22

%
25

%
26

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
2

3
3

3
3

3
3

2
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
22

21
21

20
18

15
15

14
15

13
17

16
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
1

0
3

2
3

4
2

1
1

3
4

25
T

ot
al

22
22

21
23

22
22

23
20

20
18

24
23

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

D
O

W
LA

S
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

4
2

0
1

0
0

0
1

1
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

57
12

9
4

5
2

4
1

0
0

1
1

9
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
63

15
9

5
5

2
4

3
1

0
1

1
9

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

2
0

0
2

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
7

4
3

3
2

4
0

1
0

1
1

9
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

8
5

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

15
9

5
5

2
4

3
1

0
1

1
9

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0510152025

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

02468101214

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

D
O

W
L

A
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

22
21

21

20
18

15
15

14
15

13
17

16

0

0

0

0

0

1
1

1

1
1

1
1

0
1

0

3

2

3
4

2
1

1
3

4

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0

0
0

0
0

2
3

3
3

3
3

3
2

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

60



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 M
E

W
S

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

6
7

6
5

5
6

7
6

5
4

4
3

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 M
E

W
S

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
4

0
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

3
1

1
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

1
1

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
9

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 M
E

W
S

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
S

67
%

78
%

67
%

56
%

56
%

67
%

78
%

67
%

89
%

89
%

44
%

33
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

63
%

50
%

10
0%

10
0%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
38

%
50

%
0%

0%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
9

5
6

6
5

5
6

6
5

7
7

3
3

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

38
%

50
%

0%
0%

T
ot

al
20

6
7

6
5

5
6

7
6

8
8

4
3

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
38

%
50

%
0%

0%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
6

7
6

5
5

6
7

6
5

4
4

3
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
4

0
0

25
T

ot
al

6
7

6
5

5
6

7
6

8
8

4
3

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 M
E

W
S

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

3
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

9
1

4
0

0
0

0
2

1
1

0
0

2
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
20

1
5

0
0

1
0

2
1

1
0

0
2

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

2
0

0
1

0
2

1
1

0
0

2
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

1
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

1
5

0
0

1
0

2
1

1
0

0
2

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

012345678

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

012345

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 M
E

W
S

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

6
7

6
5

5
6

7
6

5

4

4
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

3

4

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

61



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 R
O

A
D

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

67
65

62
54

50
46

46
43

41
41

42
41

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 R
O

A
D

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
1

0
0

1
1

7
7

3
2

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
11

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

0
0

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
0

0
3

3
3

7
8

7
7

5
5

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

5
2

2
2

2
2

2
1

1
1

1
1

1
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
81

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 R
O

A
D

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
S

83
%

80
%

77
%

74
%

68
%

63
%

69
%

67
%

70
%

70
%

64
%

62
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

90
%

91
%

90
%

82
%

80
%

72
%

72
%

81
%

82
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

0%
0%

2%
0%

0%
2%

2%
12

%
12

%
6%

4%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

0%
0%

3%
4%

4%
4%

4%
4%

4%
4%

4%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
80

63
61

58
56

51
47

52
50

54
54

49
47

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

0%
0%

5%
5%

6%
13

%
15

%
12

%
12

%
10

%
10

%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
0%

0%
7%

5%
6%

14
%

17
%

25
%

25
%

15
%

14
%

T
ot

al
98

67
65

62
60

55
51

56
54

57
57

52
50

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

0%
0%

10
%

9%
10

%
18

%
20

%
28

%
28

%
19

%
18

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

3
3

3
7

8
7

7
5

5
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
67

65
62

54
50

46
46

43
41

41
42

41
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
1

0
0

1
1

7
7

3
2

25
T

ot
al

67
65

62
60

55
51

56
54

57
57

52
50

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 R
O

A
D

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
1

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

11
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

5
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

80
6

18
10

9
8

7
6

2
2

3
2

27
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

17

T
ot

al
98

6
19

10
10

8
8

6
3

2
3

2
29

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

2
3

3
1

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
4

12
8

8
5

5
5

3
0

3
2

29
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

2
7

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

6
19

10
10

8
8

6
3

2
3

2
29

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

010203040506070

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

051015202530

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

G
R

A
C

E
'S

 R
O

A
D

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

67
65

62

54
50

46

46
43

41
41

42
41

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

1
0

0

1
1

7
7

3
2

0
0

0

2
2

2

2
2

2
2

2
2

0
0

0
3

3
3

7
8

7
7

5
5

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

62



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

M
A

U
D

E
 R

O
A

D
 

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

45
46

45
37

37
36

36
32

29
26

27
27

M
A

U
D

E
 R

O
A

D
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

1
1

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

0
0

2
2

3
1

1
1

2
1

1
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

13
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
1

1
2

2
2

1
1

1
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
53

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

M
A

U
D

E
 R

O
A

D
  O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
LL

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

85
%

87
%

85
%

74
%

75
%

75
%

74
%

66
%

62
%

57
%

57
%

57
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

95
%

93
%

90
%

92
%

91
%

88
%

87
%

90
%

90
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
3%

3%
3%

3%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

0%
0%

5%
5%

8%
3%

3%
3%

7%
3%

3%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
53

43
44

43
37

38
38

37
34

32
29

29
29

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

0%
0%

0%
3%

3%
5%

6%
6%

3%
3%

3%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
0%

0%
5%

8%
10

%
8%

9%
9%

10
%

7%
7%

T
ot

al
69

45
46

45
39

40
40

39
35

33
30

30
30

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

0%
0%

5%
8%

10
%

8%
9%

9%
10

%
7%

7%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
1

1
2

2
2

1
1

1
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

1
1

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
45

46
45

37
37

36
36

32
29

26
27

27
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
2

2
3

1
1

1
2

1
1

25
T

ot
al

45
46

45
39

40
40

39
35

33
30

30
30

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

M
A

U
D

E
 R

O
A

D
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

13
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

53
2

9
11

7
2

10
3

4
2

2
1

15
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

17

T
ot

al
69

2
9

11
7

2
10

4
4

2
2

1
16

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

6
9

6
1

9
4

4
2

2
1

16
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

2
3

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

2
9

11
7

2
10

4
4

2
2

1
16

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

05101520253035404550

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

05101520

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

M
A

U
D

E
 R

O
A

D
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
L

L
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
S

A
T

U
R

D
A

Y
)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

45
46

45
37

37
36

36
32

29
26

27
27

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
1

1

1
1

0
0

0
2

2
3

1
1

1
2

1
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

2
2

2
1

1
1

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

63



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

N
E

W
E

N
T

 C
LO

S
E

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

2
2

2
2

2
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

N
E

W
E

N
T

 C
LO

S
E

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

1
0

1
2

0
0

0
0

0
1

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
12

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
E

W
E

N
T

 C
LO

S
E

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
17

%
17

%
25

%
17

%
25

%
25

%
8%

8%
8%

8%
8%

17
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

10
0%

67
%

10
0%

67
%

33
%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

50
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

0%
33

%
0%

33
%

67
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
50

%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
12

2
2

3
2

3
3

1
1

1
1

1
2

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
0%

33
%

0%
33

%
67

%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

50
%

T
ot

al
18

2
2

3
2

3
3

1
1

1
1

1
2

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

0%
33

%
0%

33
%

67
%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
50

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
2

2
2

2
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

1
0

1
2

0
0

0
0

0
1

25
T

ot
al

2
2

3
2

3
3

1
1

1
1

1
2

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

N
E

W
E

N
T

 C
LO

S
E

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

12
5

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
18

5
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

5
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

5
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0

0.
51

1.
52

2.
53

3.
5

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

0123456

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

N
E

W
E

N
T

 C
L

O
S

E
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
L

L
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
S

A
T

U
R

D
A

Y
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

2
2

2

2

2

1

1
1

1
1

1

1

0
0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
0

1

0

1

2

0
0

0
0

0

1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

64



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

P
A

R
K

H
O

U
S

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

24
21

21
20

20
20

20
19

19
20

20
20

P
A

R
K

H
O

U
S

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

0
0

1
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

60
0

0
0

1
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
10

4
3

3
2

2
2

2
2

2
3

3
3

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

1
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
24

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

P
A

R
K

H
O

U
S

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
  O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
LL

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

10
0%

88
%

88
%

88
%

83
%

88
%

83
%

79
%

83
%

83
%

83
%

83
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

95
%

10
0%

95
%

10
0%

10
0%

95
%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

0%
0%

5%
0%

5%
0%

0%
5%

0%
0%

0%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
23

19
18

18
18

18
18

18
17

17
17

17
17

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
0%

0%
5%

0%
5%

0%
0%

5%
0%

0%
0%

T
ot

al
95

24
21

21
21

20
21

20
19

20
20

20
20

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

0%
0%

5%
0%

5%
0%

0%
5%

0%
0%

0%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
24

21
21

20
20

20
20

19
19

20
20

20
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
1

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

25
T

ot
al

24
21

21
21

20
21

20
19

20
20

20
20

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

P
A

R
K

H
O

U
S

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

60
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

10
1

0
2

1
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

1
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

1
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

23
1

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

17
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
95

6
0

2
1

0
0

1
1

0
0

0
18

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
3

0
2

1
0

0
1

1
0

0
0

18
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

6
0

2
1

0
0

1
1

0
0

0
18

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

02468101214161820

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

05101520

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

P
A

R
K

H
O

U
S

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
L

L
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
S

A
T

U
R

D
A

Y
)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

24
21

21
20

20
20

20
19

19
20

20
20

0
0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

65



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

R
A

IN
B

O
W

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

53
49

48
47

46
44

43
43

44
42

42
47

R
A

IN
B

O
W

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
2

2
3

2
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

2
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

2
2

2
2

2
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

2
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

1
6

4
6

3
3

4
6

6
7

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
1

2
3

3
6

6
6

6
5

5
4

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

4
2

2
2

3
3

3
2

3
3

3
3

3
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
64

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

3
1

1
0

2
2

2
1

1
1

2
1

2
10

R
A

IN
B

O
W

 S
T

R
E

E
T

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

86
%

81
%

84
%

92
%

88
%

91
%

84
%

84
%

88
%

86
%

86
%

95
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

96
%

94
%

89
%

80
%

82
%

76
%

80
%

80
%

79
%

76
%

76
%

77
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
4%

4%
6%

3%
4%

2%
2%

2%
2%

2%
2%

3%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

0%
2%

10
%

7%
10

%
6%

6%
7%

11
%

11
%

11
%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
0%

0%
2%

2%
2%

2%
2%

2%
2%

2%
2%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

59
49

46
49

52
49

52
50

48
50

48
50

54
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
2%

4%
5%

5%
10

%
11

%
11

%
11

%
9%

9%
7%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
2

1
1

1
0

0
0

0
1

1
1

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
2%

6%
15

%
13

%
21

%
17

%
17

%
18

%
20

%
20

%
18

%
T

ot
al

74
55

52
54

59
56

58
54

54
56

55
55

61
18

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
, N

O
N

 R
E

S
 O

R
 V

IS
IT

O
R

0%
2%

6%
17

%
14

%
22

%
19

%
19

%
20

%
22

%
22

%
20

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

1
2

3
3

6
6

6
6

5
5

4
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

2
2

3
2

2
1

1
1

1
1

1
2

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
53

49
48

47
46

44
43

43
44

42
42

47
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

1
6

4
6

3
3

4
6

6
7

25
T

ot
al

55
52

54
59

56
58

54
54

56
55

55
61

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

R
A

IN
B

O
W

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

1
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

4
2

0
0

1
1

0
0

0
1

0
0

1
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

3
5

2
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

59
19

10
9

10
5

8
3

3
2

2
1

27
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
2

0
0

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
74

27
12

11
11

7
8

4
3

3
2

1
29

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

4
2

0
3

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

2
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
12

6
4

7
4

8
1

3
2

2
1

28
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

13
6

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

27
12

11
11

7
8

4
3

3
2

1
29

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0102030405060

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

051015202530

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

R
A

IN
B

O
W

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

53
49

48

47
46

44
43

43
44

42
42

47

2
2

3

2
2

1

1
1

1
1

1
2

0
0

1

6
4

6
3

3
4

6
6

7

0
0

0
1

1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1

0
1

2
3

3
6

6
6

6
5

5
4

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

66



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
E

D
G

M
O

O
R

 P
LA

C
E

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

3
3

2
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

S
E

D
G

M
O

O
R

 P
LA

C
E

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
4

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

S
E

D
G

M
O

O
R

 P
LA

C
E

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
75

%
75

%
50

%
10

0%
75

%
75

%
75

%
75

%
75

%
75

%
75

%
50

%
N

O
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
10

0%
10

0%
10

0%
25

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
50

%
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 B

A
Y

4
3

3
2

4
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

2
12

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0%
0%

0%
50

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
0%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
0%

0%
25

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
50

%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
0%

0%
50

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
33

%
0%

T
ot

al
7

3
3

2
4

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
2

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

0%
0%

75
%

67
%

67
%

67
%

67
%

67
%

67
%

67
%

50
%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
3

3
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
2

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
0

25
T

ot
al

3
3

2
4

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
2

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

S
E

D
G

M
O

O
R

 P
LA

C
E

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
4

6
1

2
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
1

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
7

6
1

2
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
1

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

1
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

6
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

6
1

2
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
1

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0

0.
51

1.
52

2.
53

3.
54

4.
5

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

01234567

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

S
E

D
G

M
O

O
R

 P
L

A
C

E
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
L

L
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
S

A
T

U
R

D
A

Y
)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

3
3

2

1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1

1

0
0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0

2
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

0

0
0

0

1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1

1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

67



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

52
44

44
43

38
37

37
31

29
28

31
30

S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
6

13
10

9
8

6
14

9
9

8
18

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

1
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
12

7
4

2
5

7
6

7
6

8
4

5
4

7
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

2
2

2
3

8
10

10
8

7
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
63

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

2
0

1
2

1
1

1
2

2
2

2
1

2
10

S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

83
%

81
%

94
%

90
%

81
%

78
%

76
%

87
%

79
%

78
%

78
%

90
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

1
0

0
1

1
1

0
0

0
1

1
0

1
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

86
%

75
%

75
%

75
%

76
%

77
%

56
%

58
%

57
%

63
%

53
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
47

38
38

39
38

33
31

31
36

33
31

34
34

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
5

1
1

3
2

1
3

2
3

3
3

3
5

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

12
%

22
%

18
%

18
%

16
%

13
%

25
%

18
%

18
%

16
%

32
%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
2%

3%
4%

4%
4%

4%
4%

4%
4%

4%
4%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

9
8

8
8

7
7

6
6

6
7

7
7

8
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
0%

0%
4%

4%
4%

6%
15

%
20

%
20

%
16

%
12

%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
7

1
1

1
1

2
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
12

%
22

%
21

%
22

%
20

%
19

%
40

%
38

%
39

%
33

%
44

%
T

ot
al

19
3

52
51

59
57

51
49

48
55

50
49

49
57

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

14
%

25
%

25
%

25
%

24
%

23
%

44
%

42
%

43
%

37
%

47
%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

2
2

2
3

8
10

10
8

7
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
1

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
52

44
44

43
38

37
37

31
29

28
31

30
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
6

13
10

9
8

6
14

9
9

8
18

25
T

ot
al

52
51

59
57

51
49

48
55

50
49

49
57

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

12
7

26
0

1
0

0
0

1
1

1
0

0
1

7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

2
3

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

1
2

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
47

22
8

6
7

7
0

5
6

0
0

2
16

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

5
28

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

9
3

0
2

3
2

0
3

0
1

0
0

2
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
7

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
19

3
85

11
9

11
9

0
10

7
2

1
2

19
18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

3
5

0
1

1
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
9

3
3

8
4

0
9

6
2

0
1

19
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

76
8

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

85
11

9
11

9
0

10
7

2
1

2
19

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

051015202530354045

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

051015202530

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

52

44

44
43

38
37

37

31
29

28
31

30

0

0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0

0

0

0

6

13
10

9
8

6

14
9

9

8
18

0
1

2

2
2

2
2

2

2
2

2

2

0
0

0
2

2
2

3

8
10

10
8

7

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

68



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

T
IL

S
O

N
 C

LO
S

E
 

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

8
8

6
5

6
4

4
4

4
4

5
3

T
IL

S
O

N
 C

LO
S

E
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

2
1

1
0

0
0

1
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

11
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
17

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

T
IL

S
O

N
 C

LO
S

E
  O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
LL

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

47
%

47
%

35
%

29
%

35
%

35
%

29
%

29
%

24
%

24
%

29
%

24
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

67
%

80
%

80
%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

75
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

33
%

20
%

20
%

0%
0%

0%
25

%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
17

8
8

6
5

6
5

5
5

4
4

5
4

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
33

%
20

%
20

%
0%

0%
0%

25
%

T
ot

al
28

8
8

6
5

6
6

5
5

4
4

5
4

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

33
%

20
%

20
%

0%
0%

0%
25

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
8

8
6

5
6

4
4

4
4

4
5

3
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
0

0
2

1
1

0
0

0
1

25
T

ot
al

8
8

6
5

6
6

5
5

4
4

5
4

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

T
IL

S
O

N
 C

LO
S

E
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

11
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

17
3

2
2

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
1

3
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
28

4
2

2
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
3

18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
2

2
1

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
1

3
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

2
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

4
2

2
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
3

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

0123456789

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

0
0.

51
1.

52
2.

53
3.

5

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

T
IL

S
O

N
 C

L
O

S
E

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

8
8

6
5

6

4

4
4

4
4

5

3

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0

2

1
1

0
0

0

1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

69



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

V
E

S
T

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

 
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

12
:0

0
13

:0
0

14
:0

0
15

:0
0

16
:0

0
17

:0
0

18
:0

0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

37
38

36
35

34
34

29
29

28
27

25
26

V
E

S
T

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
1

1
1

1
1

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

IS
A

B
LE

D
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
1

0
0

2
3

2
3

3
3

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

7
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

0
2

3
3

5
8

15
14

13
12

11
10

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
82

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

V
E

S
T

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

  O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

LL
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
S

A
45

%
49

%
48

%
48

%
48

%
51

%
56

%
56

%
52

%
51

%
48

%
48

%
N

O
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
10

0%
95

%
92

%
90

%
87

%
81

%
63

%
63

%
65

%
64

%
64

%
67

%
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 B

A
Y

13
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
12

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0%
0%

0%
3%

0%
0%

4%
7%

5%
7%

8%
8%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

68
36

39
38

37
38

42
46

46
43

42
38

38
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
5%

8%
8%

13
%

19
%

33
%

30
%

30
%

29
%

28
%

26
%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
5%

8%
10

%
13

%
19

%
37

%
37

%
35

%
36

%
36

%
33

%
T

ot
al

10
0

37
40

39
39

39
42

46
46

43
42

39
39

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

5%
8%

10
%

13
%

19
%

37
%

37
%

35
%

36
%

36
%

33
%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

2
3

3
5

8
15

14
13

12
11

10
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
37

38
36

35
34

34
29

29
28

27
25

26
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

0
1

0
0

2
3

2
3

3
3

25
T

ot
al

37
40

39
39

39
42

46
46

43
42

39
39

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

V
E

S
T

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

 
C

A
R

 C
LU

B
1

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

8
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
13

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

68
4

10
6

6
3

13
6

1
2

4
0

18
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
10

0
5

11
6

6
4

13
6

1
2

4
0

18
18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

4
2

7
4

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
2

4
6

2
2

6
2

1
2

4
0

18
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

3
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

5
11

6
6

4
13

6
1

2
4

0
18

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

05101520253035404550

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

05101520

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

V
E

S
T

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

37
38

36
35

34
34

29
29

28
27

25
26

0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

1

0

0

2
3

2
3

3
3

0

0
0

0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

3
3

5
8

15
14

13
12

11
10

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

70



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

W
E

LL
S

 W
A

Y
 

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

14
13

13
13

15
14

14
11

11
11

12
11

W
E

LL
S

 W
A

Y
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

1
0

0
2

2
3

2
0

1
3

2
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

76
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
4

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

1
1

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
27

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

W
E

LL
S

 W
A

Y
  O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
LL

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

T
52

%
52

%
48

%
52

%
67

%
63

%
67

%
52

%
44

%
48

%
59

%
52

%
N

O
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

11
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
10

0%
93

%
10

0%
93

%
83

%
82

%
78

%
79

%
92

%
85

%
75

%
79

%
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
12

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0%
7%

0%
0%

11
%

12
%

17
%

14
%

0%
8%

19
%

14
%

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
5

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

21
14

13
13

14
18

17
18

13
12

13
15

13
15

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

  C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

0%
0%

0%
7%

6%
6%

6%
7%

8%
8%

6%
7%

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
7%

0%
7%

17
%

18
%

22
%

21
%

8%
15

%
25

%
21

%
T

ot
al

10
7

14
14

13
14

18
17

18
14

12
13

16
14

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

7%
0%

7%
17

%
18

%
22

%
21

%
8%

15
%

25
%

21
%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
14

13
13

13
15

14
14

11
11

11
12

11
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
1

0
0

2
2

3
2

0
1

3
2

25
T

ot
al

14
14

13
14

18
17

18
14

12
13

16
14

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

W
E

LL
S

 W
A

Y
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

76
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

4
2

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
5

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

21
5

2
3

1
2

0
3

2
1

0
1

7
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
10

7
7

3
3

1
2

0
3

2
1

0
1

7
18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

1
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
1

1
1

0
1

0
3

2
1

0
1

7
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

6
2

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

7
3

3
1

2
0

3
2

1
0

1
7

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

02468101214161820

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

02468

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

W
E

L
L

S
 W

A
Y

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y
 B

Y
 A

L
L

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

14

13

13

13

15
14

14
11

11

11

12
11

0

0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

2
2

3
2

0

1

3
2

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

71



Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

W
IL

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

60
58

57
50

50
47

45
41

39
36

42
40

W
IL

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

1
1

1
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0

0
1

2
2

4
9

7
4

5
8

6
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
9

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

6
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
5

5
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

5
4

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

1
1

3
3

4
7

7
6

6
2

2
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B
6

2
2

2
2

2
1

2
2

1
1

1
1

8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

T
O

T
A

L 
S

A
F

E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

S
80

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

W
IL

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
  O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
LL

 U
S

E
R

 T
Y

P
E

S
 (

S
A

75
%

80
%

80
%

76
%

76
%

76
%

84
%

76
%

69
%

66
%

71
%

65
%

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

10
0%

91
%

89
%

82
%

82
%

77
%

67
%

67
%

71
%

68
%

74
%

77
%

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 D

IS
A

B
LE

D
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

13
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
0%

0%
2%

3%
3%

7%
13

%
11

%
7%

9%
14

%
12

%
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
14

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 -

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
0%

8%
8%

10
%

10
%

10
%

9%
10

%
11

%
11

%
9%

8%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
77

57
61

61
59

59
60

64
59

54
52

56
51

15
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 -
  C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
0%

2%
2%

5%
5%

7%
10

%
11

%
11

%
11

%
4%

4%
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

 O
R

 N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

0%
2%

3%
8%

8%
13

%
24

%
23

%
18

%
21

%
18

%
15

%
T

ot
al

10
2

60
64

64
61

61
61

67
61

55
53

57
52

18
%

 O
F

 V
E

H
IC

LE
S

 C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

, N
O

N
 R

E
S

 O
R

 V
IS

IT
O

R
0%

9%
11

%
18

%
18

%
23

%
33

%
33

%
29

%
32

%
26

%
23

%

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

1
1

3
3

4
7

7
6

6
2

2
21

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

22
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
5

5
6

6
6

6
6

6
6

5
4

23
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
60

58
57

50
50

47
45

41
39

36
42

40
24

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

0
0

1
2

2
4

9
7

4
5

8
6

25
T

ot
al

60
64

64
61

61
61

67
61

55
53

57
52

Jo
b

 T
it

le
:

W
el

ls
 R

o
ad

Jo
b

 N
u

m
b

er
:

39
91

1

S
u

rv
ey

 T
yp

e:
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
u

rv
ey

s

S
tr

ee
t N

am
e

P
ar

ki
ng

 B
ay

N
o

S
pa

ce
s

00
:0

0
01

:0
0

02
:0

0
03

:0
0

04
:0

0
05

:0
0

06
:0

0
07

:0
0

08
:0

0
09

:0
0

10
:0

0
11

:0
0

W
IL

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5

D
O

U
B

LE
 R

E
D

9
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
6

D
O

U
B

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
7

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

6
0

2
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
8

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
10

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
11

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

12

S
H

A
R

E
D

 U
S

E
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
13

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

14

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

77
13

22
11

7
6

8
6

3
4

4
5

25
15

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

16

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

17

T
ot

al
10

2
14

24
13

7
6

8
6

3
4

4
5

26
18

C
O

M
M

U
T

E
R

S
0

0
0

3
2

1
2

0
0

0
0

0
22

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

23
N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
1

3
0

24
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
3

10
10

4
4

7
4

3
2

3
2

26
25

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

11
14

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

26
T

ot
al

14
24

13
7

6
8

6
3

4
4

5
26

27

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
B

ea
t 

T
im

e

S
at

ur
da

y 
06

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

10
D

u
ra

ti
o

n

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

Y

010203040506070

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

12:00

13:00

14:00

15:00

16:00

17:00

18:00

B
ea

t 
T

im
e

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W

D
R

O
P

 K
E

R
B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D
S

IN
G

LE
 Y

E
LL

O
W

 -
 D

E
S

IR
A

B
LE

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 B

A
Y

/P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
 K

E
R

B
W

H
IT

E
 L

IN
E

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 D
U

R
A

T
IO

N

051015202530

00:00

01:00

02:00

03:00

04:00

05:00

06:00

07:00

08:00

09:00

10:00

11:00

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

Number of Vehicles

C
A

R
 C

LU
B

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

 B
A

Y
D

O
U

B
LE

 R
E

D
D

O
U

B
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
D

R
O

P
 K

E
R

B

K
E

E
P

 C
LE

A
R

LO
A

D
IN

G
 B

A
Y

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

H
A

R
E

D
 U

S
E

D

S
IN

G
LE

 Y
E

LL
O

W
 -

 D
E

S
IR

A
B

LE
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
U

N
R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

 B
A

Y
/P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

 K
E

R
B

W
H

IT
E

 L
IN

E

W
IL

S
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 A
L

L
 U

S
E

R
 T

Y
P

E
S

 (
T

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

%
 o

f 
O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

 B
Y

 V
E

H
IC

L
E

 T
Y

P
E

60

58
57

50
50

47

45
41

39
36

42
40

0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0

0
1

2
2

4

9
7

4
5

8
6

0

5
5

6
6

6

6
6

6
6

5
4

0
1

1
3

3
4

7
7

6
6

2
2

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

07
:0

0
08

:0
0

09
:0

0
10

:0
0

11
:0

0
12

:0
0

13
:0

0
14

:0
0

15
:0

0
16

:0
0

17
:0

0
18

:0
0

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

90
%

10
0%

R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
S

D
IS

A
B

LE
D

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

N
O

N
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
S

%
 O

F
 V

E
H

IC
LE

S
 C

O
M

M
U

T
E

R
 O

R
 N

O
N

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2
 (

S
A

T
U

R
D

A
Y

)
L

U
C

A
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S
 A

N
D

 S
O

U
T

H
A

M
P

T
O

N
 W

A
Y

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

.2

72



LG/SW parking consultation
Appendix 6
OS land use survey '05 March 2011

Produced on behalf of London Borough of Southwark.
<L>MapScale

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009© Crown copyright. All rights reserved ((0)100019252) 2009

by: <L>UserTextUsername

LEGEND

VacantLandPrevDevlpd

Allotments

Defence_LandBuildings

Derelict_LandBuildings

Docks

EducationalBuildings

EducationBuild_Land

Feild_margins

Horticulture_Orchards

Industry

Institnl_and_ComnlAccom

InstitutionalBuildings

Leisure_RecreationalBuildings

MixedWoodland

Offices

OutdoorRecreation

PublicCarParks

Railways

Religious_buildings

Residential

Retailing

Roads_Walkways

Running_Water

Salt_marsh

Scrub

Standing_water

Storage_warehousing

Unclassified_or_unknown

Utilities

Vacant_buildings

Consultation area

APPENDIX 5.2

73



www.southwark.gov.uk 

Lucas Gardens and Southampton Way
1st and 2nd stage CPZ consultation report 

June 2011 

74



- 2 - 

This report details the findings of a study on the possibility of introducing parking controls in the Lucas 

Gardens and Southampton Way areas.  It provides the evidence base for the associated key decision 

report which sets out recommendations for the cabinet member for transport, environment and recycling 

Section A – Introduction ............................................................................................................................................3

Section B – Study methods and decision making ..................................................................................................4

Background of study.....................................................................................................................................4

History of parking consultations in the area ..............................................................................................5

Project structure ............................................................................................................................................6

Consultation area ..........................................................................................................................................6

Existing parking arrangements in LG area .................................................................................................8

Existing parking arrangements in SW area ................................................................................................8

Consultation document.................................................................................................................................9

Public exhibitions ........................................................................................................................................10

Further information .....................................................................................................................................10

Parking surveys ...........................................................................................................................................10

Section C – Consultation questionnaire results summary ..................................................................................11

Summary of response rate .........................................................................................................................11

Headline consultation results for Lucas Gardens....................................................................................13

Headline consultation results for Southampton Way..............................................................................20

Communications made outside of the Freepost questionnaire .............................................................28

Section D – Parking stress survey summary.........................................................................................................30

Headline results (LG)...................................................................................................................................30

Headline results (SW)..................................................................................................................................30

Section E – Study conclusions and recommendations........................................................................................34

Options - LG .................................................................................................................................................35

Options - SW ................................................................................................................................................35

List of appendices ....................................................................................................................................................36

Version control..........................................................................................................................................................36

www.southwark.gov.uk 

Lucas Gardens and Southampton Way
1st and 2nd stage CPZ consultation report 

June 2011 

75



- 3 - 

Section A – Introduction 

Southwark Council has twenty Controlled Parking Zones (CPZs) in operation (appendix 1) which have 
been introduced over a period of almost 40 years.  This time span reflects the historical and continued 
challenge, faced by every local authority, in matching the demand by drivers to park their cars with a 
finite supply of on-street parking spaces. 

The Parking and Enforcement Plan1 (PEP) sets out the council’s policy in the management of parking on 
its public highway.  The PEP acknowledges that few things polarise public opinion more than parking but 
that restrictions, in many areas of the borough, provide a critical tool in prioritising space in favour of 
certain groups (e.g. blue badge holders, residents or loading) as well as assisting in keeping the traffic 
flowing and improving road safety. 

The PEP was adopted as an appendix to the council’s overall transport strategy, the Local 
Implementation Plan2 (LIP).  Amongst a variety of transport objectives, the LIP sets out the council’s aim 
to relieve congestion on our roads whilst recognising that motor vehicles play an important part in many 
people’s lives and need to be catered for within our road network.   

The LIP notes that congestion can be tackled through a combination of strategies – one of which is 
managing demand for travel through parking regulation.   

Parking is the end result of a trip. The availability of parking at a destination has a clear effect on whether 
the trip is made by car or not. Existing parking controls all across Southwark already assist in improving 
traffic and congestion levels.  The controls provide another significant tool that can be used to help 
control the use of the private car.  This, in turn, provides benefits in terms of vehicular emissions, traffic 
congestion and social inclusion and maintenance costs. 

The LIP (and it’s replacement, the emerging Transport Plan 20113) fit within the wider context, at a 
regional level, of the Mayor’s Transport Strategy4.

1 http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Uploads/FILE_42772.pdf
2 http://www.southwark.gov.uk/YourServices/transport/lip/
3 http://www.southwark.gov.uk/info/200107/transport_policy/1947/southwark_transport_plan_2011
4 http://www.london.gov.uk/shaping-london/

76



- 4 - 

Section B – Study methods and decision making 

Background of study 
The PEP5 identifies the study areas as locations which may justify consideration of a new zone.  The 
PEP describes these two areas as residential areas in which there is a high density of car ownership and 
there are also concentrations of employment. Another consideration is both areas’ proximity to other 
controlled parking zones (EC, L and NC). 

Network development carried out a first stage (‘in-principal’) consultation and analysis of an area of 
uncontrolled streets (non-CPZ) known as East Camberwell / West Peckham in September 2006. 

Two areas showed support and were progressed to 2nd stage (detailed design) consultation, East 
Camberwell and Lucas Gardens (LG). This took place in November 2007. 

In June/July 2008 – CPZ draft report/plans presented to Camberwell Community Council and the key 
decision was taken by the director of environment and housing agreeing the detailed layout and to 
introduce EC CPZ only. As a result of late representations from residents the decision was taken not to 
proceed with the introduction of the LG CPZ and Camberwell Community Council asked that LG area be 
monitored during the EC traffic orders experimental period. 

In April 2009 EC CPZ was introduced as an experimental traffic order. In September 2010 EC CPZ traffic 
order was made permanent. 

The council’s 2010-12 network development programme was approved in June 2010 by the cabinet 
member for environment and transport. Pertinently, this included a parking consultation of residents and 
businesses in streets around the periphery of the existing EC CPZ. 

The reason to re-consult is based upon a commitment6 to monitor parking around the periphery of EC 
CPZ for a period of 18 months, following the operational commencement of EC CPZ.  It was agreed that 
a further one-stage consultation be carried out should substantial representations be made in the area 
(during the review period).  

During the 18 month period, officers completed two spot parking-occupancy surveys that showed an 
increase in parking demand in surrounding roads. 

All streets within the Lucas Gardens area and Parkhouse Street7 (noted that this is a boundary road 
between Camberwell and Walworth community council) have recently required the installation of double 
yellow lines on all junctions and bends to prevent dangerous/obstructive parking.  This is a familiar 
indicator that parking pressure is high.  

Furthermore, the council has received continued correspondence on the matter, the vast majority of 
which can be summarised as asking the council to re-consult / introduce a CPZ.  This has included a 288 

5 Chapter 4.3, Parking and Enforcement Plan, Southwark Council 
6 Lucas Gardens controlled parking zone 2nd stage report, August 2008 
7 Parkhouse Street is a boundary road between Walworth and Camberwell community council 

77



- 5 - 

signature petition8, Councillor and MP enquiries and officer’s attendance to Wilson’s Tenant’s and 
Resident’s Association Meeting (July 16 2009). 

History of parking consultations in the area 

Area Date Consultation Outcome 

EC
and
WP

2006/7 1st stage consultation, extending 
approximately from Camberwell 
Green to Peckham Hill Street 
and St Georges Way to 
Lyndhurst Grove. 

Decision to progress to 2nd stage 
consultation in supportive area of EC and 
LG only. 

EC
and
LG

2007/8 2nd stage consultation in those 
areas identified in support during 
2006 1st stage consultation. 

EC and LG 2nd stage consultation. 

LG does not progress to implementation 
due to substantial comments against the 
scheme at Camberwell community 
council

EC
only

April 2009 EC CPZ experimental traffic 
order made. 

Camberwell Community Council asked 
that LG be monitored during EC 
experimental period. 

EC
only

September

2010

EC CPZ traffic order made 
permanent

Desktop review carried out experimental 
CPZ considered successful, TMO made 
permanent

LG
and
SW

2010/11 Combined 1st and 2nd stage 
consultation with: LG area
includes Grace’s Road, Grace’s 
Mews, Vestry Road, Dagmar 
Road, Wilson Road and Maude 
Road

SW area includes Southampton 
Way, Parkhouse Street, Wells 
Way, Coleman Road, Bonsor 
Street, Rainbow Street, Tilson 
Close, Cottage Green, Chiswell 
Street and Dowlas Street 

8 Noted that 31 signatures were from addresses outside the recommended consultation area 

78



- 6 - 

Project structure  
Since adoption of the PEP, the council carries out it’s CPZ projects by way of a two-stage consultation 
process9, except where the area limits are predetermined by physical, borough or existing CPZ 
boundaries or by budget constraints - in which case a joint 1st/2nd stage consultation may be carried out. 
In this case the boundaries for LG were already defined by the earlier consultation and in SW physical 
and budget set the boundary, therefore a combine 1st and 2nd stage consultation was carried out. 

First and second stage (combined) CPZ consultation 

Parking occupancy and duration surveys are carried out to analyse who is parking in the area and for 
how long 

A questionnaire is sent out to every property within the area asking for opinions on the principal of a CPZ 
and whether or not they experience parking problems. During this stage we will consult on the detail of 
the zone, for example, we will ask views on the type and position of parking bays, the hours and days 
that the CPZ should operate and other detailed parking issues.  

During consultation period, public exhibitions are held in which the local community were invited to meet 
officers to view and discuss the detailed design. 

We will also ask our key stakeholders for their comments. 

Consultation replies and parking data are used to make a decision whether or not to introduce a CPZ in 
the area.

A draft consultation and key decision report is produced and sent to the community council for comment. 

The key decision is taken by the cabinet member for environment, transport and recycling on whether or 
not the CPZ is introduced. 

More detail of the process is shown in Figure 1. 

Consultation area
A presentation of the consultation strategy was given and approved at Camberwell Community Council 
on 22 September 2010 and ward members from Faraday Ward were notified by email on 1 October 
2010.

The streets approved for consultation are situated within Brunswick Park, Camberwell Green and 
Faraday Wards.

Parkhouse Street and northern section of Southampton Way are boundary roads between Camberwell 
and Walworth community councils. 

9 http://www.southwark.gov.uk/YourServices/transport/parking/cpzreviews/CPZ_how_consult/

79



- 7 - 

Figure 1 

Addendum – decision changed from strategic director to cabinet member on 25/5/11 

80



- 8 - 

Existing parking arrangements in LG area 
Parking within the consultation area is predominantly uncontrolled but there are some restrictions that 
that prevent kerb-side parking.  These are summarised as: 

 Road safety and traffic management measures – e.g. At any time waiting restrictions -  on all 
junctions within the consultation area 

 Origin disabled parking bays – 3 installed outside residents homes who meet the council’s criteria 

 Transport for London Road Network (TLRN) – Wilson Road and Vestry Road 

 Vehicle crossovers – 24 allow access to private land (i.e. residential front driveways) parking is 
permitted but it can be enforced against by the council at request of the landowner (certain 
conditions apply)  

Existing parking arrangements in SW area 
Parking within the consultation area is predominantly uncontrolled but there are some restrictions that 
that prevent kerb-side parking.  These are summarised as: 

 Bus priority measures – e.g. bus stops on Southampton Way and Wells Way 

 Road safety measures – e.g. formal pedestrian crossings on Southampton Way 

 Local traffic management – e.g. assisting sight lines in side roads streets off Southampton Way 
and to improve traffic flow on Parkhouse Street 

 Short term parking or loading bays – to assist turn-over of space for local business, bays located 
in Southampton Way and Rainbow Street 

 Origin disabled parking bays – 8 installed outside residents homes who meet the council’s criteria 

 Vehicle crossovers – 39 allow access to private land (ie residential front driveways) parking is 
permitted but it can be enforced against by the council at request of the landowner (certain 
conditions apply)  

The above controls operate within the consultation area.  Additionally, there are CPZs in the surrounding 
neighbourhood that will likely have influence upon the supply of on-street parking through the effects of 
displacement.   

It should be noted that CPZs further afield, are also likely to play a part in impacting upon supply of on-
street parking. CPZs in the north of Southwark (and across all central London authorities) prevent long-
stay parking where motorists may otherwise choose to park and continue their journey on-foot to work.  
These CPZs are extensive in their area and provide protection to local residents; this may result in some 
motorists choosing to drive to outer rail stations or to locations that are adjacent to bus routes and then 
continuing on their journey by train or bus. 

81



- 9 - 

Consultation document 
602 and 621 addresses are located within the LG and SW consultation areas respectively. This data was 
derived from the council’s Local Land and Property Gazetteer (LLPG).   

Distribution of the consultation documents (appendix 2 and 3) was made on 10 December 2010 by way 
of a blanket hand-delivery to all (residential and commercial) properties within the two consultation 
areas.  The delivery was carried out by a leaflet distribution company - London Letterbox. 

The document was also sent to the network development’s key and local stakeholders.  Local 
stakeholders were identified as the cabinet member for environment, transport and recycling, ward 
members, Metropolitan Police Service, London Ambulance Service, London Fire Brigade, Transport for 
London, internal council teams and transport user groups.  

The document was designed to present information on: 

 Why the consultation was being carried out 

 How recipients could contribute / decision making 

 What the 1st  and 2nd  stage CPZ consultation was about 

 Southwark’s policy in regard to CPZ 

 Frequently asked questions 

 Consultation map  

 Initial design drawing 

By way of a questionnaire, the document sought the recipient’s details and views on: 

 Their address 

 Whether they park (on-street) 

 Current ability to park 

 When problems occur 

 Whether their opinion would change if a CPZ was introduced in an adjacent street 

 Initial design 

 Hours/days of enforcement 

 Any other comments 

The document followed Southwark’s communications guidelines and provided detail on large print 
versions and translation services. 

The questionnaire could be returned in a provided freepost envelope to the council’s offices or via an 
online webpage. 

82



- 10 - 

Documents were delivered on 10 December 2010 and the response period ran until 14 January 2011 
(the usual period of 3 weeks for such consultations was extended because of the Christmas period). 
Officers accepted and inputted responses up to 31 January 2011. 

Additionally, details of a phone number and email address were provided to those receiving the 
document should they wish to talk to an officer or email their comments.  In those cases, officers 
provided assistance and advised residents that they should also complete their questionnaire as data 
from this formed the main basis of the results analysis. 

Public exhibitions 
The network development team held three public exhibitions on,  

 Thursday 16 December 2010 - 4pm to 8pm at the Southwark Town Hall, 

 Saturday 8 January 2011 - 10am to 2pm at the Elmington Tenants and Residents Association 
Hall

 Thursday 13 January 2011 - 4.30pm to 8pm at the Southwark Town Hall 

Further information 
70 street notices were erected within the two consultation areas at the end of the 1st week of consultation 
(10 December 2010).  A copy of the street notices and reminder street notices are found in appendix 4.  
The notice provided contact details (telephone and email) for more detail on the consultation and advice 
of what to do if consultation packs had not been received. An additional 70 reminder street notices were 
erected within the two consultation areas at the before the last week of the consultation (3 January 2011) 

The council’s parking consultation webpage10 was also updated with detail of the active consultation, its 
process and how decisions would be taken.  A selection of frequently asked questions in relation to 
CPZs also provided an additional source of information for those making enquiries as to what a CPZ 
could mean to them.

As mentioned above, a direct phone number and email address to the network development team was 
made available to allow those wishing to making enquires via those methods.  Officers assisted with 
response and also recommended that the callers complete their questionnaire. 

Parking surveys 
To quantify the parking situation, Count on Us were commissioned to undertake parking surveys on a 
weekday 4 November 2010 (appendix 5.1) and a Saturday 6 November 2010 (appendix 5.2) to ascertain 
parking occupancy and duration of stay on all 14 public highway roads within the two study areas.    

10 http://www.southwark.gov.uk/YourServices/transport/parking/cpzreviews/

83



- 11 - 

Section C – Consultation questionnaire results summary 

Summary of response rate 
Figure 2.1 shows that the LG consultation yielded 136 returned questionnaires, representing a 22.6% 
response rate and figure 2.2 shows SW consultation yielded 94 returned questionnaires, representing 
15.1%.  For LG, this is an excellent response rate for this type of consultation when compared with 
similar consultations in the borough and benchmarked against other London authorities. For SW this is 
an average response rate, consistent with similar consultation elsewhere in the borough. 

In LG the highest response rate was from Grace’s Mews (70%), the lowest was Camberwell Church 
Road with no responses.

In SW the highest response rate was from Dowlas Street (44.4%), the lowest were Newent Close, Harris 
Street, Havil Street, Benhill Road and Sedgemoor Place with no responses. Apart from Newent Close 
the other streets listed are part of East Camberwell CPZ; this may explain the lack of responses. 

The PEP sets out that the council will give significant weight to the consultation return when it exceeds a 
20% threshold.  Whilst the LG consultation did achieve this, overall SW did not.  In accordance with the 
PEP, other local information sources (such as quantitative parking studies, future development, likely 
impact of surrounding parking controls and community council opinion) should be given greater 
weighting where the threshold is not reached.  

A further 53 comments were made either by email, letter or phone. 

LG Area 
Street Delivered Returned

Response
rate Telephone Email/letter

Total
responses to 
consultation

Dagmar Road 89 32 36% 2 1 35
Camberwell Church Road 24 0 0% 0 0 0
Grace’s Road 85 19 22% 2 1 22
Grace’s Mews 10 7 70% 4 2 13
Maude Road 55 24 44% 1 6 31
Peckham Road 121 3 2% 0 4 7
Vestry Road 44 25 57% 1 0 26
Vestry Mews 41 3 7% 0 0 3
Wilson Road 133 23 17% 1 2 26
Outside consultation 
area 0 0 0% 0 2 2

TOTAL  602 136 22.6% 11 18 165

Figure 2.1 

84



- 12 - 

SW Area 
Street Delivered Returned

Response
rate Telephone Email/letter

Total
responses to 
consultation

Bonsor Street 19 2 11% 0 0 2
Coleman Road 107 25 23% 1 4 30
Chiswell Street 20 5 25% 1 0 6
Cottage Green 19 1 5% 0 0 1
Dowlas Street 18 8 44% 0 0 8
Parkhouse Street 41 3 7% 0 2 5
Rainbow Street 62 19 31% 1 0 20
Southampton Way 241 16 7% 4 3 23
Tilson Close 13 3 23% 0 0 3
Wells Way 45 12 27% 1 2 15
Newent Close 9 0 0% 1 0 1
Harris Street 1 0 0% 0 0 0
Havil Street 1 0 0% 0 0 0
Sedgemoor Place 14 0 0% 0 0 0
Benhill Road 11 0 0% 0 0 0
Outside consultation 
area 0 0 0% 0 4 4

TOTAL  621 94 15.1% 9 15 118

Figure 2.2 

Recommendations are based on feedback received from the public consultation in conjunction with 
objective analysis of occupancy data from parking stress surveys. 

85



- 13 - 

Headline consultation results for Lucas Gardens 
1) Evaluation shows that 97.7% of responses were received from residential properties. Based upon 

OS land use survey data (appendix 6) this is representative of the area. 

2) The majority of respondents have access to one or more vehicle.  Only 17% of respondents in 
LG area don’t have a vehicle.  This response is unrepresentative for the ward where 50% don’t 
have a car11 and Southwark (51.9%). 

3) Nearly three quarters, 73%, of respondents park one vehicle on the public highway, detailed in 
Figure 3.

Figure 3

4) The vast majority (79.4%) of respondents do not have any off-street parking.  It is therefore 
assumed that the remainder (21.1%) either have private driveways, estate parking or private car 
parks (ie small surface car parks most usually associated with small apartment blocks). 

5) Across the whole consultation area, when asked about your ability to find an on-street parking 
space: 32.8% found it easy or very easy, 54.2% found it difficult or very difficult. The results were 
very similar when asked about your visitor’s ability to find an on-street parking, though slightly 
more polarised (28% v 59.2%).

6) Question 4 was provided to ascertain when respondents most felt parking difficulties occurred. 
Figure 4 details the responses. The largest response group expressed that their parking 
problems occurred weekdays during the daytime.  The second largest group said that problems 
occurred during the weekday evenings, followed by Sundays.   

11 Office for National Statistics, Census Area Statistics, UV62 

How many vehicles do you park on the street?

0.0% 10.0% 20.0% 30.0% 40.0% 50.0% 60.0% 70.0% 80.0%

None, I dont have a car

1

2

3 or more

86



- 14 - 

Do  yo u a g re e  with the  p ro p o se d  intro d uctio n o f a  co ntro lle d  
p a rk ing  zo ne  in yo ur s tre e t?

Yes

No

Undecided

7) The key question of “do you want a CPZ?” is graphed in Figure 5.1 below.  It is also illustrated on 
the following page, in a map format, as Figure 5 – this shows the street-by-street “% for” and the 
“% against” the proposal to introduce a CPZ, as well as the response rate for that street. 

Figure 4

What time of the day do you or your visitors have difficulty parking? 
(Tick all that apply)

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Mon-Fri daytime Mon-Fri evening Saturday Sunday Never

Figure 5.1

87



88



- 16 - 

8) Those persons who responded that they didn’t want a CPZ in their street were asked a further 
question if they would change their mind if a CPZ was to be introduced in an adjacent street. 
Figure 6 details the responses.  The majority (59.4%) would not change their mind and wanted to 
keep their street uncontrolled even if a CPZ was introduced into an adjacent street.  

9) An initial design drawing showing the proposed parking layout was provided in the consultation 
pack and comments were sought from respondents 55% of those who responded agreed with the 
parking bay layout and 32.1% did not. 

10) An additional question relating to the detailed design was, “do you agree with the proposed type 
of parking bay?” 55.7% of those who responded agreed with design and 32.1% did not.  

11)  Of whose did not agree with the proposed type of parking bays 50% want more permit holder 
only bays and 30.4% wanted more short stay bays. Of note was that 15% (7) respondents to this 
question considered that more on-street bicycle parking was required. Whilst the initial design did 
not propose any, this information is valuable to the council for future schemes. Figure 7 details 
the responses. 

W o uld  yo u cha ng e  yo ur mind  if a  CPZ wa s intro d uce d  in s tre e t 
ne xt to  yo urs? 

Yes

No

Undecided

Figure 6 

89



- 17 - 

Figure 7 
12)  If parking controls were to be introduced, the majority (55.8%) considered Monday to Friday from 

8.30am to 6.30pm as their preferred choice. 

Figure 8 

13) Alternative suggestions ranged from ‘no parking controls at all’ to requests for 24/7 controls. 

14) Finally, other comments were sought.  Understandably, the responses given generally mirrored 
the view expressed to the key question of whether a CPZ was wanted or not. Figure 9 provides a 
random selection of comments from those in support of controls. Figure 10 provides a random 
selection of comments from those against controls.  The text positions are indicative of the 
location the responses originated from. 

If yo u a nswe re d  'no '  o r 'und e c id e d ' , p le a se  sug g e st wha t typ e  o f 
b a y  yo u think  the re  sho uld  b e  mo re  o f? (T ick  a ll tha t a p p ly)

0.0%
10.0%

20.0%
30.0%
40.0%

50.0%
60.0%

Per
m

it h
olde

rs

Sha
re

d-
use

Lo
ad

ing

Sho
rt-

st
ay

Desti
na

tio
n

dis
able

d

Pay
an

d di
sp

lay

On-
str

ee
t b

icy
cle

 pa
rki

ng

Car c
lub

If p a rk ing  co ntro ls  we re  intro d uce d , which o f the  fo llo wing  o p tio ns 
wo uld  yo u p re fe r? 

Option A - Monday to Friday
from 8.30am to 6.30pm

Option B - Monday to Friday
from 10.00am to 2.00pm

Do you have an alternative
suggestion?

90



Lucas Gardens - parking consultation

Figure 9

Additional comments from those supporting a CPZ March 2011

Produced on behalf of London Borough of Southwark.
NTSby: twalker

91



Lucas Gardens - parking consultation

Figure 10

Additional comments from those against a CPZ March 2011

Produced on behalf of London Borough of Southwark.
NTSby: twalker

92



- 20 - 

Headline consultation results for Southampton Way 
15) Evaluation shows that 94.9% of responses were received from residential properties. Based upon 

OS land use survey data (appendix 6) this is not very representative of the area. 

16) The majority of respondents have access to one or more vehicle.  Only 11.7% of respondents 
don’t have a vehicle.  This response is unrepresentative for the ward where 54% of households 
don’t have a car12 and Southwark (51.9%). 

17) Over three quarters, 78.7%, of respondents park one vehicle on the public highway (Figure 11).  

Figure 11

18) The vast majority (86.2%) of respondents do not have any off-street parking.  It is therefore 
assumed that the remainder (13.8%) have either private driveways or private car parks (i.e. small 
surface car parks most usually associated with small apartment blocks). 

19) Across the whole consultation area, when asked about your ability to find an on-street parking 
space: 48.8% found it easy or very easy, 40.4% found it difficult or very difficult. The results were 
very similar when asked about your visitor’s ability to find an on-street parking, though more 
polarised (39.5% v 47.2%).   

20) Question 4 was provided to ascertain when respondents most felt parking difficulties occurred.  
Figure 12 details the responses. The two largest response groups expressed that their parking 
problems occurred weekday during the daytime and Sundays.  The second largest group said 
that problems never occurred.  .

12 Office for National Statistics, Census Area Statistics, UV62 

How many vehicles do you park on the street?

0.0% 10.0% 20.0% 30.0% 40.0% 50.0% 60.0% 70.0% 80.0% 90.0%

None, I dont have a car

1

2

3 or more

93



- 21 - 

Do  yo u a g re e  with the  p ro p o se d  intro d uctio n o f a  co ntro lle d  
p a rk ing  zo ne  in yo ur s tre e t?

Yes

No

Undecided

Figure 12

21) The key question of “do you want a CPZ?” is graphed in Figure 13.1 below.  It is also illustrated 
on the following page, in a map format, as Figure 13 – this shows the street-by-street “% for” and 
the “% against” the proposal to introduce a CPZ, as well as the response rate for that street. 

What time of day do you or your visitors have difficulty parking? 
(Tick all that apply)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Mon-Fri daytime Mon-Fri evening Saturday Sunday Never

Figure 13.1

94



95



- 23 - 

22) Those persons who responded that they didn’t want a CPZ in a street were asked a further 
question if they would change their mind if a CPZ was to be introduced in an adjacent street.  The 
majority (60.3%) would not change their mind and wanted to keep their street uncontrolled even if 
a CPZ was introduced into an adjacent street.  

Figure 14

23) An initial design drawing showing the proposed parking layout proposed parking layout was 
provided in the consultation pack and comments were sought from respondents 39.1%of those 
who responded agreed with the parking bay layout and 41.3% did not. 

24) An additional question relating to the detailed design was “do you agree with the proposed type 
of parking bay?” 39.1% of those who responded agreed with design and 41.3% did not, with 
19.6% undecided. 

25)  Of whose did not agree with the proposed type of parking bays 33.3% want more permit holder 
only bays, 23.3% wanted more short stay bays and 26.7% wanted more shared use bays. Of 
note was that 26.7% (8) respondents to this question considered that more on-street bicycle 
parking was required and 16.7% (5) respondents considered that Car Club bays are required. 
Whilst the initial design did not propose any, this information is valuable to the council for future 
schemes. Figure 14.1 details the responses.  

W ould  yo u cha ng e yo ur mind  if a  CPZ wa s intro d uce d  in s tre e t 
ne xt to  yo urs? 

Yes

No

Undecided

96



- 24 - 

If pa rk ing  co ntro ls  we re  introd uced , which o f the  fo llowing  op tio ns  
wo uld  you p re fe r? 

Option A - Monday to Friday
from 8.30am to 6.30pm

Option B - Monday to Friday
from 10.00am to 2.00pm

Do you have an alternative
suggestion?

Figure 14.1

26)  If parking controls were to be introduced, the largest response group provided an alternative 
suggestion.  This indicates that the proposed options did not match respondent’s expectations. 
Suggestions made ranged from ‘no CPZ’ to ‘Monday to Sunday’ 

If yo u a nswe re d  'no '  o r 'und e c id e d ' , p le a se  sug g e st wha t typ e  o f 
b a y yo u think  the re  sho uld  b e  mo re  o f? (T ick  a ll tha t a p p ly )

0.0%
5.0%

10.0%
15.0%
20.0%
25.0%
30.0%
35.0%

Per
m

it h
olde

rs

Sha
re

d-
use

Lo
ad

ing

Sho
rt-

st
ay

Desti
na

tio
n 

dis
able

d

Pay
an

d di
sp

lay

On-
str

ee
t b

icy
cle

pa
rki

ng

Car c
lub

97



- 25 - 

27) Finally, other comments were sought.  Understandably, they responses given generally mirrored 
the view expressed to the key question of whether a CPZ was wanted or not. Figure 15 provides 
a random selection of comments from those in support of controls. Figure 16 provides a random 
selection of comments from those in against controls.  The text positions are indicative of the 
location the responses originated from. 

98



Southampton Way - parking consultation

Figure 15

Additional comments from those supporting a CPZ March 2011

Produced on behalf of London Borough of Southwark.
NTSby: twalker

99



Southampton Way - parking consultation

Figure 16

Additional comments from those against a CPZ March 2011

Produced on behalf of London Borough of Southwark.
NTSby: twalker

100



- 28 - 

Communications made outside of the Freepost questionnaire 
Figures 2.1 and 2.2 displays the type of communication used by all respondents during consultation.  

For the purposes of analysis, the figures used (unless stated otherwise) are based upon actual 
responses to the questionnaire via the freepost or online address. It is noted that when respondents 
scanned and emailed their responses to the council these have been included in the main questionnaire 
dataset.

Whilst inference can be made about the view expressed in an email or letter, for example, the council 
are unable to add these figures directly into the questionnaire results. This is to encourage people to 
read the information contained within the consultation pack, respond to specific questions, avoid risk of 
duplication from those persons who respond by more than one method (by email and questionnaire, for 
example) and to avoid misinterpretation by the officer inputting the data. 

Communications made outside the questionnaire have been included in this study and Figures 17.1 and 
17.2 summarise the main purpose of the correspondence.  

Adhoc communications 
(LG) A B C D E

communications Supports Against 

Another 
consultation 

document 
required 

Specific 
member 
request 

Other general 
enquiries and 

scanned 
responses 

Dagmar Road 1   1   2 

Camberwell Church Road           

Grace’s Road 1   1   1 

Grace’s Mews     2   4 

Maude Road   1 1   5 

Peckham Road       3   

Vestry Road         1 

Vestry Mews           

Wilson Road 1   1   2 
Outside consultation 
area   3       

      

TOTAL 3 4 6 3 15 

Figure 17.1

101



- 29 - 

Adhoc communications 
(SW) A B C D E

communications Supports Against 

Another 
consultation 

document 
required 

Specific 
member 
request 

Other general 
enquiries and 

scanned 
responses 

Bonsor Street           

Coleman Road   2 1   2 

Chiswell Street 1         

Cottage Green           

Dowlas Street           

Parkhouse Street 2         

Rainbow Street         1 

Southampton Way   1 4   2 

Tilson Close           

Wells Way 1 1       

Newent Close     1     

Harris Street           

Havil Street           

Sedgemoor Place           

Benhill Road           
Outside consultation 
area   2   2   

      

TOTAL 4 6 6 2 5 

Figure 17.2

102



- 30 - 

Section D – Parking stress survey summary 

This section provides a summary of the parking survey conducted on a weekday (Thursday 4 November 
2010) and a Saturday (6 November 2010).   

The beat survey was carried out at every hour from 0700 to 1800. No major public events, school 
holidays or transport problems were reported on these dates. Full details of the results are set out in 
appendix 5.1 and 5.2.  The weekday maximum parking occupancy is summarised in figure 18 and figure 
19 and also indicates the time when the peak occurred. 

The parking beat data was collected on a space by space basis with the exact location, any vehicle 
permit types shown, the vehicle type and the parking restriction type (if any) for each being recorded.  
Each space was 5.0 meters long was given a unique reference number.  

The whole survey area (  8.66 km kerbside) was surveyed between 0700 and 1800.  The first beat in 
reality starts at 0600 and the last finished at 1900.  

The surveys results display occupancy compared to capacity, length of vehicle stay and parking demand 
type for each street. 

Headline results (LG) 
1) All six roads demonstrated very high (>80%) peaks in parking occupancy. The average peak 

weekday occupancy was 86%. Three roads showed oversaturation (>100%) indicating parking 
was occurring in unsafe locations (on road junctions or yellow lines) or in obstructive locations 
(across dropped kerbs). 

2) The highest level of occupancy (106%) was recorded on the weekday at 1100 in Maude Road. 

3) The lowest level of occupancy (33%) was recorded on the Saturday at 1800 in Grace’s Mews 
(excepting Camberwell Church Street which has no parking availability). 

4) All roads showed a higher maximum occupancy on the weekday than the Saturday.   

5) The average amount of weekday “commuter” or “non-resident” parking was 26% (excluding 
Camberwell Church Street which has no parking availibility). 

6) Vestry Road showed the highest peak proportion (37%) of weekday “commuter” or “non-resident” 
parking.  The lowest proportion (20%) was in Wilson Road. 

Headline results (SW) 
7) Six of the ten roads demonstrated very high (>80%) peaks in parking occupancy. The average 

peak weekday occupancy was 79%. Four roads showed oversaturation (>100%) indicating 
parking was occurring in unsafe locations (on road junctions or yellow lines) or in obstructive 
locations (across dropped kerbs). 

8) The highest level of occupancy (133%) was recorded on the weekday at 0800 in Cottage Green. 

103



- 31 - 

9) The lowest level of occupancy (8%) was recorded on the Saturday at 1300 and 1700 in Newent 
Close.

10) All roads showed a higher maximum occupancy on the weekday than the Saturday.   

11) The average amount of weekday “commuter” or “non-resident” parking was 26%. 

12) Southampton Way showed the highest peak proportion (43% on weekday 44% on Saturday) of 
“commuter” or “non-resident parking”.  These figures exclude Newent Close, Cottage Green and 
Sedgemore Place due to the very low number of parking spaces available or included within the 
survey. 

104



105



106



- 34 - 

Section E – Study conclusions and recommendations 

Parking controls continue to provide varied and polarised opinion.  The perception on whether or not 
controls are required will depend on personal factors as well as the local conditions on-street. 

It should also be noted that self-selection bias may occur in a study where potential respondents have 
control over whether they participate.  

Typically when respondents are volunteers, people with strong opinions or substantial knowledge are 
more likely to reply, potentially making the sample non-representative of the general population. As the 
public response to a consultation is through self-administered surveys, there is no control over those 
who choose to fill out the questionnaire. 

Inferential statistical methods rest on the assumption that the results from a small sample can be 
generalised to the population from which it was drawn. As feedback received tends to be a non-
probabilistic sample, the statistical significance of our results (either in favour or against the proposals) 
has not been, nor should they be, extrapolated across all stakeholders. We can only be certain that the 
consultation feedback received is representative of those who chose to respond. 

Consideration has been given to those views expressed by alternative methods to the Freepost 
questionnaire.  Whilst they have not been added to the results for reasons discussed on page (28) it was 
important to check that there was no significant contrast of opinion between questionnaire responses 
and emailed comments.  As there were relatively few pieces of additional correspondence, no 
discernable difference is evident. 

Consultation results show a clear correlation between support for the CPZ and perceived easy/difficulty 
in parking.   Those supporting the introduction of a CPZ report difficulty parking in their street, 54.2% of 
CPZ supporters said that they found parking difficult ( 4 on scale of 1(easy) to 5(difficult). The converse 
is equally true and those against the introduction of a CPZ who reported little difficulty parking in their 
street. 32.8% of those against the CPZ found parking easy ( 2 on scale of 1(easy) to 5(difficult). 

Each individual response was mapped in GIS which provided opportunity to look for patterns beyond that 
displayed on a street level (Figure 5 and 13); i.e. to identify if support was clustered at one end of a road, 
etc.  Patterns were identified in the northern half of Southampton Way, discussed below. 

107



- 35 - 

Options - LG 
1) Approve the CPZ in LG in all streets consulted. 

2) Approve the CPZ in LG in only those streets with clear support (shown in Figure 5). This would 
exclude Vestry Road and Grace’s Mews from the CPZ. 

Options - SW 
3) Approve CPZ in SW in all streets consulted. 

4) Approve CPZ in SW in those streets with support (shown in Figure 13). This would exclude 
Coleman Road, Southampton Way and Rainbow Street. 

5) Approve extension of East Camberwell (EC) CPZ to include northern section of Southampton 
Way (Wells Way to New Church Street), Parkhouse Street, Cottage Green and Wells Way 
(Parkhouse Street to St George’s Way). This option recognises the cluster of support for the CPZ 
in the northern half of Southampton Way (including Chiswell Street) and is based upon need for a 
logical boundary.  This option excludes two streets that showed support for the CPZ (Dowlas 
Street and Bonsor Street) 

6) Do not approve the implementation of a CPZ in Coleman Road, Rainbow Street, Dowlas Road, 
Bonsor Street or the southern section of Southampton Way (south of Wells Way) but do make 
minor adjustments to those street to prevent parking on junctions and install a new car club bay 
in Rainbow Street. 

In view of the consultation results and taking account of correspondence received outside of the 
questionnaire and the need to provide a logical CPZ boundary (as far as possible) it is recommended 
that the council precede to statutory consultation in Lucas Gardens and the northern section of the 
Southampton Way area, as outlined in options 1, 5 and 6.    

Whilst the consultation in Dowlas Street and Bonsor Street showed support for the CPZ, the introduction 
of a CPZ into such a small area with interconnected, uncontrolled streets would lead to immediate 
displacement and a perceived failure of the newly introduced CPZ. 

Should option 5 be accepted it is recommended option 6 is implemented to improve sight lines, improve 
road safety for all road users including pedestrians and traffic flow especially for refuse and emergency 
vehicles. The Southwark car club scheme has proved very successful and each bay has been shown to 
result in the removal of 25 private vehicles from the road network. 

Taking into consideration all aspects of the report, it is recommended that options 1, 5 and 6 are carried 
out by the council. 

108



- 36 - 

List of appendices 

1. Borough and beyond CPZ map 

2. LG consultation document 

3. SW consultation document 

4.   LG and SW Consultation Street notices 

5.1 LG and SW (weekday) occupancy survey 

5.2 LG and SW (Saturday) occupancy survey 

6. OS land use map 

Version control 

Version 1.0 FINAL 

Author: Michael Herd 

Checked by: Tim Walker 

Approved by: Tim Walker 

109



Appendix A110



Appendix A111



   
 
 
Item No.  
       10 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
 22 June 2011 

Meeting Name: 
Camberwell Community  
Council  

Report title: 
 

Camberwell Community Council Fund 2011-12 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

Brunswick Park, Camberwell Green and South 
Camberwell 

From: 
 

Stephen Douglass, Head of Community Engagement  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
1. For the Community Council to agree £15,220 community funding.  

 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 2.   The Community Council Fund provides revenue grants of between £100 and                         
£1,000 for community projects. Applications are considered by the borough's 
eight community councils, which have £15,260 each, for projects that will 
benefit the community. 

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
3.      The Community Council Fund forms part of Southwark 2016 objectives of  

• Improving life chances  
• A better place for people  
• Delivering quality services. 

 
COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT 

 
4.    The allocation of the Camberwell Community Council fund will, in the main, 

affect the people living in the Community Council area. However, in making the 
area a better place to live and improving life chances for local people, the 
Community Fund activities will have an impact on the whole of Southwark.  

 
The Cambewell Community Council fund aims to increase community 
participation and activity within the area and provide such groups with the 
support that they would have not been able to access otherwise.  

 
 
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.      The budget for the Cambewell Community Council Fund is £15,260 to be    
          spent by the 31 March 2012.  
 
 

Agenda Item 12
112



 
 
LEGAL/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.     The Council has power under section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000 (“the 

Act”) to do anything which it calculates is likely to promote or improve the 
economic, social or environmental well being of the area. This power can be 
exercised for benefit of the whole or any part of the council’s area or for the 
benefits of any person resident or present in the area.  
 
Section 2(3) of the Act requires the Council to have regard to its Community 
Strategy when determining whether or not to exercise this power. Section 2(4) 
of the Act specifies that this includes a power to give financial assistance to any 
person.  
 
The Council has power under the Act to provide funding to voluntary 
organisations but in exercising this power regard must be had to the Council’s 
sustainable community strategy. These grants, from the community fund, are 
from revenue budgets. 
 
The Executive in November 2005 agreed for this to be done by the community 
councils.  The money can be granted to community projects ranging from 
cultural celebrations to providing equipment for local sports teams.  
 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Camberwell Community Council Fund Applications Insert 2011-12  
Appendix 2 Community Council Fund Information Sheet 2011-12 

AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Stephen Douglass, Head of Community Engagement 
Report Author Abdi Mohamed-Ibrahim, Neighbourhood Co-ordinator 

Version Final 
Dated 7 June 2011 

Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / EXECUTIVE 

MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 

Strategic Director of Communities, Law 
& Governance  

Yes Yes 

Finance Director No No 
List other officers here   
Cabinet Member  No No 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 8 June 2011 
 
 
 
 

113



W
ar

d
P

ro
je

ct
 R

ef
:

A
ct

iv
it

y 
N

am
e 

 A
ct

iv
it

y 
N

at
u

re
 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

D
at

e 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 

R
ec

ip
ie

n
ts

 
A

m
o

u
n

t 
re

q
u

es
te

d
P

re
vi

o
u

s 
 

ye
ar

s
A

n
y 

is
su

es

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

 
P

A
R

K
C

10
01

B
re

as
tfe

ed
in

g 
A

w
ar

en
es

s

T
he

 e
ve

nt
 is

 to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
pr

eg
na

nt
 

w
om

en
 a

nd
 n

ew
 

m
um

s,
br

ea
st

fe
ed

in
g 

T
he

 G
ro

ve
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 F
am

ily
 

C
en

tr
e

T
ue

sd
ay

 2
1s

t J
un

e 
20

11
P

re
gn

an
t w

om
en

 
an

d 
ne

w
 m

um
s

1,
00

0
N

o
N

o 
is

su
es

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

 
P

A
R

K
C

10
02

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

A
pp

re
nt

ic
es

hi
p 

F
ai

r
Jo

b 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t f
ai

r 
fo

r 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le

O
ffb

ea
t [

Li
be

rt
y 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
E

nt
er

pr
is

e]
19

&
20

 A
ug

us
t 2

01
1

Y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e
10

00
.0

0
N

o
N

o 
is

su
es

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 

G
R

E
E

N
C

10
03

S
om

al
i e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t

W
or

ks
ho

ps
 fo

r 
pa

re
nt

s.
W

or
ki

ng
 in

 
sc

ho
ol

s
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
S

om
al

i 
R

ef
ug

ee
 C

ou
nc

il
Ju

ne
-A

ug
20

11
Lo

ca
l c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

pa
re

nt
s

10
00

.0
0

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 

G
R

E
E

N
C

10
04

W
or

ld
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
D

ay

T
o 

ho
st

 a
n 

ac
tiv

ity
 d

ay
 in

 
ce

le
br

at
io

n 
of

 W
or

ld
 

E
nv

.D
ay

B
le

nh
ei

m
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ru
g 

P
ro

je
ct

`
V

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ad

ul
ts

 in
 

C
am

be
rw

el
l

50
0.

00
N

o
N

o 
is

su
es

S
O

U
T

H
 

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
C

10
05

Y
ou

ng
 M

on
ey

 M
ak

er
s 

W
or

ks
ho

p

A
 2

 d
ay

 w
or

ks
ho

p 
fo

r 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 fr

om
 

ch
ur

ch
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 g
ro

up
s 

in
 

C
am

be
rw

el
l

Ju
m

m
y 

T
ar

ib
o[

Y
ou

th
 

Le
ad

er
]

27
&

28
th

 2
01

1 
O

ct
ob

er
-

H
al

f t
er

m
 b

re
ak

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
te

en
ag

er
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ag
es

 o
f 1

1-
18

90
0.

00
N

o
N

o 
is

su
es

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 

G
R

E
E

N
C

10
06

M
ill

w
al

l S
tr

ee
t P

ro
 

[S
um

m
er

 2
01

1]
6 

w
ee

ks
 o

f F
rid

ay
 p

m
 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

se
ss

io
ns

M
ill

w
al

l 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

ch
em

e
29

/0
7/

20
11

-
02

/0
9/

20
11

Y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e
10

00
.0

0
Y

es
N

o 
is

su
es

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 

G
R

E
E

N
C

10
07

C
hi

ld
re

n`
s 

ar
t 

w
or

ks
ho

ps

T
o 

ho
ld

 6
 w

or
ks

ho
ps

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n,

to
 m

ak
e 

ce
ra

m
ic

 
til

es
/s

te
pp

in
g 

st
on

es
C

am
be

rw
el

l A
fte

r 
S

ch
oo

l P
ro

je
ct

25
ju

ly
 to

 2
5 

A
ug

us
t 

20
11

Lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
, 

pa
re

nt
s 

an
d 

ch
ild

re
n

91
0.

00
Y

es
N

o 
is

su
es

S
O

U
T

H
 

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
C

10
08

A
lb

rig
ht

on
 Y

ou
th

T
o 

la
un

ch
 th

e 
op

en
in

g 
of

 
A

lb
rig

ht
on

 C
en

tr
e

E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
E

st
at

e 
T

&
R

A
S

ep
-1

1
Lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

98
5.

00
N

o
N

o 
is

su
es

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

 
P

A
R

K
C

10
09

S
hi

nk
en

-D
o

T
o 

de
liv

er
 fr

ee
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

se
ss

io
ns

 o
f S

hi
nk

en
-

D
o.

T
o 

be
gi

nn
er

s&
ad

va
nc

ed
 

st
ud

en
ts

C
am

be
rw

el
l A

rt
s

21
st

 a
nd

 2
3r

d 
Ju

ne
 

20
11

Lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
82

0.
00

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 

G
R

E
E

N
C

10
10

O
ra

l H
is

to
ry

 P
ro

je
ct

 a
t 

G
ro

sv
en

or
 P

ar
k 

E
ld

er
ly

 
S

ch
em

e

T
o 

ho
ld

 a
n 

O
ra

l H
is

to
ry

 
P

ro
je

ct
 a

t G
ro

sv
en

or
 P

k 
E

ld
er

ly
 S

ch
em

e
C

oo
lta

n 
A

rt
s

S
ep

t-
N

ov
 2

01
1

R
es

id
en

ts
 o

f 
G

ro
sv

en
or

 P
ar

k 
E

ld
er

ly
 S

ch
em

e
10

00
.0

0
N

o
N

o 
is

su
es

A
pp
en
di
x
1

114



B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

 
P

A
R

K
C

10
11

S
ea

si
de

 T
rip

2 
co

ac
he

s

.T
he

 G
ro

ve
 F

am
ily

 
&

 C
hi

ld
re

ns
 

C
en

tr
e

16
th

 A
ug

us
t 2

01
1

V
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

pa
re

nt
s

10
00

.0
0

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

 
P

A
R

K
C

10
12

Y
ad

da
h 

G
os

pe
l N

ig
ht

E
ve

nt
 to

 b
rin

g 
to

ge
th

er
 

up
 a

nd
 c

om
in

g 
go

sp
el

 
ar

tis
ts

G
ra

ce
 a

nd
 G

lo
ry

 
M

in
is

tr
ie

s
O

ct
-1

1
R

es
id

en
ts

15
00

.0
0

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 

G
R

E
E

N
C

10
13

P
op

-u
p 

C
yc

le
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 D
ay

A
 b

ic
yc

le
 r

ep
ai

r 
w

or
ks

ho
p 

fo
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 

C
am

be
rw

el
l

T
he

 S
yn

er
gy

 
C

en
tr

e
A

ug
-1

1

Y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
13

-
18

.S
yn

er
gy

 Y
ou

th
 

C
ou

nc
ill

38
0.

00
Y

es
N

o 
is

su
es

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

 
P

A
R

K
C

10
14

G
am

es
 W

e 
P

la
y

W
or

ks
ho

ps
,to

 e
xp

lo
re

 
ga

m
es

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
fr

om
 

ar
ou

nd
 w

or
ld

 

E
m

po
w

er
in

g 
C

re
at

iv
e 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s
F

eb
-1

1
Lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

10
00

.0
0

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es

S
O

U
T

H
 

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
C

10
15

G
os

pe
l C

af
é 

P
ea

ce
 

C
ho

ir

T
ra

in
 u

p 
to

 4
0 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
.F

or
 S

ou
l  

F
oo

d 
P

ro
je

ct
T

he
 H

ol
y 

A
po

st
le

s 
T

he
at

re
 M

in
is

tr
y

O
ct

-1
1

S
LA

M
 B

M
E

 
V

ol
un

te
er

 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
M

au
dl

s
ey

 H
os

p
16

60
.0

0
N

o
N

o 
is

su
es

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

 
P

A
R

K
C

10
16

C
am

be
rw

el
l S

um
m

er
 

H
ol

id
ay

s 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

 
C

lu
b

2 
da

ys
 a

 w
ee

k 
in

 s
um

m
er

 
ho

ls
.A

ct
iv

iti
es

 C
lu

b
R

ap
id

 S
ol

ut
io

n 
C

om
m

un
ity

 L
in

k
25

Ju
ly

-4
S

ep
t 2

01
1

C
hi

ld
re

n8
-1

2y
ea

rs
10

00
.0

0
Y

es
N

o 
is

su
es

S
O

U
T

H
 

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
C

10
17

30
th

 y
ea

r 
an

ni
ve

rs
ar

y,
fil

m
 n

ig
ht

C
el

eb
ra

te
 3

0t
h 

an
ni

ve
rs

ar
y,

Lo
nd

on
 

W
ild

lif
e 

T
ru

st
Lo

nd
on

 W
ild

lif
e 

T
ru

st
15

th
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
lo

ca
l r

si
de

nt
s

10
00

.0
0

Y
es

N
o 

is
su

es

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

 
P

A
R

K
C

10
18

V
is

ua
l A

rt
 E

xh
ib

iti
on

A
rt

 E
xh

ib
iti

on
 w

ee
k 

in
 

C
am

be
rw

el
ll

T
ra

cy
 A

lle
n.

S
im

on
 

T
ay

lo
r

A
ug

-1
1

Lo
ca

l r
es

di
de

nt
s

10
00

.0
0

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es

S
O

U
T

H
 

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
C

10
19

C
om

e 
Le

t u
s 

R
ea

so
n 

P
ro

je
ct

D
ev

el
op

 a
 th

ea
tr

e 
pr

od
uc

tio
n

C
hr

is
tia

n 
E

va
ng

el
ic

al
 

C
en

tr
e

A
ug

20
11

-J
an

 2
01

2
D

is
ad

va
nt

ag
ed

 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 

10
00

.0
0

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es
C

A
M

B
E

R
W

E
LL

 
G

R
E

E
N

C
10

20
O

ne
 Y

ea
r 

T
o 

G
o 

O
ly

m
pi

cs
 2

01
2 

E
ve

nt
E

ve
nt

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

in
te

re
st

 
in

 th
e 

G
am

es
 

S
E

5 
F

or
um

 
23

rd
 J

ul
y 

20
11

A
ll 

ag
es

10
00

.0
0

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es
B

R
U

N
S

W
IC

K
 

P
A

R
K

C
10

21
K

ite
 F

ly
in

g
6 

w
ee

k 
co

ur
se

 k
ite

 fl
yi

ng
 

fo
r 

pa
re

nt
s

P
ar

en
t S

ki
lls

2G
o

1s
t S

ep
t-

6O
ct

 2
01

1
P

ar
en

ts
10

00
.0

0
N

o
N

o 
is

su
es

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 

G
R

E
E

N
C

10
22

A
 F

rie
nd

 In
de

ed
-

W
or

ks
ho

p
T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t r
ig

ht
s

T
he

 M
cK

en
zi

e 
T

re
e

O
ct

-1
1

Lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
85

0.
00

Y
es

N
o 

is
su

es
B

R
U

N
S

W
IC

K
 

P
A

R
K

C
10

23
O

xj
am

 C
am

be
rw

el
l 

T
ak

eo
ve

r
T

ak
eo

ve
r 

E
ve

nt
.L

oc
al

 
ar

tis
ts

,m
us

ic
ia

ns
.

O
xf

am
Ju

ne
-O

ct
 2

01
1

Lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
97

5.
00

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 

G
R

E
E

N
C

10
24

S
O

Y
A

F
 S

w
im

m
in

g 
P

ro
je

ct

A
cc

es
s 

ne
w

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
at

 
C

am
be

rw
el

l L
ei

su
re

 
C

en
tr

e
S

om
al

i Y
ou

th
 

A
ct

io
n 

F
or

um
S

ep
t-

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e
97

6.
00

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es

A
pp
en
di
x
1

115



S
O

U
T

H
 

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
C

10
25

F
ai

th
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

po
rt

s 
D

ay
5 

a 
si

de
 fo

ot
ba

ll 
to

ur
na

m
en

t
C

A
N

A
ug

-1
1

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e
11

20
.0

0
N

o
N

o 
is

su
es

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 

G
R

E
E

N
C

10
26

S
um

m
er

 P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
P

ro
je

ct
C

am
pi

ng
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
fo

r 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
W

oo
dc

ra
ft

A
ug

-1
1

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
11

-
18

ye
ar

s
80

0.
00

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es
C

A
M

B
E

R
W

E
LL

 
G

R
E

E
N

C
10

27
B

lu
e 

E
le

ph
an

t S
um

m
er

 
S

ch
oo

l
P

ro
vi

de
 a

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

ar
ts

 
su

m
m

er
 s

ch
oo

l
B

lu
e 

E
le

ph
an

t 
T

he
at

re
 L

td
8A

ug
-1

3A
ug

20
11

C
hi

ld
re

n 
7-

11
ye

ar
s

10
00

.0
0

Y
es

N
o 

is
su

es

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

 
P

A
R

K
C

10
28

C
ar

ib
b 

Y
ou

th
 C

lu
b 

O
pe

n 
D

ay
O

pe
n 

D
ay

 O
f E

ve
nt

s.
 

Q
ui

zz
es

.B
M

E
 h

is
to

ry
C

ar
ib

b 
Y

ou
th

 &
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 A

ss
oc

28
-A

ug
-1

1
Lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

10
00

.0
0

Y
es

N
o 

is
su

es

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

 
P

A
R

K
C

10
29

C
ar

ni
va

l 
pr

oc
es

si
on

,s
tr

ee
t p

ar
ty

S
m

al
l C

ar
ni

va
l 

pr
oc

es
si

on
 &

 s
tr

ee
t p

ar
ty

G
ro

sv
en

or
 T

&
R

A
A

ug
us

t B
an

k 
H

ol
id

ay
 

20
11

Lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
10

00
.0

0
N

o
N

o 
is

su
es

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

 
P

A
R

K
C

10
30

S
ce

au
x 

G
ar

de
ns

 
S

um
m

er
 F

es
tiv

al
S

ce
au

x 
G

ar
de

ns
 

S
um

m
er

 F
es

tiv
al

S
ce

au
x 

G
ar

de
ns

 
T

&
R

A
27

-A
ug

-1
1

lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
10

00
.0

0
Y

es
N

o 
is

su
es

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 

G
R

E
E

N
C

10
31

Le
tts

om
C

om
m

un
ity

 
F

un
D

ay
,&

B
ac

k 
to

 
sc

ho
ol

C
om

m
un

ity
 F

un
 D

ay
Le

tts
om

 M
ov

e 
F

or
w

ar
d 

T
@

R
A

27
-A

ug
-1

1
Lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

10
00

.0
0

Y
es

N
o 

is
su

es
C

A
M

B
E

R
W

E
LL

 
G

R
E

E
N

C
10

32
T

rip
 to

 S
ou

th
en

d 
on

 
S

ea
S

ea
si

de
 d

ay
 o

ut
in

g
D

`e
yn

sf
or

d 
E

st
at

e 
T

&
R

A
A

ug
-1

1
Lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

57
5.

00
Y

es
N

o 
is

su
es

B
R

U
N

S
W

IC
K

 
P

A
R

K
C

10
33

B
ru

ns
w

ic
k 

P
k 

F
et

e
C

om
m

un
ity

 E
ve

nt
B

ru
ns

w
ic

k 
P

ar
kT

R
A

3r
d 

S
ep

t 2
01

1
Lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

10
00

.0
0

Y
es

N
o 

is
su

es
C

A
M

B
E

R
W

E
LL

 
G

R
E

E
N

C
10

34
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

y
P

er
fo

rm
 a

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

pl
ay

W
yn

dh
am

&
C

om
b

er
 T

&
R

A
F

eb
-1

2
Lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

10
00

.0
0

Y
es

N
o 

is
su

es
B

R
U

N
S

W
IC

K
 

P
A

R
K

C
10

35
F

un
da

y-
G

le
be

E
st

at
e

F
un

 D
ay

 fo
r 

G
le

be
 N

&
S

G
le

be
 E

st
at

e 
T

&
R

A
.N

&
S

Ju
l-1

1
Lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

13
75

.0
0

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es
C

A
M

B
E

R
W

E
LL

 
G

R
E

E
N

C
10

36
T

rip
s 

to
 th

e 
C

oa
st

P
en

si
on

er
s&

 
C

hi
ld

re
ns

T
rip

B
ra

nd
on

 3
 T

&
R

A
A

ug
/S

ep
t1

1
P

en
si

on
er

s&
C

hi
ld

re
n

10
00

.0
0

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es
B

R
U

N
S

W
IC

K
 

P
A

R
K

C
10

37
G

ile
sm

ea
dC

om
m

un
ity

S
um

m
er

P
ar

ty
S

um
m

er
 p

ar
ty

 in
 

co
m

m
un

al
 g

ar
de

n
G

ile
sm

ea
d 

T
&

R
A

A
ug

-1
1

Lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
10

00
.0

0
N

o
N

o 
is

su
es

S
O

U
T

H
 

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
C

10
38

B
an

qu
et

 fo
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

T
he

 S
un

da
y 

E
ss

ie
st

t C
om

pa
ny

25
-J

un
Lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
62

2.
00

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es
C

A
M

B
E

R
W

E
LL

 
G

R
E

E
N

C
10

39
E

id
 P

ar
ty

 w
ith

 fu
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

E
ve

nt
 fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
ad

ul
ts

M
um

ta
z 

ba
nu

S
ep

-1
1

Lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
10

00
.0

0
N

o
N

o 
is

su
es

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
 

G
R

E
E

N
C

10
40

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

V
ol

un
te

er
s 

A
fte

r-
S

ch
oo

l C
lu

b 
S

er
vi

ce
C

om
m

un
ity

 E
ve

nt
-

C
am

be
rw

el
l G

re
en

 
S

is
ta

lin
k 

W
om

en
s 

G
ro

up
13

-A
ug

-1
1

Lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
90

0.
00

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es

S
O

U
T

H
 

C
A

M
B

E
R

W
E

LL
C

10
41

H
ea

lin
g 

A
rt

s 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 
A

du
lts

 w
ith

M
H

16
 ta

st
er

 
se

ss
io

ns
,h

ea
lin

g 
ar

ts
 

ac
tiv

ity
S

LA
M

,M
au

ds
le

y 
H

os
pi

ta
l

S
ep

t2
01

1-
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2
O

ld
er

 a
du

lts
-O

n 
2 

in
-

pa
tie

nt
 w

ar
ds

56
0

N
o

N
o 

is
su

es

A
pp
en
di
x
1

116



Community Council
Fund
2011 - 2012

www.southwark.gov.uk/communityfund

Your community council has £15,000 to support activities run by local groups for local people

Who can apply?
s฀ .EW฀AND฀EMERGING฀LOCAL฀GROUPS
s฀ 3MALL฀LOCAL฀ORGANISATIONS฀�HAVING฀LESS฀THAN฀a������฀IN฀THEIR฀BANK฀ACCOUNT	
s฀ !NY฀CONSTITUTED฀LOCAL฀GROUP
s฀ !NY฀GROUP฀OR฀INDIVIDUAL฀THAT฀HAS฀A฀CONSTITUTED฀LOCAL฀ORGANISATION฀TO฀
฀ ADMINISTER฀THE฀FUNDS฀ON฀THEIR฀BEHALF
s฀฀ 'ROUPS฀THAT฀ARE฀ACTIVE฀WITHIN฀THE฀COMMUNITY฀COUNCIL฀AREA

Who cannot apply?
s฀ /RGANISATIONS฀NOT฀ESTABLISHED฀IN฀THE฀5+
s฀ /RGANISATIONS฀WHICH฀DO฀NOT฀HAVE฀ANY฀LOCAL฀LINKS
s฀ 0OLITICAL฀GROUPS฀OR฀ORGANISATIONS

What kind of things can be funded?
4HE฀COMMUNITY฀COUNCIL฀FUND฀CAN฀FUND฀PROJECTS฀BENElTTING฀PEOPLE฀WHO฀LIVE฀IN฀THE฀
COMMUNITY฀COUNCIL฀AREA�฀FOR฀EXAMPLE
s฀฀ /NE
OFF฀EVENTS฀SUCH฀AS฀FUN฀DAYS฀AND฀FESTIVALS
s฀฀ !฀SERIES฀OF฀WORKSHOPS฀OR฀ACTIVITIES฀INVOLVING฀MEMBERS฀OF฀THE฀LOCAL฀
฀ COMMUNITY
s฀ 0UBLICITY฀OR฀MERCHANDISE฀TO฀ADVERTISE฀AN฀EVENT฀YOU฀ARE฀DOING

What kind of things will not be funded?
s฀ ,OANS฀OR฀INTEREST฀PAYMENTS
s฀ 0OLITICAL฀GROUPS฀OR฀ACTIVITIES฀PROMOTING฀POLITICAL฀BELIEFS
s฀ !CTIVITIES฀WHICH฀HAVE฀HAPPENED฀OR฀STARTED฀BEFORE฀THE฀GRANT฀DECISION฀DATE
s฀ !CTIVITIES฀THAT฀lNISH฀AFTER฀��฀-ARCH฀����
s฀ !CTIVITIES฀THAT฀DO฀NOT฀BENElT฀PEOPLE฀LIVING฀IN฀THE฀COMMUNITY฀COUNCIL฀AREA
s฀ !NYTHING฀WHICH฀IS฀CAPITAL฀FUNDING�฀EG�฀BUILDING฀WORKS฀OR฀LARGE฀PLAYGROUND฀
฀ EQUIPMENT

How much can groups apply for?
s฀ &ROM฀a���฀UP฀TO฀a�����฀'ROUPS฀CAN฀ONLY฀SUBMIT฀ONE฀APPLICATION�

Information sheet

Appendix 2
117



www.southwark.gov.uk/communityfund

How can people apply?
9OU฀CAN฀GET฀AN฀APPLICATION฀FORM฀EITHER฀BY฀
s฀ GOING฀TO฀www.southwark.gov.uk/communityfund฀TO฀DOWNLOAD฀IT฀OR
s฀ BY฀CONTACTING฀THE฀OFlCER฀FOR฀THE฀RELEVANT฀##฀AREA฀AS฀LISTED฀ON฀THE฀LEFT�฀

!FTER฀lLLING฀IN฀THE฀FORM�฀SEND฀IT฀BACK฀BY฀POST฀OR฀EMAIL฀TO฀THE฀OFlCER฀FOR฀THE฀RELEVANT฀
##฀AREA฀AS฀LISTED฀ON฀THE฀LEFT฀OR฀AT฀THE฀BACK฀OF฀THE฀APPLICATION฀FORM�฀

#LOSING฀DATE฀FOR฀RECEIVING฀ALL฀APPLICATIONS฀IS฀Monday 16 May 2011.
,ATE฀OR฀PARTIALLY฀lLLED฀APPLICATIONS฀WILL฀NOT฀BE฀CONSIDERED�

How can I get more information or support?
)F฀YOU฀WOULD฀LIKE฀HELP฀WITH฀lLLING฀IN฀THE฀APPLICATION฀PLEASE฀CONTACT฀THE฀OFlCER฀FOR฀
THE฀RELEVANT฀##฀AREA฀AS฀LISTED฀ON฀THE฀LEFT�

How does the scheme work?
!PPLICATIONS฀WILL฀BE฀SCREENED฀TO฀MAKE฀SURE฀THEY฀MEET฀THE฀CRITERIA฀ABOVE�฀
2EMEMBER฀THAT฀ELIGIBILITY฀FOR฀THE฀SCHEME฀IS฀ALSO฀CONDITIONAL฀ON฀THE฀APPLICANT฀
PROVIDING฀ALL฀THE฀NECESSARY฀INFORMATION฀OUTLINED฀IN฀THE฀APPLICATION฀FORM฀WHICH฀
INCLUDES฀EVIDENCE฀ON฀HOW฀THEY฀ARE฀OR฀WILL฀BE฀COMPLYING฀WITH฀APPROPRIATE฀
SAFEGUARDING฀AND฀HEALTH฀AND฀SAFETY฀POLICIES�

!PPLICATIONS฀NOT฀FULlLLING฀ANY฀OF฀THE฀ABOVE฀CRITERIA฀WILL฀NOT฀BE฀CONSIDERED�
,OCALLY฀ELECTED฀COUNCILLORS฀WILL฀BE฀RESPONSIBLE฀FOR฀MAKING฀DECISIONS฀ON฀ALL฀THE฀
ELIGIBLE฀APPLICATIONS฀USING฀THE฀PRIORITIES฀OUTLINED฀BELOW�
s฀฀฀!PPLICATIONS฀THAT฀SHOW฀A฀HIGH฀LEVEL฀OF฀INVOLVEMENT฀BY฀THE฀LOCAL฀COMMUNITY�
s฀฀฀!PPLICATIONS฀THAT฀INVOLVE฀GROUPS฀WORKING฀TOGETHER�
s฀฀฀!CTIVITIES฀DELIVERED฀BY�
฀฀฀
฀.EW฀AND฀EMERGING฀GROUPS�INDIVIDUALS
฀฀฀
฀7E฀WILL฀GIVE฀PREFERENCE฀TO฀GROUPS฀WHO฀HAVE฀NOT฀RECEIVED฀COMMUNITY฀COUNCIL฀
฀฀฀฀฀FUNDING฀IN฀THE฀LAST฀TWO฀YEARS
฀฀฀
฀'ROUPS฀WHO฀ARE฀BASED฀IN฀THE฀COMMUNITY฀COUNCIL฀AREA�
s฀฀฀!CTIVITIES฀TAKING฀PLACE฀WITHIN฀THE฀COMMUNITY฀COUNCIL฀AREA฀n฀UNLESS฀THEY฀INVOLVE฀฀
฀฀฀฀AN฀OUTING�฀OR฀THERE฀IS฀LACK฀OF฀SPACE฀FOR฀IT฀WITHIN฀THE฀AREA�
s฀฀7HERE฀THE฀MAJORITY฀OF฀PEOPLE฀BENElTTING฀FROM฀THE฀ACTIVITY฀LIVE฀WITHIN฀THE฀฀฀฀
฀฀฀฀COMMUNITY฀COUNCIL฀AREA�

$ECISIONS฀FOR฀APPLICATIONS฀WILL฀BE฀MADE฀AND฀ANNOUNCED฀BY฀COUNCILLORS฀AT฀THE฀lRST฀
COMMUNITY฀COUNCIL฀MEETING฀WHICH฀WILL฀TAKE฀PLACE฀AFTER฀THE฀END฀OF฀*UNE฀�����

%VERY฀APPLICANT฀WILL฀BE฀NOTIlED฀OF฀DECISIONS฀BY฀A฀LETTER฀NO฀LONGER฀THAN฀��฀WORKING฀
DAYS฀AFTER฀THE฀DECISION฀IS฀TAKEN�฀3UCCESSFUL฀APPLICANTS฀WILL฀BE฀ASKED฀TO฀SIGN฀AND฀
RETURN฀A฀CONDITION฀OF฀FUNDING฀AGREEMENT�฀)T฀IS฀ONLY฀ONCE฀THIS฀AGREEMENT฀HAS฀BEEN฀
RECEIVED฀THAT฀WE฀CAN฀RELEASE฀THE฀FUNDING�

So when planning your activity please make sure that you give enough 
time for this and that your activity does not start until at least four weeks 
after the decision date.

0LEASE฀NOTE฀THAT฀GROUPS฀THAT฀ARE฀NOT฀CONSTITUTED฀OR฀INDIVIDUALS฀WHO฀WOULD฀LIKE฀
TO฀APPLY฀WITH฀PROJECT฀IDEAS฀SHOULD฀GET฀IN฀TOUCH฀WITH฀THE฀COMMUNITY฀COUNCIL฀
DEVELOPMENT฀OFlCER฀�CONTACT฀DETAILS฀ON฀THE฀LEFT	฀FOR฀ADVICE฀AS฀SOON฀AS฀POSSIBLE�
2EMEMBER฀ALL฀APPLICATIONS฀n฀WHETHER฀BY฀EMAIL฀OR฀POST฀
฀MUST฀REACH฀US฀BY
Monday 16 May 2011.

Bermondsey CC 
Gill Kelly  
T: 020 7525 3690      
E: gill.kelly@southwark.gov.uk 

Borough and Bankside CC 
Pauline Bonner 
T: 020 7525 1019   
E: Pauline.Bonner@southwark.
gov.uk

Camberwell CC 
Grace Semakula  
T: 020 7525 4928      
E: grace.semakula@southwark.
gov.uk 

Dulwich CC 
Grace Semakula     
T: 020 7525 4928        
E: grace.semakula@southwark.
gov.uk 

Nunhead and Peckham Rye CC 
Nadine James  
 T: 020 7525 5503            
E: Nadine.James@southwark.
gov.uk 

Peckham CC
Nadine James  
T: 020 7525 5503            
E: Nadine.James@southwark.
gov.uk 

Rotherhithe CC 
Gill Kelly  
T: 020 7525 3690  
E: gill.kelly@southwark.gov.uk 

Postal address for all the above
Community engagement, 
Communities, Law and 
governance, 
Southwark Council, 
PO Box 64529 
London
SE1P 5LX

Appendix 2
118



 
 
 

 

  

 
Item No. 
13. 
  
 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
22 June 2011 
 

Meeting Name: 
Camberwell Community 
Council 
 

Report title: 
 

Cleaner Greener Safer: Funding Reallocation 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All Wards in the Camberwell Area 

From: 
 

Des Waters, Head of Public Realm, Environment 
and Housing 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 
1. That Camberwell Community Council note the financial savings and deficits for 

relevant projects as set out in Appendix 1 and approve the re-allocation of a total 
of £102,000 to four projects where additional expenditure will be required. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 
2. Cleaner Greener, Safer (CGS) is part of the London Borough of Southwark’s 

capital programme. Between 2003 and 2010 £3.25m has been made available 
each year for local residents to apply for awards to make their local area a better 
place to live. The programme attracts hundreds of proposals ranging from a few 
hundred pounds for bulb planting to brighten up open spaces to tens of 
thousands of pounds to create community gardens. These projects often 
introduce new ideas such as outdoor gyms in public spaces, community gardens, 
public art and energy saving projects which not only make the borough cleaner, 
greener and safer but greatly contribute to a sustainable public realm by 
involving residents in the funding process and in the delivery of projects. 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
3. Appendix 1 highlights eleven projects which have a total underspend of 

£107,500. 
 
4. It is recommended that project [01239] Camberwell street cabinet decoration is 

aborted and £5,000 funding is reallocated to projects where additional 
expenditure is required. 

 
5. Projects [01769] Dog Kennel Hill woodland and [01793] Champion Hill Estate 

Access will be funded by Section 106, making £33,000 of CGS funding available 
to reallocate to projects where additional funding is required. 

 
6. Projects [02067] D'Eynsford Estate Community Garden and [104657] 

Resurfacing of D'Eynsford Estate Ball Court have a combined underspend of 
£4,384.26. At Community Council on 16 March 2011 it was agreed that 
£1,884.26 should remain with these projects for further works and the 
subsequent £2,500 should be reallocated to projects where additional 
expenditure is required. 

 

Agenda Item 13
119



 
 
 

 

  

7. Project [104025] Camberwell Courts Pretty safe crossing areas is recommended 
to be aborted and £10,000 funding to be reallocated to projects where additional 
funding is required. 

 
8. Project [104329] Lomond Grove Green Link has an underspend of £7,000. It is 

recommend that this underspend is reallocated to projects where additional 
funding is required. 

 
9. Project [104486] Trees and Trellising at McNeil Road has an underspend of 

£6,000. It is recommend that this underspend is reallocated to projects where 
additional funding is required. 

 
10. Projects [01780] Camberwell Green Park Improvements and [00717] Camberwell 

Green and Orchard, and [00025] Welcome to Camberwell have £90,512.54 
funds remaining. It is recommended that £44,000 of this funding is reallocated to 
projects where additional funding is required. 

 
11. Appendix 1 highlights four projects that require a total of £92,000 funding to 

proceed. 
 
12. It is recommended that £15,000 is reallocated to project [103017] Brandon 3 

Farmer's Garden Phase II, as agreed at the Community Council meeting on 16 
March 2011. 

 
13. It is recommended that £33,000 is reallocated to [105472] Dog Kennel Hill area 

improvements. Scope to be agreed. 
 
14. It is recommended that £44,000 is reallocated to [101461] Camberwell Green 

Partnership Scheme in Conservation Areas. 
 
15. It is recommended that £10,000 is reallocated to [105471] Kerb and paving 

works near Camberwell Courts. 
 
16. It is recommended that the remaining £5,500 which has not been reallocated to a 

project is returned to the Community Council, to be reallocated when required. 
 
Policy implications 
 
17. N/A 
 
Community impact statement 
 
18. The reallocation of funding will have a positive impact on the community. 

D’Eynsford Estate will benefit from an improved community garden, and murals 
designed with input from young people on the Estate, which will give them a sense 
of ownership in the area where they live. The Dog Kennel Hill area will benefit from 
ecological and other improvements. The Brandon 3 Gardening Group will benefit 
from being in a better position to gain external funding to contribute towards the 
community garden and public square. Project. [101461] Camberwell Green 
Partnership Scheme in Conservation Areas will bring in £112,000 of external 
funding from English Heritage. Historic buildings in the Camberwell Green area will 
benefit from renovation. 

 
 

120



 
 
 

 

  

Resource implications 
 
19. This is the reallocation of existing CGS funding that was originally awarded in 

2003-04, 2007-08, 2009-10 and 2010-11. CGS has an allocated budget of funding, 
which is distributed evenly among the eight community councils in Southwark. The 
reallocation of funds between projects in Camberwell will allow for these to be 
completed. 

 
Consultation  
 
20. All Cleaner Greener Safer projects require consultation with stakeholders, including 

the project applicant, local residents and Tenants and Residents Associations 
where appropriate. 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
21. There are no comments. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Camberwell Community Council 
Minutes 03-03-2010 – Appendix to 
Minute 11 

Cleaner Greener Safer, 
Public Realm, 160 
Tooley Street, London, 
SE1 2TZ 

Pippa Krishnan 
020 7525 5133 

Camberwell Community Council 
Minutes 06-05-2009  

Cleaner Greener Safer, 
Public Realm, 160 
Tooley Street, London, 
SE1 2TZ 

Pippa Krishnan 
020 7525 5133 

Camberwell Community Council 
Minutes 30-10-2007 

Cleaner Greener Safer, 
Public Realm, 160 
Tooley Street, London, 
SE1 2TZ 

Pippa Krishnan 
020 7525 5133 

Camberwell Community Council 
Minutes 22-09-2003 

Cleaner Greener Safer, 
Public Realm, 160 
Tooley Street, London, 
SE1 2TZ 

Pippa Krishnan 
020 7525 5133 

 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Cleaner Greener Safer: Funding Reallocation Table 

AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Michelle Normanly, Senior Project Manager 
Report Author Pippa Krishnan, Project Manager 

Version Final  

121



 
 
 

 

  

Dated 7 May 2011 
Key Decision No 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Strategic Director of Communities, Law 
& Governance  

No No 

Finance Director No No 
Cabinet Member No No 
Date final report sent to Community Council Team 10 June 2011 
 

122



Cleaner Greener Safer Funding Reallocation Table (June 2011) Appendix 1

Projects that need extra funding

Project Number and Name
Date project was 
approved

CGS 
Funding Other Funding Issue

Funding 
Required

[103017] Brandon 3 Farmer's Garden 
Phase II 03 March 2010 £10,000.00

£30K to £80K in total (£30K of Veolia 
funding confirmed, £50K Community 
Spaces funding (TBC))

Costings have come in at £140K which is over 
budget. The Brandon Gardening Group has applied 
for £110K of additional funding. Another £20K is 
required £15,000.00

[105473] Dog Kennel Hill area 
improvements n/a n/a

The project currently has £75K of 
Section 106 funding. £33,000 of this 
S106 funding is to be reallocated to 
cover all spends on CGS projects 
01769 and 01793

Officers recommend allocating funding towards 
other improvements in the Dog Kennel Hill area £33,000.00

101461 Camberwell Green 
Partnership Scheme in Conservation 
Areas 03 March 2011 £31,000.00 £112K of English Heritage funding

A total of £75,000 was pledged, which means there 
is a defecit of £44,000 £44,000.00

[105471] Kerb and paving works near 
Camberwell Courts n/a n/a None

A budget of £10,000 is required to allow this project 
to go ahead £10,000.00

TOTAL FUNDS REQUIRED £102,000.00

Projects that have underspends or recommended to abort

Project Number and Name
Date Project was 
approved

CGS 
Funding Other Funding Issue

Funding to 
Reallocate Have there been any spends? Notes

[01239] Camberwell street cabinet 
decoration 04 June 2008 £5,000.00 None Councillors recommend to abort this project £5,000.00 No

01769 and 01793 - Champion Hill 
Estate woodland 06 May 2009 £33,000.00 None

S106 funding will be used to pay for this ecological 
project. The CGS funds will be reallocated to 
[105473] Dog Kennel Hill area improvements £33,000.00

£33,000 will be spent by the end 
of July 2011

Funding to be reallocated to "other 
purposes" at Dog Kennel Hill open space. 
This was agreed at Community Council on 
16 March 2011.

[104657] Resurfacing of D'Eynsford 
Estate Ball Court 03 March 2010 £14,000.00 None

This project has an underspend, but the TRA would 
like to spend it on murals for the ballcourt

[02067] D'Eynsford Estate 
Community Garden 06 May 2009 £25,000.00 None

This project has an underspend, but the TRA would 
like to spend it on extra plants for the garden

[104025] Camberwell Courts Pretty 
safe crossing areas 03 March 2010 £10,000.00 None

Due to issues with the scope and feasibility, 
Officers recommend to abort this project £10,000.00

[104329] Lomond Grove Green Link 03 March 2010 £14,000.00 None This project is complete and has an underspend. £7,000.00 Project cost was £7,000
[104486] Trees and Trellising at 
McNeil Road 03 March 2010 £10,000.00 None This project is complete and has an underspend. £6,000.00 Project cost was £4,000

01780 - Camberwell Green Park 
Improvements, and 00717 - 
Camberwell Green and Orchard, and 
00025 - Welcome to Camberwell

6 May 2009, and 30 
October 2007 and 22 
September 2003 £209,450.00

£39,450 of CGS funding was 
reallocated to this project on 3 March 
2010 £44,000.00

Yes, £118,937.46 has been 
spent, leaving remaining funds 
of £90,512.54

TOTAL FUNDS TO REALLOCATE £107,500.00

Projects that require approval for additional works

Project Number and Name
Date Project was 
approved

CGS 
Funding Other Funding Works required

Cost of 
works

[104657] Resurfacing of D'Eynsford 
Estate Ball Court 03 March 2010 £14,000.00 none
02067 - D'Eynsford Estate 
Community Garden 06 May 2009 £25,000.00 none

£2,500.00

This was agreed at Community Council on 16 March 2011.

This was agreed at Community Council on 16 March 2011.

Notes

Total underspend for both 
projects is £4,384.26

£2,500 of the underspend will be 
reallocated. This was agreed at 
Community Council on 16 March 2011.

Notes

No additional funds required. The original project funding will cover these 
works. This was agreed at Community Council on 16 March 2011.£1,884.26

The TRA would like murals for the ballcourt and 
planting in the community garden. Workshops with 
children have already begun to design the murals.

123



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally blank. 



MEMBERS & EXTERNAL DISTRIBUTION LIST MUNICIPAL YEAR 2011-2012 
CAMBERWELL COMMUNITY COUNCIL 

Note: Original held by Constitutional Team (Community Councils) 
(Tel: 020 7525 7385) 

 
 Copies  Copies 

To all members of the community council    
Councillor Norma Gibbes (Chair)                                1 Shahida Nasim 1 
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle (Vice Chair)                     1 Audit Commission  
Councillor Kevin Ahern                                               1 Ground Floor  
Councillor Stephen Govier                                          1 Tooley Street  
Councillor Peter John                                                 1   
Councillor Right Revd Emmanuel Oyewole                1   
Councillor Ian Wingfield                                              1   
Councillor Veronica Ward                                           1 Borough Commander 1 
Councillor Mark Williams 
 

1 Southwark Police   

Other Members  Station 
323 Borough High Street 

 

Councillor Catherine Bowman (Chair, OSC) 1 London SE1 1JL  
    
  Trade Unions  
Libraries 3 UNISON Southwark Branch 1 
Local Studies Library  1 Roy Fielding, GMB/APEX 1 
  TGWU/ACTS       1 
Press  Tony O’Brien, UCATT 1 
Southwark News 1   
South London Press 1 Housing Offices  
  Camberwell Area Housing Office                             1 
    
Members of Parliament    
Harriet Harman M.P.                                               1   
Tessa Jowel M.P.                                              1   
    
    
  Total 55 
    
Constitutional Officer (Community Councils) 
(at  CLG, Tooley Street – Second Floor – Hub 4) 
 

30   

   
 
 
  

 


	Agenda
	
	Language  Needs

	5 Minutes of the previous meeting
	10 Public Question Time
	11 Lucas Gardens and Southampton Way - consultation report and appendices
	Lucas gardens southampton way - Appendix 1
	Lucas Gardens and Southampton Way - 1st and 2nd stage CPZ consultation report
	Lucas Gardens Sthampton Way - Appendix A

	12 Camberwell Community Council Fund - 2011
	List of community fund bids 2011-12
	CC Information Sheet

	13 Cleaner Greener Safer - report
	Cleaner Greener Safer schemes - appendix 1

	
	Distribution List

